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The following results of operations discussion compares the year ended December 31, 2006, to the year 
ended December 31, 2005. All amounts in the tables (except sales and customers) are in millions. 

Operating Revenue 

A detail of the components of PHI's consoUdated operating revenue is as follows: 

2006 2005 

Power Delivery $5,118.8 $4,702.9 
Conectiv Energy 1,964.2 2,393.1 
Pepco Energy Services 1,668.9 1,487.5 
Other Non-Regulated 90.6 84.5 
Corp. & Otiier (479.6) (602.5) 

Total Operating Revenue $8,362.9 $8,065.5 

$ 415.9 
(428.9) 
181.4 

6.1 
122.9 

$ 297.4 

Power Delivery 

The following table categorizes Power DeUvery's operating revenue by type of revenue. 

2006 2005 

Regulated T&D Electtic Revenue $1,533.2 $1,623.2 
DefauU Supply Revenue 3,271.9 2,753.0 
Other Electric Revenue 58.3 65.2 

Total Electtic Operating Revenue 4,863.4 4,441.4 

Regulated Gas Revenue 204.8 198.7 

Other Gas Revenue 50.6 62.8 

Total Gas Operating Revenue 255.4 261.5 

Total Power Delivery Operating Revenue $5,118.8 $4,702.9 

Change 

$(90.0) 
518.9 

(6.9) 

422.0 

6.1 
(12.2) 

(6.1) 

$415.9 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue includes revenue from the transmission and the delivery of electricity, 
including the delivery of Default Electricity Supply, by PHI's utility subsidiaries to customers within their 
service territories at regulated rates. 

Default Supply Revenue is the revenue received for Default Electricity Supply. The costs related to Default 
Electricity Supply are included in Fuel and Purchased Energy and Otiier Services Cost of Sales. Default Supply 
Revenue also includes revenue from ttansition bond charges and other restmcturing related revenues. 

Other Electric Revenue includes work and services performed on behalf of customers, including other 
utilities, which is not subject to price regulation. Work and services includes mutual assistance to other utihties, 
highway relocation, rentals of pole attachments, late payment fees, and coUection fees. 

Regulated Gas Revenue consists of revenues for on-system natural gas sales and the ttansportation of 
natural gas for customers by DPL within its service territories at regulated rates. 

Otiier Gas Revenue consists of DPL's off-system natural gas sales and the release of excess system capacity. 
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Electric Operating Revenue 

Regulated T&D Electric Revenue 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Otiier 

Total Regulated T&D Electtic Revenue $1,533.2 

2006 

$ 575.7 
699.0 
28.6 

229.9 

2005 

$ 613.0 
726.8 
36.8 

246.6 

Change 

$(37.3) 
(27.8) 
(8.2) 

(16.7) 

$1,623.2 $(90.0) 

Other Regulated T&D Electric Revenue consists primarily of (i) ttansmission service revenue received by 
PHI's utility subsidiaries from PJM as transmission owners, and (ii) revenue from tiie resale of energy and 
capacity under power purchase agreements between Pepco and unaffiliated third parties in the PJM market. 

Regulated T&D Electric Sales (GWh) 2006 2005 Change 

Residential 17,139 18,045 (906) 
Commercial 28,638 29,441 (803) 
Industtial 4,119 4,288 (169) 

Total Regulated T&D Electtic Sales 49,896 51,774 (1,878) 

Regulated T&D Electric Customers (in thousands) 2006 2005 Change 

Residential 1,605 1,591 14 
Conunercial 198 196 2 
Industtial 2 2 —^ 

Total Regulated T&D Electtic Customers 1,805 1,789 16 

Regulated T&D Revenue decreased by $90.0 milUon primarily due to the following: (i) $51.2 milUon 
decrease in sales due to weather, the result of a 16% decrease in Heating Degree Days and 12% decrease in 
CooUng Degree Days in 2006, (ii) $18.5 million decrease due to a change in Delaware rate stmcture effective 
May 1, 2006, which shifted revenue from Regulated T&D Electric Revenue to Default Supply Revenue, 
(iii) $17,1 mUhon decrease in network ttansmission revenues due to lower rates approved by FERC in June 2006, 
(iv) $7.0 million decrease due to a Delaware base rate reduction effective May 1,2006, primarily offset by 
(v) $12.9 milUon increase in sales due to a 0.9% increase in the number of customers. 

Default Electricity Supply 

Default Suppty Revenue 2006 

Residential $1,482.9 
Commercial 1,352.6 
Industtial 108.2 
Otiier 328.2 

Total Defauh Supply Revenue $3,271.9 

2005 

$1,161.6 
995.4 
134.2 
461.8 

Change 

$ 321.3 
357,2 
(26.0) 

(133.6) 
$2,753.0 $ 518.9 

B-30 



Other Default Supply Revenue consists primarily of revenue from the resale of energy and capacity under 
non-utUity generating contracts between ACE and unaffiUated third parties (NUGs) in the PJM market. 

DefauU Electricity Supply Sales (GWh) 2006 2005 Change 

Residential 16,698 17,490 (792) 
Commercial 14,799 15,020 (221) 
Industrial 1,379 2,058 (679) 
Other 129 157 (28) 

Total Defauh Electticity Supply Sales 33,005 34,725 (1,720) 

Defauh Electricity Supply Customers (in thousands) 2006 2005 Change 

Residential 1,575 1,557 18 
Commercial 170 181 (11) 
Industtial 1 2 (1) 
Otiier 2 2 - -_ 

Total Default Electticity Supply Customers 1,748 1,742 6 

Defauh Supply Revenue, which is partially offset in Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of 
Sales, increased $518.9 miUion, representing an 18.8% increase despite a 5% decrease in GWh sales. This 
increase was primarily due to the following: (i) an increase of $709.3 milUon attributable to higher retail 
electricity rates, primarily resulting from market based rates beginning in Delaware on May 1, 2006 and annual 
increases in Default Electticity Supply rates during the year m the District of Columbia, Maryland, New Jersey, 
and Virginia, primarily offset by (ii) $142.1 nullion decrease in wholesale energy revenues from sales of 
generated and purchased energy in PJM due to lower market prices m the third quarter of 2006 and the sale by 
ACE of its interests in the Keystone and Conemaugh generating plants, effective September 1, 2006, and 
(iii) $93.1 million decrease in sales due to milder weather (a 16% decrease ui Heating Degree Days and a 12% 
decrease in Cooling Degree Days in 2006). 

Other Electric Revenue 

Other Electtic Revenue decreased $6.9 million to $58.3 million in 2006 from $65.2 million in 2005 
primarily due to a decrease in customer requested work. 

Gas Operating Revenue 

Regulated Gas Revenue 2006 

Residential $116.2 
Commercial 73.0 
Industrial 10.3 
Transportation and Other 5.3 

Total Regulated Gas Revenue $204.8 

Regulated Gas Sales (Bcf) 2006 

Residential 6.6 
Commercial 4.6 
Industrial .8 
Transportation and Other 6.3 

Total Regulated Gas Sales 18.3 

2005 Change 

$115.0 
68.5 
10.6 
4.6 

$198.7 

2005 

8.4 
5,6 
1.1 
5.6 

20.7 

$1.2 
4.5 
(-3) 
,7 

$6.1 

Change 

(1.8) 
(1.0) 
(-3) 
.7 

(2.4) 
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Regulated Gas Customers (in thousands) 2006 2005 Chaise 

Residential 112 111 1 
Commercial 9 9 — 
Industrial , — — — 
Transportation and 0±er — ^ ^ — 

Total Regulated Gas Customers 121 120 1 

Regulated Gas Revenue increased by $6.1 mUlion primarily due to (i) $33.2 milUon increase primarily due 
to GCR increase effective November 1, 2005, as a result of higher natural gas commodity costs (primarily offset 
in Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Costs of Sales expense), offset by (U) $22.3 milUon decrease in 
sales due to milder weather (a 17% decrease in Heating Degree Days in 2006), and (iii) $4.8 milhon decrease 
primarily due to differences in consumption among various customer rate classes. 

Other Gas Revenue 

Otiier Gas Revenue decreased by $12.2 milhon to $50.6 milUon in 2006 from $62.8 miUion in 2005 
primarily due to lower off-system sales (partially offset in Gas Purchased expense). 

Conectiv Energy 

The impact of Operating Rev^ue changes and Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales 
changes with respect to the Conectiv Energy component of the Competitive Energy business are encompassed 
within the following discussion of gross margin. 

Operating Revenues of the Conectiv Energy segment are derived primarily from the sale of electricity. The 
primary components of its costs of sales are fuel and purchased power. Because fuel and electricity prices tend to 
move in tandem, price changes in these commodities fixjm period to period can have a significant impact on 
Operating Revenue and costs of sales without signifying any change in the performance of the Conectiv Energy 
segment. For this reason, PHI from a managerial standpoint focuses on gross margin as a measure of 
performance. 

Conectiv Energy Gross Margin 

Beginning in 2007, power origination activities, which primarily represent the fixed margin component of 
structured power transactions such as default electticity supply conttacts, were classified into Energy Marketing 
from Merchant Generation & Load Service. Accordingly, the 2006 and 2005 activity has been reclassified for 
comparative purposes. Power origination contributed $18.7 milhon and $7.5 million of gross margin for 2006 
and 2005, respectively. 
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Deceml>er 31, 
2006 2005 

Operating Revenue ($ mUlions): 
Merchant Generation & Load Service $ 1,073.2 $ 1,193.6 
Energy Marketing 891.0 1,199.5 

Total Operating Revenuei $ 1,964.2 $ 2,393.1 

Cost of Sales ($ miUions): 
Merchant Generation & Load Service $ 861.3 $ 952.5 
Energy Marketing 847.7 1,181.4 

Total Costof Sales2 $ 1,709.0 $ 2,133.9 

Gross Margin ($ millions): 
Merchant Generation & Load Service $ 211.9 $ 241.1 
Energy Marketing '. 43.3 18.1 

Total Gross Margin $ 255.2 $ 259.2 

Generation Fuel and Purchased Power Expenses ($ milUons)^: 
Generation Fuel Expenses^-s 

Natural Gas^ S 174.5 $ 223.5 
Coal 53.4 46.7 
OU 26.6 104.6 
Other^ 4J. 4 ^ 

Total Generation Fuel Expenses $ 258.6 $ 379.7 

Purchased Power Expenses^ 431.3 539.0 

Statistics: 2006 2005 

Generation Output (MWh): 
Bat̂ e-Load^ 1,814,517 1,738,280 
Mid-Merit (Combined Cycle)^ 2,081,873 2,971,294 
Mid-Merit (Oil Fired)io 115,120 694,887 
Peaking 131,930 190,688 
ToUed Generation 94,064 70,834 

Total 4,237,504 5,665,983 

Load Service Volume (MWh)i' 8,514,719 14,230,888 
Average Power Sales Price^^ ($/MWh): 

Generation Sales" $ 77.69 $ 87.62 
Non-Generation Sales^^ $ 58.49 $ 53.16 

Total $ 62.54 $ 60.12 
Average on-peak spot power price at PJM East Hub ($/MWh)»*» $ 65.29 $ 83.35 
Average around-the-clock spot power price at PJM East Hub ($/MWh)»'̂  $ 53.07 $ 66.05 
Average spot nattiral gas price at market area M3 ($/MMBtti)i5 $ 7.31 $ 9,69 
Weatiier (degree days at Philadelphia Airport):'^ 

Heating degree days 4,205 4,966 
Cooling degree days 1,136 1,306 

1 Includes $471.1 miUion and $591.3 million of afftiiate ttansactions for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 
2006 and 2005 amounts have been reclassified to exclude $193.1 milUon and $210.5 miUion, respectively, 
of intta-affiliate ttansactions that were reported gross in 2006 and 2005 at the segment level. 
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2 Includes $4.6 mUUon and $7.2 nullion of affiliate ttansactions for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 2006 
and 2005 amounts have been reclassified to exclude $193.1 miUion and $210.5 million, respectively, of 
affiUate ttansactions that were reported gross in 2006 and 2005 at the segment level. Also, excludes 
depreciation and amortization expense of $36.3 milUon and $40.4 milUon, respectively. 

3 Consists solely of Merchant Generation & Load Service expenses; does not include the cost of fuel not 
consumed by die power plants and intercompany tolling expenses. 

4 Includes tolled generation. 
5 Includes associated hedging gains and losses. 
6 Includes adjusted amounts in 2006 and 2005 for change in natural gas hedge allocation methodology. 
7 Includes emissions expenses, fuel additives, and other fuel-related costs. 
8 Edge Moor Units 3 and 4 and Deepwater Unit 6. 
9 Hay Road and Bethlehem, all units. 
10 Edge Moor Unit 5 and Deepwater Unit 1. 
11 Consists of aU default electricity su{^ly sales; does not include standard product hedge volumes. 
12 Calculated fi^m data reported in Conectiv Energy's Electric Quarterly Report (EQR) filed with ttie FERC; 

does not include capacity or ancillary services revenue. 
13 Consists of default electricity supply sales, standard product power sales, and spot power sales other than 

merchant generation as reported in Conectiv Energy's EQR. 
14 Source: PJM website (www.pjm.com). 
15 Source: Average delivered natural gas price at Tetco Zone M3 as pubUshed in Gas Daily. 
16 Source: National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Weather Service data. 

Merchant Generation & Load Service gross margin decreased $29.2 milUon primarily due to: 

• A decrease of $110.9 million due a 26% decUne in output from Conectiv Energy's generating plants 
primarily because of milder weather in 2006, coupled with lower spark spreads, lower contribution from 
sales of ancillary services and fuel switching activhies, and an unplanned summer outage at the Hay 
Road generating faciUty. 

• An increase of $73.2 nulUon on fuel and power hedge conttacts. 

• An increase of $10.1 milUon due to a mark-to-market gain on a supply contract. 

Energy Marketing gross margin increased $25.2 million primarily due to: 

• An increase of $11.2 mUUon in power origination due to new higher margin conttacts. 

• An increase of $9.2 million due to improved inventory management in the oU marketing business, 

• An increase of $7.7 miUion in the gas marketing busmess from gains on storage, transportation, and 
supply conttacts. 

• A decrease of $3.3 million due to the expiration and associated termination costs of a conttact to provide 
operating services for an unaffiUated generation station which expfred on October 31,2006. 

Pepco Energy Services 

Pepco Energy Services' operating revenue increased $181.4 million primarily due to (i) an increase of 
$265.6 million due to higher retail electricity customer load in 2006 and (ii) an increase of $44.3 million due to 
higher energy services project revenue in 2006 resulting from increased consttiiction activity partially offset by 
lower revenue related to the sale of five businesses in 2006; partially offset by (iii) a decrease of $93.8 miUion 
due to lower natural gas volumes in 2006 as a result of fewer customers served and milder weather, (iv) a 
decrease of $29.0 milUon due to reduced electricity generation by the Benning and Buzzard power plants in 2006 
due to ntilder weather and higher fuel oil prices, and (v) a decrease of $5.7 miUion in mass market products and 
services revenue, a busmess Pepco Energy Services exited in 2005. As of December 31, 2006, Pepco Energy 
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Services had 3,544 megawatts of commercial and industtial load, as compared to 2,034 megawatts of commercial 
and industtial load at the end of 2005. In 2006, Pepco Energy Services' power plants generated 89,578 megawatt 
hours of electricity as compared to 237,624 in 2005. 

Other Non-Regulated 

Other Non-Regulated revenue increased $6.1 milUon to $90.6 nullion in 2006 from $84.5 miUion in 2005. 
Operating revenues consist of lease eamings recognized under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 13 and changes to the carrying value ofthe other miscellaneous investments. 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales 

A detail of PHI's consolidated Fuel and Purchased Energy and Ottier Services Cost of Sales is as follows: 

2006 2005 Change 

Power DeUvery $3,303.6 $2,720.5 $ 583.1 
Conectiv Energy 1,709.0 2,133,9 (424.9) 
Pepco Energy Services 1,531.1 1,357.5 173.6 
Corp. & Otiier (477.8) (599.9) 122.1 

Total $6,065.9 $5,612.0 $ 453.9 

Power Delivery 

Power Delivery's Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales, which is primarily 
associated with Default Electticity Supply sales, increased by $583.1 milUon primarily due to: (i) $736.8 miUion 
increase in average energy costs, resulting from higher costs of Default Electticity Supply conttacts tiiat went 
into effect primarily in June 2006 and 2005, offset by (u) $155.5 nullion decrease primarily due to differences in 
consumption among the various customer rate classes (impact due to such factors as weather, migration, etc). 
This expense is primarily offset in DefauU Supply Revenue, Regulated Gas Revenue, and Other Gas Revenue. 

Conectiv Energy 

The impact of Fuel and Purchased Energy and Otiier Services Cost of Sales changes witti respect to tiie 
Conectiv Energy component ofthe Competitive Energy business are encompassed witiiin tiie prior discussion 
under the heading "Conectiv Energy Gross Margin." 

Pepco Energy Services 

Pepco Energy Services' Fuel and Purchased Energy and Other Services Cost of Sales increased $173.6 
million due to (i) a $246.5 miUion increase in purchases of electricity in 2006 to serVe higher retail customer load 
and (ii) an increase of $37.2 milUon in costs due to higher energy services projects in 2006 as a resuU of 
increased consttnction activity; partially offset by (ni) a decrease of $87.6 million for purchases of natural gas 
due to lower volumes sold in 2006 as die result of fewer customers served and milder weatiier, (iv) a $17.6 
million decrease in electticity generation costs in 2006 due to reduced electticity generation by the Bemung and 
Buzzard power plants as a result of milder weather and higher fuel oU prices, (v) a $4.9 miUion decrease in mass 
market products and services costs, a business Pepco Energy Services exited in 2005, and (vi) decreased costs 
due to the sale of five companies in 2006. 
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Other Operation and Maintenance 

A detail of PHI's other operation and maintenance expense is as follows: 

2006 

Power Delivery $639.6 
Conectiv Energy 116.3 
Pepco Energy Services 67.6 
Ottier Non-Regulated 4.2 
Corp. & Otiier (20.4) 

Total $807.3 

2005 

$643.1 
107.7 
71.2 

5.2 
(11.5) 

$815.7 

Change 

$(3.5) 
8.6 

(3.6) 
(1.0) 
(8.9) 

$(8.4) 

The higher operation and maintenance expenses of the Conectiv Energy segment were primarily due to 
planned and unplanned facility outages. The impact of this increase was substantially offset by lower corporate 
expenses related to the amortization of non-compete agreements and otiier administtative and general expenses. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased by $14.1 milhon to $413.2 milUon in 2006, from $427.3 
million in 2005. The decrease is primarily due to (i) $5,4 million change in depreciation technique resulting from 
the ACE distribution base rate case settiement in 2005 that depreciates assets over their whole life versus their 
remaining Ufe, (ii) $4.1 milUon reduction of ACE regulatory debits, and (iii) $3 miUion reduction due to 
completion of amortization related to software, offset by net increases to plant in-service (additions less 
retirements) of about $5.4 million. 

Deferred Electric Service Costs 

Defened Electtic Service Costs decreased by $98.1 million to $22.1 miUion in 2006 from $120.2 milUon in 
2005. The $98.1 million decrease was attributable to (i) $92.4 nullion net under-recovery associated with New 
Jersey BGS, NUGs, market ttansition charges and other restmcturing items and (ii) $5.7 million in regulatory 
disallowances (net of amounts previously reserved) m connection with the ACE distribution base rate case 
settiement in 2005. 

Impairment Losses 

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Pepco Holdings recorded pre-tax impairment losses of $18.9 miUion 
($13.7 million after-t£ix) related to certain energy services business assets owned by Pepco Energy Services. The 
impairments were recorded as a resuh of the execution of conttacts to sell certain assets and due to the lower than 
expected production and related estimated cash flows from other assets. The fafr value of the assets under 
conttact for sale was determined based on the sales contract price; while the fair value of the other assets was 
determined by estimating future expected production and cash flows. 

Gain on Sale of Assets 

Pepco Holdings recorded a Gain on Sale of Assets of $.8 milUon for the year ended December 31,2006, 
compared to $86.8 milhon for tiie year ended December 31, 2005. The $86.8 miUion gain in 2005 primarily 
consisted of: (i) a $68.1 nullion gain from the sale of non-utiUty land owned by Pepco located at Buzzard Point 
in the District of Columbia, and (ii) a $13.3 nullion gain recorded by PCI from proceeds related to the final 
liquidation of a financial investment that was written off in 2001. 
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Effect of Settlement of Mirant Bankruptcy Claims 

The Effect of Settiement of Mirant Bankmptcy Claims of $70.5 nullion in 2005 represents a settiement (net 
of customer sharing) with Mirant of the allowed, pre-petition general unsecured claim related to a ttansition 
power agreement (TPA) by Pepco in the Mirant bankmptcy in tiie amount of $105 million (the TPA Claim) ($70 
miUion gain) and a Pepco asbestos claim against the Mirant bankmptcy estate ($.5 miUion gain). See "Capital 
Resources and Liquidity—Cash Flow Activity—^Proceeds from Settiement of Mirant Bankmptcy Claims." 

Other Income (Expenses) 

Other Expenses (which are net of other income) decreased by $3.1 miUion to $282.4 miUion for the year 
ended December 31, 2006 from $285.5 mUlion for the same period in 2005. The decrease primarily resulted from 
an increase in income from equity fund valuations at PCI of $7.3 miUion and $2.3 in lower impairment charges 
during 2006 compared to 2005, partially offset by a $6.6 million gain in 2005 related to the sale of an investment. 

Income Tax Expense 

PHI's effective tax rates for tiie years ended December 31,2006 and 2005 were 39.3% and 41.2%, 
respectively. The 1.9% decrease in tiie effective tax rate in 2006 was primarily the result of changes in estimates 
related to prior year tax liabUities, which reduced the effective tax rate by 2.3%. 
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDFTY 

This section discusses Pepco Holdings' working capital, cash flow activity, capital reqttirements and other 
uses and sources of capital. 

Working Capital 

At December 31,2007, Pepco Holdings' cunent assets on a consoUdated basis totaled $2.0 bilUon and its 
current liabilities totaled $2.0 bilUon. At December 31,2006, Pepco Holdings' current assets on a consohdated 
basis totaled $2.0 bilUon and its cunent liabilities totaled $2.5 bilUon. The working capital deficit at the end of 
2006 was primarily due to $500 milUon of curtent long-term debt due to mature in August 2007. During 2007, 
PHI refinanced $450 million ofthe maturing debt witti new long-term debt. 

At December 31,2007, Pepco Holdings' cash and cash equivalents and its cunent restricted cash (cash tiiat 
is available to be used only for designated purposes) totaled $69.6 million. At December 31,2006, Pepco 
Holdings' cash and cash equivalents and its cunent restricted cash, totaled $60.8 million. See "Capital 
Requirements—Conttactual Arrangements witii Credit Rating Triggers or Margining Rights" for additional 
information. 

A detail of PHI's short-term debt balance and its current maturities of long-term debt and project funding 
balance follows. 

As of December 31,2007 
^ (Millions of dollars) 

Pepco 
Pm ACE Conectiv Energy PHI 

Type Parent Pepco DPL ACE Funding Energy Services PCI Conectiv Consolidated 
Variable Rate Demand 

Bonds $ — $ — $104.8 $22.6 $ — $— $24.3 $ — $— $151.7 
Commercial Paper — 84.0 24.0 29.1 — — — — —_ 137.1 

Total Short-Term 
Debt $ — $ 84.0 $128.8 $51.7 $— $— $24.3 $— $— $288.8 

Curtent Maturities of 
Long-Term Debt and 
Project Funding $ — $128.0 $ 22.6 $50.0 $31.0 $— $ 8.6 $92.0 $— $332.2 

As of December 31,2006 
(Millions of dollars) 

Pepco 
PHI ACE Conectiv Energy PHI 

Type Parent Pepco DPL ACE Funding Enei^ Services PO Conectiv Consolidated 

Variable Rate Demand 
Bonds S — $ — $104.8 $22.6 $ — $— $26.8 $ — $— $154.2 

Commercial Paper 36.0 67.1 91.1 1.2 — — — — — 195.4 

Total Short-Term 
Debt $ 36.0 $ 67.1 $195.9 $23.8 $— $- - $26.8 $— $— $349.6 

Current Maturities of 
Long-Term Debt and 
Project Fundmg $500.0 $210.0 $ 64.7 $16.0 $29.9 $— $ 2.6 $34.3 $— $857.5 
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Cash Flow Activity 

PHI's cash flows for 2007, 2006, and 2005 are summarized below. 

Cash Source (Use) 
2007 2006 2005 

(MUUoQs of dollars) 
Operating Activities $ 795,0 $ 202.6 $ 986,9 
Investing Activities (581.6) (229.1) (333.9) 
Financing Activities (207.1) (46.2) (561.0) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 6.3 $ (72.7) $ 92.0 

Operating Activities 

Cash flows from operating activities are summarized below for 2007, 2006, and 2005. 

Cash Source (Use) 
2007 2006 2005 

(MiUions of dollars) 
Net Income $334.2 $ 248.3 $371.2 
Non-cash adjustments to net income 382.3 613.0 161.2 
Changes in working capital 78.5 (658.7) 454.5 
Net cash from operating activities $795.0 $ 202.6 $986.9 

Net cash from operating activities in 2007 was $592.4 miUion higher tiian in 2006. In addition to net 
income, the factors that primarily conttibuted to tiie increase were: (i) a decrease of $202.9 million ui taxes paid 
in 2007, partiaUy attributable to a tax payment of $ 121 milUon made in Febmary 2006 in connection witii an 
unresolved tax matter (see "Regulatory and Other Matters—IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue" below) and (ii) the 
change in cash collateral requirements detailed below associated with Competitive Energy activities. 

Changes in cash collateral include the following: 

• The balance of cash collateral posted hy PHI (net of cash collateral held by PHI) decreased $61.7 
miUion from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007 (an increase in cash). 

• The balance of cash collateral posted by PHI (net of cash collateral held by PHI) increased $259.9 
miUion from December 31,2005 to December 31,2006 (a decrease in cash). 

Cash flows from operating activities in 2007 also were affected by the Mirant bankmptcy settiement. See 
"Proceeds from Settiement of Mirant Bankmptt:y Claims" below. During ttie tiiird quarter of 2007, Pepco 
Holdings received $413.9 miUion in net settlement proceeds, of which $398.9 million was designated as 
operating cash flows and $15.0 miUion was designated as investing cash flows. See "Investing Activities" below. 
These funds were used to purchase money market funds, which are considered cash equivalents, and have been 
accounted for as restricted cash based on management's intent only to use such funds, and any interest eamed 
tiiereon, to pay for the future above-market capacity and energy purchase costs under the Panda PPA. This 
restticted cash has been classified as a non-cmrent asset to be consistent with the classification of the 
corresponding non-current regulatory liabihty, and any changes in the bahmce of this restticted cash, mcluding 
interest receipts, have been considered operating cash flows. 

Net cash from operating activities in 2006 was $784.3 million lower tiian in 2005. In addition to tiie 
decrease in net income, the factors contributing to the decrease in cash flow firom operating activities mcluded: 
(i) an increase of $194.5 miUion in taxes paid in 2006, includmg a tax payment of $121 nulUon made in Febmary 
2006 in connection with an unresolved tax matter (see "Regulatory and Otiier Matters—IRS Mixed Service Cost 
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Issue" below), (U) a decrease in the change in regulatory assets and liabUities of $107.9 miUion due primarily to 
the 2005 over-recoveries associated witti New Jersey BGS, NUGs, market ttansition charges and other 
restmcturing items, and (iii) the change in collateral requirements associated witti tiie activities of Competitive 
Energy described above. 

Investing Activities 

Cash flows used by investing activities during 2007, 2006, and 2005 are summarized below. 

Cash (Use) Source 
2007 2006 2005 

(Millions of doUars) 
Consttuction expenditures $(623,4) $(474.6) $(467.1) 
Cash proceeds from sale of properties 11,2 181.5 84.1 
All other investing cash flows, net 30.6 64.0 49.1 

Net cash used by investmg activities $(581.6) $(229.1) $(333.9) 

Net cash used by investing activities in 2007 was $352.5 milhon higher ttian in 2006 primarily due to: (i) a 
$148.8 milUon increase in capital expenditures, $107.0 nulUon of which relates to Power Delivery, and (U) a 
decrease of $170.3 milUon in cash proceeds from the sale of property. The increase in Power DeUveiy capital 
expenditures is primarily due to major tt-ansmission projects and new substations for Pepco and ACE. The 
proceeds from tiie sale of property in 2006 consisted primarily of $177.0 milhon from the sale of ACE's interest 
in the Keystone and Conemaugh generating facilities and $13.1 nullion from ttie sale of Conectiv Energy's 
equity uiterest in a joint venture which owns a wood buming cogeneration facility. Proceeds from the sale of 
property in 2007 consisted primarily of $9.0 million received from the sale of the B.L. England generating 
facility. Cash flows from investing activities in 2007 also include $15.0 million of tiie net settlement proceeds 
received by Pepco in the Mfrant bankmptcy settiement that were specifically designated as a reimbursement of 
certain investments in property, plant and equipment. 

Net cash used by investing activities in 2006 were $104.8 million lower tiian in 2005. The decrease is 
primarily due to the net proceeds of $177.0 milUon received in 2006 from tiie sale of ACE's interest in the 
Keystone and Conemaugh generating facUities, compared to the $73.7 million in proceeds received in 2005 from 
the sale of the Buzzard Point land. 

Financing Activities 

Cash flows used by financmg activities during 2007, 2(X)6 and 2005 are summarized below. 

Cash (Use) Source 
2007 2006 2005 " 

(MiUions of dollars) 
Dividends paid on common and prefened stock $(202.9) $(199.5) $(191.4) 
Conunon stock issued tiirough tiie Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) 28.0 29.8 27.5 
Issuance of common stock 199.6 17.0 5.7 
Redemption of preferted stock of subsidiaries (18.2) (21.5) (9.0) 
Issuances of long-term debt 703.9 514.5 532.0 
Reacquisition of long-term debt (854.9) (578.0) (755.8) 
(Repayments) issuances of short-term debt, net (58.3) 193.2 (161.3) 
AU otiier financing cash flows, net (4.3) (1.7) (8.7) 

Net cash used by financing activities $(207.1) $ (46.2) $(561.0) 
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Net cash used by financing activities in 2007 was $160.9 mUlion higher tiian in 2006. Net cash used by 
financing activities in 2006 was $514.8 milUon lower ttian m 2005. 

Changes in Outstanding Common Stock 

In November 2007, PHI sold 6.5 million shares of conunon stock in a registered offering at a price per share 
of $27.00, resulting in gross proceeds of $175.5 million. The net proceeds are being used for general corporate 
purposes. The balance of ttie change in 2007 common stock is primarUy atttibutable to the issuance of 
performance based shares under the long-term incentive plan. 

Under the DRP, PHI issued 979,155 shares of common stock in 2007,1,232,569 shares of common stock in 
2006, and 1,228,505 shares of common stock in 2005. 

Common Stock Dividends 

Common stock dividend payments were $202.6 milhon in 2007, $198.3 mUlion in 2006, and $188.9 milUon 
in 2005. The increase in common dividends paid in 2007 was due primarily to an issuance of tiie additional 
shares under the DRP. The increase in common dividends paid in 2006 was due to the issuance ofthe additional 
shares under tiie DRP and a quarterly dividend mcrease fix)m 25 cents per share to 26 cents per share beginning 
in the first quarter of 2006. 

Changes in Outstanding Preferred Stock 

Prefened stock redemptions in 2007 consisted of DPL's redemption in January 2007, at prices ranging from 
103% to 105% of par, of the following securities, representing all of DPL's outstanding prefened stock, at an 

aggregate cost of $18.9 million: 

19,809 shares of 4.00% Series, 1943 Redeemable Serial Preferred Stock, 

39,866 shares of 3.70% Series, 1947 Redeemable Serial Prefened Stock, 

28,460 shares of 4.28% Series, 1949 Redeemable Serial Prefened Stock, 

19,571 shares of 4.56% Series, 1952 Redeemable Serial Prefened Stock, 

25,404 shares of 4.20% Series, 1955 Redeemable Serial Preferred Stock, and 

48,588 shares of 5.00% Series, 1956 Redeemable Serial Preferted Stock. 

Prefened stock redemptions in 2006 consisted of Pepco's redemption m March 2006 of tiie following 
securities at an aggregate cost of $21.5 milUon: 

• 216,846 shares of $2.44 Series, 1957 Serial Prefened Sttx;k, 

• 99,789 shares of $2.46 Series, 1958 Serial Prefened SttKk, and 

• 112J09 shares of $2.28 Series, 1965 Serial Preferred Stock. 

Preferred stock redemptions in 2005 consisted of: 

• Pepco's redemption in October 2005 of tiie following securities at an aggregate cost of $5.5 milUon: 

• 22,795 shares of $2.44 Series 1957 Serial Prefened Stock, 

• 74,103 shares of $2.46 Series 1958 Serial Preferred Stock, and 

• 13,148 shares of $2.28 Series 1965 Serial Preferted Stock. 
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• ACE's redemption hi August 2005 of 160 shares of 4.35% Serial Prefened Stock at a cost of $.02 
miUion, and 

• DPL's redemption m December 2005 of all of tiie 35,000 shares of 6.75% Serial Prefened Stock 
outstanding at a cost of $3.5 miUion. 

Changes in Outstanding Long-Term Debt 

Cash flows from the issuance and redemption of long-term debt in 2007 were attributable primarily to tiie 
following ttansactions, which encompass $700.0 nullion ofthe $703.9 million in long-term debt issued in 2007 
and all ofthe $854.9 million in long-term debt redeemed in 2007: 

• In January 2007, Pepco retfred at maturity $35 miUion of 7.64% medium-term notes and also retfred at 
maturity $175 million of 6.25% fnst mortgage bonds using the proceeds of commercial paper. In 
November 2007, Pepco issued $250 milhon of 6.5% first mortgage bonds. 

• In Febmary 2007, DPL retired at maturity $11.5 nullion of medium-term notes with a weighted average 
interest rate of 7.08%. In tiie second quarter of 2007, DPL retired at mamrity $50 million of 8.125% 
medium-term notes and $3.2 million of 6.95% fust mortgage bonds. 

• In the secondquarterof2007, ACE retired at maturity $15 million of 7.52% medium-term notes and $1 
miUion of 7.15% medium-term notes. 

• For the year ended December 31, 2007, Atlantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC (ACE Funding) 
made principal payments of $21.4 nuUion on Series 2002-1 Bonds, Class A-l and $8,5 miUion on Series 
2003-1, Class A-l with a weighted average interest rate of 2.89%. 

• In Febmary 2007, PCI retfred at maturity $34.3 nuUion of 7.62% medium-term notes. 

• In April 2007, PHI issued $200 milUon of 6.0% notes due 2019 in a private placement. The proceeds 
were used to redeem $200 million of 5.5% notes due August 15, 2007 at a price of 100.0377% of par. In 
June 2007, PHI issued $250 miUion of 6.125% notes due 2017 in a public offering and used tiie 
proceeds along with short-term debt to redeem $300 million of its 5.5% notes in August 2007. 

Cash flows from the issuance and redemption of long-term debt in 2006 were attributable primarily to the 
following ttansactions, which encompass all of the $514.5 miUion of long-term debt issued in 2006 and $576.4 
million of the $578.0 miUion of the long-term debt redeemed in 2006: 

• In May 2006, Pepco used the proceeds from a bond refinancing to redeem an aggregate of $109.5 
mUUon of ttiree series of first mortgage bonds. The series were combined into one series of $ 109.5 
nullion due 2022. 

• In December 2006, Pepco retfred at maturity $50 million of variable rate notes. 

• In June 2006, DPL redeemed $2.9 mUlion of 6.95% first mortgage bonds due 2008. 

• In October 2006, DPL retired at maturity $20 milUon of medium-term notes. 

• In December 2006, DPL issued $100 milUon of 5.22% unsecured notes due 2016. The proceeds were 
used to redeem DPL's commercial paper outstanding. 

• In the first quarter of 2006, PHI retired at maturity $300 miUion of its 3.75% unsecured notes with 
proceeds fixim the issuance of commercial paper. 

• In December 2006, PHI issued $200 nullion of 5.9% unsecured notes due 2016. The net proceeds, plus 
additional funds, were used to repay a $250 million bank loan entered into in August 2006. 

• In January 2006, ACE retired at maturity $65 million of medium-term notes. 

• In March 2006, ACE issued $105 milhon of Senior Notes due 2036. The proceeds were used to pay 
down short-term debt incurred earlier in the quarter to repay medium-term notes at maturity. 
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• For the year ended December 31, 2006, ACE Funding made principal payments of $20.7 milUon on 
Series 2002-1 Bonds, Class A-l and $8.3 milUon on Series 2003-1, Class A-l witii a weighted average 
interest rate of 2.89%. 

Cash flows from the issuance and redemption of long-term debt in 2005 were attributable primarily to the 
foUowing ttansactions, which encompass $525 miUion ofthe $532 miUion of long-term debt issued in 2005 and 
$727.7 miUion of the $755.8 miUion of long-term debt redeemed in 2005: 

• In 2005, Pepco Holdings issued $250 miUion of floating rate unsecured notes due 2010. The net 
proceeds, plus additional funds, were used to repay commercial paper issued to fund the $3(X) mUlion 
redemptions of Conectiv debt. 

• In September 2005, Pepco used the proceeds from the June 2005 issuance of $175 miUion in senior 
secured notes to fund the retirement of $100 nulUon in first mortgage bonds at maturity as weU as the 
redemption of $75 million in first mortgage bonds prior to maturity. 

• In 2005, DPL issued $100 million of unsecured notes due 2015. The net proceeds were used to redeem 
$102.7 mUlion of higher rate securities. 

• In December 2005, Pepco paid down $50 million of its $100 milUon baitic loan due December 2006. 

• In 2005, ACE retired at maturity $40 million of medium-term notes. 

• In 2005, PCI redeemed $60 million of medium-term notes. 

PHTs long-term debt is subject to certain covenants. PHI and its subsidiaries are in compliance with all 
requirements. 

Changes in Short-Term Debt 

In 2007, PHI redeemed a total of $36.0 miUion in short-term debt with cash from operations. 

In 2006, Pepco and DPL issued short-term debt of $67.1 miUion and $91.1 million, respectively, in order to 
cover capital expenditures and tax obligations tiiroughout the year. 

In 2005, ACE and PHI redeemed a total of $161.3 million in short-term debt with cash from operations. 

Sales of ACE Generating Facilities 

On September 1, 2006, ACE completed the sale of its interest in tiie Keystone and Conemaugh generating 
facUities for $ 175.4 mUlion (after giving effect to post-closmg adjustments). On Febmary 8, 2007, ACE 
completed the sale of the B.L. England generating facility for a price of $9.0 milUon. No gain or loss was 
realized on these sales. 

Sale of Interest in Cogeneration Joint Venture 

During tiie fust quarter of 2006, Conectiv Energy recognized a $12.3 mUlion pre-tax gain ($7.9 milUon 
after-tax) on the sale of its equity interest in a joint venture which owns a wood burning cogeneration facihty. 

Proceeds from Settlement of Mirant Bankruptcy Claims 

In 2000, Pepco sold substantiaUy all of its electticity generating assets to Mirant. In 2003, Mfrant 
commenced a voluntary bankmptcy proceeding in which it sought to reject certain obUgations that it had 
undertaken in connection with the asset sale. As part of the asset sale, Pepco entered into the TPAs. Under a 
settlement to avoid the rejection by Mfrant of its obligations under the TPAs in the bankmptcy proceeding, the 
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terms of the TPAs were modified to increase the purchase price of the energy and capacity supplied by Mfrant 
and Pepco received tiie TPA Claim. In December 2005, Pepco sold the TPA Claim, plus the right to receive 
accmed interest thereon, to an unaffiliated thfrd party for $112.5 nulUon. In addition, Pepco received 5MX>ceeds of 
$.5 million in settiement of an asbestos claim against the Mfrant bankmptcy estate. After customer sharing, 
Pepco recorded a pre-tax gain of $70.5 nullion from the settlement of these claims. 

In connection with the asset sale, Pepco and Mirant also entered into a "back-to-back" anangement, 
whereby Mirant agreed to purchase from Pepco the 230 megawatts of electricity and capacity that Pepco is 
obligated to purchase annuaUy through 2021 from Panda under the Panda PPA at the purchase price Pepco is 
obligated to pay to Panda. As part of the further settiement of Pepco's claims against Mfrant arising from the 
Mfrant bankmptcy, Pepco agreed not to contest the rejection by Mirant of its obligations under the 
"back-to-back" anangement in exchange for the payment by Mirant of damages cortesponding to the estimated 
amount by which the purchase price that Pepco is obUgated to pay Panda for the energy and capacity exceeded 
the market price. In 2007, Pepco received as damages $413.9 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares of 
Mirant common stock issued to it by Mirant. These funds are being accounted for as restricted cash based on 
management's intent to use such funds, and any interest eamed thereon, for the sole purpose of paying for tiie 
future above-market capacity and energy purchase costs under the Panda PPA. Correspondingly, a regulatory 
liability has been estabUshed in the same amount to help offset the future above-market capacity and energy 
purchase costs. This restricted cash has been classified as a non-cunent asset to be consistent with the 
classification of the non-ciurent regulatory liability, and any changes in the balance of this restricted cash, 
including interest on the invested funds, are being accounted for as operating cash flows. 

As of December 31, 2007, the balance of tiie restricted cash account was $417.3 milUon. Based on a 
reexamination of the costs of the Panda PPA in tight of ciurent and projected wholesale market conditions 
conducted in the fourth quarter of 2007, Pepco determined that, principally due to increases in wholesale capacity 
prices, the present value above-market cost of the Panda PPA over the term of the agreement are expected to be 
significantiy less than the ciurent amount of the restricted cash account balance. Accordingly, on Febmary 22, 
2008, Pepco filed appUcations witii the DCPSC and the MPSC requesting orders dfrecting Pepco to maintain 
$320 million in the restricted cash account and to use that cash, and any future eamings on the cash, for the sole 
purpose of paying the future above-market cost of the Panda PPA (or, in the altemative, to fund a transfer or 
assignment ofthe remaining obligations under the Panda PPA to a third party). Pepco also requested that ttie 
order provide that any cash remaining in the account at the conclusion of the Panda PPA be refunded to 
customers and that any shortfall be recovered from customers. Pepco further proposed that the excess proceeds 
remaining from the settiement (approximately $94.6 million, representing the amount hy which the regulatory 
UabiUty of $414.6 million at December 31, 2007 exceeded $320 million) be shared approximately equally with 
its customers in accordance with the procedures previously approved by each commission for the sharing of the 
proceeds received by Pepco from the sale to Mirant of its generating assets. The regulatory Uability of 
$414.6 million at December 31, 2007 differs from the restricted cash amount of $417.3 miUion on that date, in 
part, because the regulatory liabihty has been reduced for the portion ofthe December 2007 Panda charges in 
excess of market that had not yet been paid from the restricted cash account. The amount of the restricted cash 
balance that Pepco is permitted to retain will be recorded as eamings upon approval of the sharing anangement 
by the respective commissions. At this time, Pepco cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

In settiement of other damages claims against Mirant, Pepco in 2(X)7 also received a settlement payment in 
the amount of $70.0 nullion. Of this amount (i) $33.4 million was recorded as a reduction in operating expenses, 
(U) $21.0 mUlion was recorded as a reduction in a net pre-petition receivable clarni from Mfrant, 
(iii) $15.0 million was recorded as a reduction in the capitalized costs of certain property, plant and equipment 
and (iv) $.6 milUon was recorded as a UabiUty to reimburse a third party for certain legal costs associated with 
the settlement. 
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Sale of Buzzard Point Property 

In August 2005, Pepco sold for $75 million excess non-utility land located at Buzzard Point in the District 
of Columbia. The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of $68.1 million which was recorded as a reduction of Operating 
Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings. 

Financial Investment Liquidation 

In October 2005, PCI received $13.3 milUon in cash and recorded an after-tax gain of $8.9 nulUon related to 
the liquidation of a financial investment that was written-off in 2001. 

Capital Requirements 

Capital Expenditures 

Pepco Holdings' total capital expenditures for tiie year ended December 31, 2007 totaled $623.4 million of 
which $272.2 million related to Pepco (excluding $15 mUlion of reimbursements related to the settiement ofthe 
Mirant bankmptcy claims), $132.6 milhon related to DPL and $149.4 milUon related to ACE. The remainder of 
$69.2 million was primarily related to Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services. The Power DeUvery 
expenditures were primarily related to capital costs associated with new customer services, distribution 
reliability, and ttansmission. 

The table below shows the projected capital expenditures for Pepco, DPL, ACE, Conectiv Energy and Pepco 
Energy Services for the five-year period 2008 through 2012. 

Pepco 
Distribution $192 
Distribution—Blueprint for die Futttte 
Transmission 
MAPP 
Other 

DPL 
Distribution 
Disttibution—Blueprint for the Future 
Transmission 
MAPP 
Gas DeUvery 
Other 

ACE 
Distribution 
Disttibution—Blueprint for tiie Future 
Transmission 
MAPP 
Other 

Total for Power Delivery Business 716 
Conectiv Energy 155 
Pepco Energy Services 
Corporate 

Total PHI $896 

2008 

$192 
24 
45 
17 
15 

101 
22 
57 
11 
23 
10 

96 
15 
78 

— 
10 

716 
155 
21 
4 

2009 

$ 215 
61 
64 
72 
17 

118 
58 
52 

107 
24 
10 

107 

n 
17 

— 
10 

943 
229 

13 
2 

For the Year 

2010 2011 

(MiUions of DoUars) 

$ 212 
61 

167 
30 
12 

124 
59 
45 

210 
19 
9 

101 
16 
25 

1 
8 

1,099 
161 
13 
2 

$ 232 
63 

168 
— 

12 

124 
30 
57 

271 
19 
7 

109 
20 
45 

2 
7 

1,166 
28 
14 
2 

2012 

$ 331 
5 

62 
— 

11 

138 
9 

52 
185 

18 
7 

111 
85 
47 

3 
5 

1,069 
9 

15 
2 

Total 

$1,182 
214 
506 
119 
67 

605 
178 
263 
784 
103 
43 

524 
147 
212 

6 
40 

4,993 
582 
76 
12 

$1,187 $1,275 $1,210 $1,095 $5,663 
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Pepco Holdings expects to fund these expenditures through internally generated cash and extemal financing. 

Distribution, Transmission and Gas Delivery 

The projected capital expenditures for distribution (other than Blueprint for the Future), transmission (other 
than MAPP) and gas delivery are primarily for facility replacements and upgrades to accommodate customer 
growth and reliability. 

Blueprint for the Future 

During 2007, Pepco, DPL and ACE each announced an initiative that it refers to as the "Blueprint for the 
Future." These initiatives combine ttaditional energy efficiency programs with new technologies and systems to 
help customers manage tiiefr energy use and reduce the total cost of energy. The programs include Demand side 
management efforts, such as rebates or other financial incentives for residential customers to replace inefficient 
appliances and for business customers to use more energy efficient equipment, such as improved lighting and 
HVAC systems. Under the programs, customers also could receive credits on thefr bills for allowing the utUity 
company to "cycle," or intermittently tum off, their centtal air conditioning or heat pumps when wholesale 
electricity prices are high. The programs contemplate that business customers would receive financial incentives 
for using energy efficient equipment, and would be rewarded for reducing use during periods of peak demand. 
Additionally, Pepco and DPL intend to instaU "smart meters" for all customers in the District of Columbia, 
Maryland and Delaware, providing the utUities with the abiUty to remotely read the meters and identify the 
location of a power outage, Pepco, DPL and ACE have made filings with thefr respective regulatory 
commissions for approval of certaui aspects of these programs. The projected costs for PHI's utiUty subsidiaries 
for the years 2008 through 2012 are included in the table above. 

MAPP Project 

On October 17,2007, PHI received the approval ofthe PJM Board of Managers to build a new 230-mile, 
500-kilovolt interstate transmission line as part of PJM's Regional Transmission Expansion Plan to address the 
reliability objectives of the PJM RTO system. The ttansimssion line, which is referred to as the MAPP Project, 
will be located in northern Vfrginia, Maryland, the Delmarva Peninsula, and New Jersey, The prehminarUy 
estimated cost ofthe MAPP Project is approximately $1 biUion. Constmction is expected to occur in sections 
over a six-year period with completion targeted by 2013. PHI also plans to add significant 230-kilovolt support 
lines in Maryland and New Jersey to connect with the new 500-kilovolt Une at an approximate cost of $200 
million. PJM continues to evaluate the 230-kilovolt support lines. Only the projected constmction costs 
associated with the 500-kilovolt ttansmission line for the years 2008 through 2012 are included in the table 
above. 

Delta Project 

On December 14, 2007, Conectiv Energy armounced a decision to constmct a 545 MW natural gas and 
oil-fired combined-cycle electricity generation plant to be located in Peach Bottom Township, Pennsylvania 
("Delta Project"). The total consttuction expenditures for the Delta Project are expected to be $470 milUon, with 
projected expenditures of $62 milhon in 2008, $195 milUon in 2009, $136 mUlion in 2010, and $14 milUon in 
2011, and are included in Conectiv Energy's projected capital expenditures shown in the table above. The total 
expenditures include $63 million in development costs and three combustion turbines cunentiy held in inventory 
by Conectiv Energy. The plant is expected to become operational by June 2011. 

Cumberland Project 

In 2007, Conectiv Energy began constmction of a new combustion turbine power plant in MiUviUe, New 
Jersey. The total constmction expenditures for this project arc expected to be $75 rrulUon (of which $24 million 
was expended in 2007), with projected expenditures of $46 milUon in 2008 and $5 milUon in 2009. These future 
expenditures are included in Conectiv Energy's projected capital expenditures shown in the table above. 
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Compliance with Delaware Multipollutant Regulations 

As required by the Delaware multipollutant enussions regulations adopted by tiie Delaware Department of 
Natural Resources and Environmental Control, PHI, in June 2007, filed a compliance plan for controlUng 
nitrogen oxide (NOx), sulfur dioxide (SO2) and mercury emissions from its Edge Moor power plant. The plah 
includes installation of a sodium-based sorbent injection system and a Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction 
(SNCR) system and carbon injection for Edge Moor Units 3 and 4, and use of an SNCR system and lower sulfur 
oil at Edge Moor Unit 5. Conectiv Energy currently believes tiiat with tiiese modifications, it wiU be able to meet 
tiie requirements of the new regulations at an estimated coital cost of $79 million. The comphance plan filed by 
Conectiv Energy contemplates capital expenditures of $38 miUion of capital in 2008 and $19 miUion of capital m 
2009. 

Dividends 

Pepco Holdings' annual dividend rate on its common stock is determined by the Board of Directors on a 
quarterly basis and takes into consideration, among other factors, current and possible future developments that 
may affect PHTs income and cash flows. In 2007, PHI's Board of Directors declared quarterly dividends of 26 
cents per share of common stock payable on March 30, 2007, June 29, 2007, September 28, 2007 and 
December 31,2007. 

On January 24,2008, tiie Board of Directors declared a dividend on common stock of 27 cents per share 
payable March 31, 2008, to shareholders of record March 10, 2008. 

PHI generates no operating income of its own. Accordingly, its abiUty to pay dividends to its shareholders 
depends on dividends received from its subsidiaries. In addition to thefr future financial perfomiance, the abiUty 
of PHI's dfrect and indirect subsidiaries to pay dividends is subject to limits imposed by: (i) state corporate and 
regulatory laws, which impose linutations on tiie funds that can be used to pay dividends and, in the case of 
regulatory laws, as apphcable, may require tiie prior approval of tiie relevant utiUty regulatory commissions 
before dividends can be paid, (ii) the prior rights of holders of existing and future prefened stock, mortgage 
bonds and other long-term debt issued by the subsidiaries, and any other restrictions imposed in cormection with 
the incurrence of UabiUties, and (iii) certain provisions of ACE's certificate of incorporation which provides that, 
if any prefened stock is outstanding, no dividends may be paid on the ACE common stock if, after payment, 
ACE's common stock caphal plus surplus would be less than tiie mvoluntary liquidation value of the outstanding 
preferred stock. Pepco and DPL have no shares of preferred stock outstanding. Currentiy, the restriction in the 
ACE charter does not limit its ability to pay dividends. 

Pension Funding 

Pepco Holdings has a noncontributory retfrement plan (the PHI Retirement Plan) tiiat covers substantiaUy 
all employees of Pepco, DPL and ACE and certain employees of otiier Pepco Holdings subsidiaries. 

As of the 2007 valuation, the PHI Retirement Plan satisfied the minimum funding requfrements of the 
Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) witiiout requfring any additional funding. PHI's 
funding policy with regard to the PHI Retfrement Plan is to maintain a ftinding level in excess of 100% of its 
accumulated benefit obligation (ABO). In 2007 and 2006, no contributions were made to the PHI Retfrement 
Plan. 

In 2007, the ABO for ttie PHI Retfrement Plan decreased fi^m 2006, due to an increase in the discoimt rate 
used to value the ABO obUgation, which more than offset the accmal of an additional year of service for 
participants. The PHI Retirement Plan assets achieved retums in 2007 above the 8.25% level assumed in the 
valuation. As a result of the combination of these factors, no conttibution was made to the PHI Retirement Plan, 
because the funding level at year end 2007 was in excess of 100% of the ABO. In 2006, as a resuU of shnilar 
factors, PHI made no conttibution to the PHI Retfrement Plan. Assuming no changes to tiie ciurent pension plan 
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assumptions, PHI projects no funding wUl be required under ERISA in 2008; however, PHI may elect to make a 
discretionary tax-deductible conttibution, if required to maintain its assets in excess of ABO for tiie PHI 
Retirement Plan. Legislative changes, in the form of the Pension Protection Act of 2006, impact the fundmg 
requfrements for pension plans beginning in 2008. The Pension Protection Act alters the manner in which 
liabilities and asset values are determined for the purpose of calculating required pension contributions. Based on 
preliminary actuarial projections and assuming no changes to current pension plan assumptions, PHI believes it is 
unhkely that there wiU be a requfred contribution in 2008. 

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 

Summary information about Pepco Holdings' consolidated conttactual obligations and commercial 
commitments at December 31, 2007, is as follows: 

Obligation (a) Total 

Variable rate demand bonds $ 151.7 
Commercial paper 137.1 
Long-term debt (b) 4,938.4 
Long-term project funding 29.3 
Interest payments on debt 3,254.4 
Capital leases 182.9 
Liabilities and accmed interest related to effectively 

settied and uncertain tax positions 140.8 
Operating leases 512.0 
Non-derivative fuel and purchase power conttacts (c) . . . . 9,806.1 

Total $19,152.7 

Contractual Maturit}' 

Lessthan 
lYear 

1-3 
Years 

(MUUons of doUars) 

$ 151.7 
137.1 
323.8 

8.4 
282.8 

15.4 

71.0 
38.1 

3,176.7 

$4,205.0 

$ — 
— 

614.1 
4.1 

521.5 
30.4 

62.4 
2,756.8 

$3,989.3 

$ 

3-5 
Years 

— 
— 

857.2 
3.3 

462.7 
30.4 

13.0 
49.6 

752.7 

$2,168.9 

After 5 
Years 

$ — 
— 

3,143.3 
13.5 

1,987.4 
106.7 

56.8 
361.9 

3,119.9 

$8,789.5 

(a) 

(b) 
(c) 

Estimates relating to the future funding of PHI's pension and other posttetfrement benefit plans are not 
included in this table. For additional information, see Note (6) Pension and Other Posttetfrement Benefits-
"Cash Flows." 
Includes ttansition bonds issued by ACE Funding. 
Excludes conttactual obligations entered into by ACE to purchase electticity to satisfy its BGS load. 

Third Party Guarantees, Indemnifications and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Pepco Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries have various financial and performance guarantees and 
indemnification obligations which are entered into in the normal course of business to facilitate commercial 
transactions with third parties as discussed below. 

As of December 31, 2007, Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries were parties to a variety of agreements 
pursuant to which they were guarantors for standby letters of credit, performance residual value, and other 
commitments and obligations. These commitments and obligations, in miUions of doUars, were as follows: 

Energy marketing obUgations of Conectiv Energy (a) $180.9 
Energy procurement obligations of Pepco Energy Services (a) 141.7 
Guaranteed lease residual values (b) 
Otiier (c) 

Total $324.9 

PHI 

$180.9 
141.7 

2.3 

Guarantor 

DPL ACE Other 

$ — $ — $ — 

2.6 2.7 .4 
— — 1.4 

Total 

$180.9 
141.7 

5.7 
3.7 

$ 2,6 $ 2.7 $ 1.8 $332.0 
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(a) Pepco Holdings has contractual commitments ensuring the performance and related payments of Conectiv 
Energy and Pepco Energy Services to counterparties under routine energy sales and procurement 
obUgations, including retail customer load obligations of Pepco Energy Services and requfrements under 
BGS contracts entered into by Conectiv Energy with ACE. 

(b) Subsidiaries of Pepco Holdings have guaranteed residual values in excess of fafr value of certain equipment 
and fleet vehicles held tiirough lease agreements. As of December 31, 2007, obligations under tiiie 
guarantees were approximately $5.7 million. Assets leased under agreements subject to residual value 
guarantees are typically for periods ranging from 2 years to 10 years. Historically, payments under the 
guarantees have not been made by the guarantor as, under normal conditions, the conttact runs to fuU term 
at which time the residual value is minimal. As such, Pepco Holdings beheves the likelihood of payment 
being required under the guarantee is remote. 

(c) Other guarantees consist of: 

• Pepco Holdings has guaranteed a subsidiary building lease of $2.3 miUion. Pepco Holdings does not 
expect to fund the full amount of the exposure under the guarantee. 

• PCI has guaranteed facility rental obligations related to conttacts entered into by Starpower 
Communications, LLC, a joint venture in which PCI prior to December 2004 had a 50% interest. As of 
December 31, 2007, the guarantees cover tiie remaining $1.4 million in rental obhgations. 

Pepco Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries have entered into various indemnification agreements related to 
purchase and sale agreements and other types of conttactual agreements with vendors and other third parties. These 
indemnification agreements typically cover environmental, tax, litigation and other matters, as well as breaches of 
representations, wananties and covenants set forth in tiiese agreements. Typically, claims may be made by third 
parties under these indemnification agreements over various periods of time depending on the nature ofthe clmm. 
The maximum potential exposure under these indemnification agreements can range from a specified doUar amount 
to an unlimited amount depending on tiie nature of the claim and the particular transaction. The total maximum 
potential amount of future payments under these indemnification agreements is not estimable due to several factors, 
including uncertainty as to whether or when claims may be made under these indemnities. 
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Energy Contract Net Asset/Liability Activity 

The following table provides detail on changes in the net asset or liability position of tiie Competitive 
Energy businesses (consisting of the activities of the Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services segments) with 
respect to energy commocUty conttacts from one period to the next: 

Roll-forward of Mark-to-Market Energy Contract Net Assets (Liabilities) 
For the Year Ended December 31,2007 

(Dollars are pre-tax and in millions) 

Other 
Proprietary Enei^ 

Trading Commodity 
fa) (h) Total 

Total Marked-to-Market (MTM) Energy Contract Net LiabiUties at 
December 31,2006 $— $(64.3) $(64.3) 

Total change in unrealized fafr value — 8.2 8.2 
Reclassification to reaUzed at settiement of conttacts — 73.9 73.9 
Effective portion of changes in fafr value—^recorded in Other 

Comprehensive Income — 2.8 2.8 
Ineffective portion of changes in fafr value— recorded in eamings — (2.5) (2.5) 

Total MTM Energy Conttact Net Assets at December 31, 2007 $— $ 18.1 $ 18.1 

Detail of MTM Energy Conttact Net Assets at December 31, 2007 (see above) Total 

Current Assets (other curtent assets) $ 44.2 

Noncunent Assets (other assets) 24.6 

Total MTM Energy Conttact Assets 68.8 

Current LiabiUties (other current UabiUties) (23.0) 

Noncurrent LiabiUties (other Uabiiities) (27.7) 

Total MTM Energy Conttact Liabilities (50.7) 

Total MTM Energy Conttact Net Assets $ 18.1 

(a) PHI does not engage in proprietary trading activities. 
(b) Includes all SFAS No. 133 hedge activity and non-proprietary ttading activities marked-to-market through 

earnings. 
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PHI uses its best estimates to determine the fafr value of the commodity and derivative conttacts that its 
Competitive Energy businesses hold and sell. The fafr values in each category presented below reflect forward 
prices and volatUity factors as of December 31,2007 and are subject to change as a result of changes in these 
factors: 

Maturity and Source of Fair Value of Mark-to-Market 
Energy Contract Net Assets (Liabilities) 

As of December 31,2007 
(Dollars are pre-tax and in millions) 

Fair Vahie of Contracts at December 31,2007 
Maturities (a) 

2010 

Total 
2011 and Fair 
Beyond Vahie 

$— $— $ — 

Source of Fair Value 2008 2009 
Proprietary Trading 
Actively Quoted (i.e., exchange-ttaded) prices $ — $ — 
Prices provided by other extemal sources — — 
Modeled — — 

Total $ — $ — 

Other Energy Commodity, net (b) 
Actively Quoted (i.e., exchange-ttaded) prices $(15.0) $10.0 
Prices provided by other extemal sources (c) 23.7 (8.4) 
Modeled — — ~- — — 

Total $ 8.7 $ 1.6 $ 7.6 $ .2 $18.1 

$ — $ — $ — 

$3.2 
4.4 

$ .2 $(1.6) 
19.7 

(a) Indicated maturity is based on conttact settiement or delivery date(s). 
(b) Includes ail SFAS No. 133 hedge activity and non-proprietary ttudmg activities mariced-to-market through 

Accumulated (Dther Comprehensive Income or on the Statements of eamings, as requfred. 
(c) Prices provided by other external sources reflect information obtamed from over-the-counter brokers, 

industry services, or multiple-party on-hne platforms. 

Contractual Arrangements with Credit Rating Triggers or Margining Rights 

Under certain conttactual arrangements entered into by PHI's subsidiaries in connection with Competitive 
Energy business and other ttansactions, the subsidiary may be required to provide cash coUateral or letters of 
credit as security for its contractual obligations if the credit ratings of the subsidiary are downgraded. In the event 
of a downgrade, the amount required to be posted would depend on ttie amount of tiie underlying contracmal 
obhgation existing at the time of tiie downgrade. Based on conttactual provisions in effect at December 31,2007, 
PHI estimates that if a one level downgrade in the credit rating of PHI and each of its relevant subsidiaries were 
to occur, the additional aggregate cash collateral or letters ofcredit amount required would be $339.0 milUon. 
PHI believes that it and its utility subsidiaries maintain adequate short-term funding sources in tiie event tiie 
additional coUateral or letters ofcredit are requfred. See "Sources of Capital—Short-Term Funding Sources." 

Many of the contt*actual anangements entered into by PHI's subsidiaries in connection with Competitive 
Energy and Default Electricity Supply activities include margining rights pursuant to which the PHI subsidiary or a 
counterparty may request collateral if the market value of the contractual obhgations reaches levels in excess of the 
credit thresholds established m the appUcable arrangements. Pursuant to these margming rights, the affected PHI 
subsidiary may receive, or be requfred to post, collateral due to energy price movements. As of December 31,2007, 
Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries engaged in Competitive Energy activities and Default Electricity Sujqily activities 
provided net cash coUateral in tiie amount of $91.2 mUhon in connection witii ttiese activities. 
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Environmental Remediation ObUgations 

PHI's accmed liabilities as of December 31,2007 include approximately $18.4 milUon, of which 
$5.7 milUon is expected to be incurred in 2008, for potential environmental cleanup and other costs related to 
sites at which an operating subsidiary is a potentially responsible party (PRP), is aUeged to be a third-party 
contributor, or has made a decision to clean up contamination on its own property. For information regarding 
projected expenditures for envfronmental conttol facilities, see "Business—Environmental Matters." The most 
significant environmental remediation obUgations as of December 31, 2007, were: 

• $4.7 million, of which $1.2 million is expected to be incurred in 2008, payable by DPL in accordance 
with a 2001 consent agreement reached with the Delaware Department of Natural Resources and 
Environmental Conttol, for remediation, site restoration, natural resource damage compensatory projects 
and other costs associated with environmental contamination that resulted from an oU release at the 
Indian River power plant, which was sold in June 2001. 

• $4.9 mUlion in envfronmental remediation costs, of which $1.3 million is expected to be incurred in 
2008, payable by Conectiv Energy associated witii the Deepwater generating facility. 

• $3.8 million for environmental remediation costs related lo fonner manufactured gas plant (MGP) 
operations at a Cambridge, Maryland site on DPL-owned property, adjacent property and the adjacent 
Cambridge Creek, all of which is expected to be incuned in 2008. 

• $1.7 miUion in connection with Pepco's UabiUty for a remedy at the Metal Bank/Cottman Avenue site. 

• $1.4 million, of which approximately $260,000 is expected to be incurred in 2008, payable by DPL in 
connection with the Wilmington Coal Gas South site located in Wilmington, Delaware, to remediate 
residual material from the historical operation of a manufactured gas plant. 

• $735,000, of which approximately $65,000 is expected to be incurred in 2008, payable by Pepco for 
long-term monitoring associated with a pipeline oil release that occurred in 2000. 

Sources of Capital 

Pepco Holdings' sources to meet its long-term funding needs, such as capital expenditures, dividends, and 
new investments, and its short-term funding needs, such as working capital and the temporary funding of long-
term funding needs, include intemally generated funds, securities issuances and bank financing under new or 
existing facilities. PHI's ability to generate funds from its operations and to access capital and credit markets is 
subject to risks and uncertainties. Volatile and deteriorating financial market conditions, diminished liquidity and 
tightening credit may affect efficient access to certain of PHI's potential funding sources. See "Risk Factors" for 
additional discussion of important factors that may impact these sources of capital. 

Intemally Generated Cash 

The primary source of Pepco Holdings' internally generated funds is the cash flow generated by its 
regulated UtiUty subsidiaries in the Power Delivery business. Additional sources of funds include cash flow 
generated from its non-regulated subsidiaries and the sale of non-core assets. 

Short-Term Funding Sources 

Pepco Holdings and its regulated utiUty subsidiaries have traditionally used a number of sources to fulfiU 
short-term funding needs, such as commercial paper, short-term notes and bank lines of credit. Proceeds from 
short-term bonowings are used primarily to meet working capital needs but may also be used to fund temporarily 
long-term capital requirements. 

Pepco Holdings maintains an ongoing commercial paper program of up to $875 million. Pepco, DPL, and 
ACE have ongoing commercial paper programs of up to $500 million, up to $275 nuUion, and up to 
$250 million, respectively. The commercial paper can be issued with maturities of up to 270 days. 
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PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE maintain a credit facility which supports the issuance of commercial paper and is 
available to provide for short-term liquidity needs. 

The aggregate bonowing limit under the facUity is $1.5 billion, all or any portion of which may be used to 
obtain loans or to issue letters of credit. PHFs credit hmit under the facility is $875 million. The credit Umit of 
each of Pepco, DPL and ACE is tiie lesser of $500 nullion and the maximum amount of debt tiie company is 
permitted to have outstanding by its regulatory authorities, except that the aggregate amount of credit used by 
Pepco, DPL and ACE at any given time coUectively may not exceed $625 miUion. The interest rate payable by 
each company on utilized funds is based on the prevailing prime rate or Eurodollar rate, plus a margin that varies 
according to the credit rating of the bonower. The facihty also includes a "swingUne loan sub-facility," pursuant 
to which each company may make same day bonowings in an aggregate amount not to exceed $ 150 miUion. Any 
swingUne loan must be repaid by the bonower within seven days of receipt thereof. All indebtedness incuned 
under the facility is unsecured. 

The facility commitment expiration date is May 5, 2012, with each company having the right to elect to 
have 100% ofthe principal balance ofthe loans outstanding on the expfration date continued as non-revolving 
term loans for a period of one year from such expfration date. 

The facility is intended to serve primarily as a source of liquidity to support the commercial paper programs 
of the respective companies. The companies also are permitted to use the facility to bonow funds for general 
corporate purposes and issue letters of credit. In order for a bonower to use the facility, certain representations 
and warranties made by the borrower at ttie time the credit agreement was entered into also must be tme at the 
time the facility is utilized, and the bonower must be in compliance with specified covenants, including the 
financial covenant described below. However, a material adverse change in the bonower's business, property, 
and results of operations or financial condition subsequent to the entry into the credit agreement is not a 
condition to the availability of credit under the facility. Among the covenants to which each of the companies is 
subject are (i) the requirement that each bonowing company maintain a ratio of total indebtedness to total 
capitalization of 65% or less, computed in accordance with the terms of the credit agreement, which calculation 
excludes certain tmst prefened securities and deferrable interest subordinated debt from the definition of total 
indebtedness (not to exceed 15% of total capitalization), (ii) a restriction on sales or ottier dispositions of assets, 
other than sales and dispositions pemutted by the credit agreement, and (iii) a resttiction on the incmrence of 
Uens on the assets of a bonower or any of its significant subsidiaries other than Uens permitted by the credit 
agreement. The credit agreement does not include any rating triggers. 

Long-Term Funding Sources 

The sources of long-term funding for PHI and its subsidiaries are the issuance of debt and equity securities 
and borrowing under long-term credit agreements. Proceeds from long-term financings are used primarily to fund 
long-term capital requirements, such as capital expenditures and new investments, and to repay or refinance 
existing indebtedness. 

Regulatory Restrictions on Financing Activities 

The issuance of both debt and equity securities by the principal subsidiaries of PHI requires approval of 
either FERC or one or more state public utility commissions. Neitiier FERC approval nor state public utility 
commission approval is required as a condition to the issuance of securities by PHI. 

B-53 



State Financing Authority 

Pepco's long-term financing activities (including the issuance of securities and the incunence of debt) are 
subject to autiiorization by tiie Disttict of Columbia Public Service Commission (DCPSC) and MPSC. DPL's 
long-term financing activities are subject to authorization by MPSC and the Delaware Public Service 
Commission (DPSC). ACE's long-term and short term (consisting of debt instmments with a maturity of one 
year or less) financing activities are subject to authorization by the New Jersey Board of Public Utihties 
(NJBPU). Each utility, through periodic fihngs with the state public service conimission(s) having jurisdiction 
over its financing activities, typically maintains standing authority sufficient to cover its projected financing 
needs over a multi-year period. 

FERC Financing Authority 

Under the Federal Power Act (FPA), FERC has jurisdiction over the issuance of long-term and short-term 
securities of public utitities, but only if the issuance is not regulated by the state public utiUty commission in 
which tiie public utility is organized and operating. Under these provisions, FERC has jurisdiction over the 
issuance of short-term debt by Pepco and DPL. Because Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services also 
qualify as public utiUties under the FPA and are not regulated by a state utility commission, FERC approval 
would be required for the issuance of securities by those companies. 

To the extent FERC approval is reqitired for the issuance of securities by PHI and its subsidiaries, the 
companies, in accordance with regulations adopted by FERC, are relying on authority granted in a financing 
order issued by tiie Securities and Exchange Comirussion prior to the repeal of Public Utility Holding Company 
Act 1935 (ttie Financing Oder), which extends tiirough June 30, 2008. Prior to June 30, 2008, PHI's utiUty 
subsidiaries will file for new financing authority for the issuance of securities for which FERC approval is 
required. 

Money Pool 

Under the Financing Order, Pepco Holdings is authorized to operate a system money pool. The money pool 
is a cash management mechanism used by Pepco Holdings to manage the short-term investment and borrowing 
requirements of its subsidiaries that participate in the money pool. Pepco Holdings may invest in but not borrow 
from the money pool. Eligible subsidiaries with surplus cash may deposit tiiose funds in the money pool. 
Deposits in the money pool are guaranteed by Pepco Holdings. Ehgible subsidiaries with cash requfrements may 
borrow from the money pool. Bonowings from the money pool are unsecured. Depositors in the money pool 
receive, and bonowers from tiie money pool pay, an interest rate based primarily on Pepco Holdings' short-term 
bonowing rate. Pepco Holdings deposits funds in the money pool to the extent tiiat the pool has insufficient 
funds to meet the borrowing needs of its participants, which may require Pepco Holdings to bonow funds for 
deposit from extemal sources. After expfration ofthe Financing Order, PHI and its subsidiaries expect to engage 
in intta-system cash management programs such as the money pool under a blanket authorization adopted by 
FERC. 

REGULATORY AND OTHER MATTERS 
proceeds from Settlement of Mirant Bankruptcy Claims 

In 2000, Pepco sold substantiaUy aU of its electricity generating assets to Mirant. In 2003, Mirant 
commenced a voluntary bankmptcy proceeding in which it sought to reject certain obligations that it had 
undertaken in connection with the asset sale. As part of the asset sale, Pepco entered into the TPAs. Under a 
settlement to avoid the rejection by Mfrant of its obligations under the TPAs in the bankmptcy proceeding, the 
terms of the TPAs were modified to increase the purchase price of the energy and capacity suppUed by Mfrant 
and Pepco received the TPA Claim. In December 2005, Pepco sold the TPA Claim, plus the right to receive 
accmed interest thereon, to an unaffiliated third party for $112.5 milUon. In addition, Pepco received proceeds of 
$.5 million in settlement of an asbestos claim against the Mfrant bankmptcy estate. After customer sharing, 
Pepco recorded a pre-tax gain of $70.5 miUion from the settlement of these claims. 
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In connection with the asset sale, Pepco and Mirant also entered into a "back-to-back" arrangement, 
whereby Mirant agreed to purchase from Pepco tiie 230 megawatts of electricity and capacity ttiat Pepco is 
obligated to purchase annually through 2021 from Panda under ttie Panda PPA at ttie purchase price Pepco is 
obligated to pay to Panda. As part ofthe further settiement of Pepco's claims against Mirant arising from tiie 
Mirant bankmptcy, Pepco agreed not to contest the rejection by Mirant of its obligations under the 
"back-to-back" anangement in exchange for ttie payment by Mirant of damages cortesponding to the estimated 
amount by which the purchase price that Pepco is obUgated to pay Panda for the energy and capacity exceeded 
the market price. In 2007, Pepco received as damages $413.9 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares of 
Mirant common stock issued to it by Mirant. These funds are being accounted for as restticted cash based on 
management's intent to use such funds, and any interest eamed thereon, for the sole purpose of paying for the 
future above-market capacity and energy purchase costs under tiie Panda PPA. Correspondingly, a regulatory 
liability has been established in the same amount to help offset the future above-market capacity and energy 
purchase costs. This restricted cash has been classified as a non-current asset to be consistent with the 
classification of the non-cunent regulatory liabihty, and any changes in the balance of this restricted cash, 
including interest on the invested funds, are being accounted for as operating cash flows. 

As of December 31, 2007, the balance of the restricted cash account was $417.3 million. Based on a 
reexamination of the costs of tiie Panda PPA in light of current and projected wholesale market conditions 
conducted in the fourth quarter of 2007, Pepco determined tiiat, principaUy due to increases in wholesale capacity 
prices, ttie present value above-market cost of the Panda PPA over the term of the agreement is expected to be 
significantly less than the current amount ofthe restricted cash account balance. Accordingly, on Febmary 22, 
2008, Pepco filed applications with the DCPSC and the MPSC requesting orders directing Pepco to maintain 
$320 million in the restricted cash account and to use that cash, and any future eamings on the cash, for the sole 
purpose of paying the future above-market cost of the Panda PPA (or, in the altemative, to fund a ttansfer or 
assignment of the remaining obligations under tiie Panda PPA to a third party). Pepco also requested that the 
order provide that any cash remaining in the account at the conclusion of the Panda PPA be refunded to 
customers and that any shortfall be recovered from customers. Pepco further proposed that the excess proceeds 
remaining from the settiement (approximately $94.6 milhon, representing the amount by which the regulatory 
UabiUty of $414.6 million at December 31, 2007 exceeded $320 milhon) be shared approximately equally witii 
its customers in accordance with the procedures previously approved by each conunission for the sharing of the 
proceeds received by Pepco from the sale to Mirant of its generating assets. The regulatory UabiUty of 
$414.6 miUion at December 31, 2007 differs from the restticted cash amount of $417.3 mUlion on that date, in 
part, because the regulatory liabUity has been reduced for the portion ofthe December 2007 Panda charges in 
excess of market that had not yet been paid from the restricted cash account. The amount of the restricted cash 
balance that Pepco is permitted to retain will be recorded as earnings upon approval of the sharing arrangement 
by the respective commissions. At this time, Pepco cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

In settlement of other damages claims against Mfrant, Pepco in 2007 also received a settiement payment in 
the amount of $70.0 million. Of ttiis amount (i) $33.4 milUon was recorded as a reduction in operating expenses, 
(ii) $21.0 million was recorded as a reduction in a net pre-petition receivable claim from Mfrant, 
(iii) $15.0 million was recorded as a reduction in the capitaUzed costs of certain property, plant and equipment 
and (iv) $.6 million was recorded as a liability to reimburse a third party for certain legal costs associated with 
the settlement. 

Rate Proceedings 

In electric service distribution base rate cases filed by Pepco in the Disttict of Columbia and Maryland, and 
by DPL in Maryland, and pending in 2007, Pepco and DPL proposed the adoption of a BSA for retail customers. 
Under the BSA, customer delivery rates are subject to adjustment (through a surcharge or credit mechanism), 
depending on whether actual distribution revenue per customer exceeds or falls short of the approved 
revenue-per-customer amount. The BSA will increase rates if actual distribution revenues fall below the level 
approved by the applicable commission and will decrease rates if actual distribution revenues are above the 
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approved level. The result will be that, over time, the utility would collect its authorized revenues for distribution 
deliveries. As a consequence, a BSA "decouples" revenue from unit sales consumption and ties the growth in 
revenues to the growth in ttie number of customers. Some advantages ofthe BSA are that h (i) eliminates 
revenue fluctuations due to weather and changes in customer usage pattems and, therefore, provides for more 
predictable utility disttibution revenues that are better aligned with costs, (ii) provides for more reliable fixed-
cost recovery, (iii) tends to stabilize customers' delivery bills, and (iv) removes any disincentives for the 
regulated utilities to promote energy efficiency programs for their customers, because it breaks the hnk between 
overall sales volumes and deUvery revenues. The status of the BSA proposals in each of tiie jurisdictions is 
described below in discussion ofthe respective base rate proceedings. 

Delaware 

On September 4, 2007, DPL submitted its 2007 GCR filing to tiie DPSC. The GCR permits DPL to recover 
its gas procurement costs through customer rates. On September 18, 2007, the DPSC issued an initial order 
approving a 5.7% decrease in tiie level ofthe GCR, which became effective November 1,2007, subject to refund 
and pending final DPSC approval after evidentiary hearings. 

District of Columbia 

In December 2006, Pepco submitted an application to the DCPSC to increase electric distribution base rates, 
including a proposed BSA. The apptication to tiie DCPSC requested an annual increase of approximately 
$46.2 miUion or an overall increase of 13.5%, reflecting a proposed retum on equity (ROE) of 10.75%. In the 
alternative, the application requested an annual increase of $50.5 milhon or an overall increase of 14.8%, 
reflecting an ROE of 11.00%, if the BSA were not approved. Subsequentiy, Pepco reduced its annual revenue 
increase request to $43.4 mUlion (including a proposed BSA) and $47.9 nullion (if the BSA were not approved). 

On January 30, 2(X)8, the DCPSC approved a revenue requfrement increase of approximately $28.3 million, 
based on an authorized remm on rate base of 7.96%, including a 10% ROE. The rate increase is effective 
Febmary 20, 2008. The DCPSC, while finding the BSA lo be an appropriate ratemaking concept, cited potential 
statutory problems in the DCPSC's ability to implement tiie BSA. The DCPSC stated that it intends to issue an 
order to establish a Phase II proceeding to consider these implementation issues. 

Maryland 

On July 19, 2007, the MPSC issued orders in the electric service distribution rate cases filed by DPL and 
Pepco, each of which included approval of a BSA. The DPL order approved an annual increase in distribution 
rates of approximately $14.9 miUion (including a decrease in annual depreciation expense of approximately 
$.9 million). The Pepco order approved an annual increase in disttibution rates of approximately $10.6 milUon 
(including a decrease in annual depreciation expense of approximately $30.7 milUon). In each case, the approved 
disttibution rate reflects an ROE of 10.0%. The orders each provided that the rate increases are effective as of 
June 16, 2007, and wUl remain in effect for an initial period of nine months from tiie date ofthe order (or until 
April 19, 2008). These rates are subject to a Phase II proceeding in which the MPSC will consider the results of 
audits of each company's cost allocation manual, as filed with the MPSC, to determine whether a further 
adjustment to the rates is required. Hearings for the Phase II proceeding are scheduled for mid-March 2008. 

New Jersey 

On June 1, 2007, ACE filed with the NJBPU an application for permission to decrease the Non Utility 
Generation Charge (NGC) and increase components of its Societal Benefits Charge (SBC) to be coUected from 
customers for tiie period October 1, 2007 through September 30, 2008. The proposed changes are designed to 
effect a tme-up of tiie actual and estimated costs and revenues coUected through the current NGC and SBC rates 
through September 30,2007 and, in tiie case of the SBC, forecasted costs and revenues for the period October 1, 
2007 tiu-ough September 30, 2008. 
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As of December 31,2007, tiie NGC, which is intended primarUy to recover the above-market component of 
payments made by ACE under non-utility generation conttacts and sfranded costs associated with those 
commitments, had an over-recovery balance of $224.3 nulUon. The filing proposed that the estimated NGC 
balance as of September 30,2007 in the amount of $216.2 milUon, including interest, be amortized and returned 
to ACE customers over a four-year period, beginning October 1, 2007. 

As of December 31, 2007, tiie SBC, which is intended to allow ACE to recover certain costs involved with 
various NJBPU-mandated social programs, had an under-recovery of approximately $20.9 milUon, primarily due 
to increased costs associated with funding the New Jersey Clean Energy Program. In addition, ACE has 
requested an increase to tiie SBC to reflect tiie fundmg levels approved by tiie NJBPU of $20.4 milUon for the 
period October 1, 2007 tiirough September 30, 2008, bringing to $40 million the total recovery requested for the 
period October I, 2007 to September 30, 2008 (based upon acmal data tiuough August 2007). 

The net impact ofthe proposed adjustments to the NGC and the SBC, including associated changes in sales 
and use tax, is an overaU rate decrease of approximately $129.9 million for tiie period October 1, 2007 through 
September 30, 2008 (based upon actual data tiirough August 2007). The proposed adjustments and tiie 
cortesponding changes in customer rates are subject to the approval of ttie NJBPU. If approved and implemented, 
ACE anticipates that tiie revised rates will remain in effect until September 30, 2008, subject to an annual tme-up 
and change each year thereafter. The proposed adjustments and the conesponding changes m customer rates 
remain under review by the NJBPU and have not yet been implemented. 

ACE Restructuring Deferral Proceeding 

Pursuant to orders issued by the NJBPU under the New Jersey Electric Discount and Energy Competition 
Act (EDECA), beginning August 1, 1999, ACE was obligated to provide BGS to retail electticity customers m Us 
service territory who did not elect to purchase electricity from a competitive supplier. For tiie period August 1, 
1999 through July 31, 2003, ACE's aggregate costs that it was allowed to recover from customers exceeded its 
aggregate revenues from supplying BGS. These under-recovered costs were partially offset by a $59.3 miUion 
defened energy cost UabiUty existing as of July 31, 1999 (LEAC LiabiUty) related to ACE's LeveUzed Energy 
Adjustment Clause and ACE's Demand Side Management Programs. ACE estabUshed a regulatory asset in an 
amount equal to the balance of under-recovered costs. 

In August 2002, ACE filed a petition witii tiie NJBPU for the recovery of approxmiately $176.4 miUion in 
actual and projected deferred costs relating to the provision of BGS and other resttiicturing related costs incurred 
by ACE over tiie four-year period August 1,1999 through July 31,2003, net ofthe $59.3 mUlion offset for tiie 
LEAC Liability. The petition also requested that ACE's rates be reset as of August 1, 2003 so that there would be 
no under-recovery of costs embedded in tiie rates on or after tiiat dale. The increase sought represented an overall 
8.4% annual increase in electtic rates. 

In July 2004, the NJBPU issued a final order in tiie resttucturing defertal proceedmg conffrming a July 2003 
summary order, which (i) permitted ACE to begin collecting a portion of the deferred costs and reset rates to 
recover on-going costs incurred as a result of EDECA, (U) approved the recovery of $125 nulUon of the deferred 
balance over a ten-year amortization period beginnmg August 1, 2003, (iii) ttansferted to ACE's then pending 
base rate case for further consideration approximately $25.4 milUon of the deferted balance (the base rate case 
ended in a settlement approved by the NJBPU m May 2005, tiie result of which is that any net rate impact from 
the defenal account recoveries and credits in future years will depend in part on whether rates associated with 
other defened accounts considered in the case continue to generate over-coUections relative to costs), and 
(iv) estimated tiie overall defenal balance as of July 31, 2003 at $195.0 milUon, of which $44.6 million was 
disaUowed recovery by ACE. Altiiough ACE believes the record does not justify the level of disallowance 
imposed by tiie NJBPU in the final order, the $44.6 milUon of disallowed incurred costs were reserved during the 
years 1999 through 2(X)3 (primarily 2003) through charges to eamings, primarily in the operating expense Une 
item "defened electric service costs," with a conesponding reduction in the regulatory asset balance sheet 
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account. In 2005, an additional $1.2 million in interest on the disaUowed amount was identified and reserved by 
ACE. In August 2004, ACE filed a notice of appeal with respect to the July 2004 final order with the AppeUate 
Division of the Superior Court of New Jersey (the Appellate Division), which hears appeals of the decisions of 
New Jersey administtative agencies, including the NJBPU. On August 9, 2(X)7, the AppeUate Division, citing 
deference to the factual and policy findings of the NJBPU, affirmed the NJBPU's decision in its entirety, 
rejecting challenges from ACE and the Division of Rate Counsel. On September 10, 2007, ACE filed an 
application for certification to the New Jersey Supreme Court. On January 15, 2008, the New Jersey Supreme 
Court denied ACE's application for certification. Because the full amount at issue in this proceeding was 
previously reserved by ACE, there wUl be no further financial statement impact to ACE. 

Divestiture Cases 

District of Columbia 

Final briefs on Pepco's District of Columbia divestiture proceeds sharing apptication were filed with the 
DCPSC in July 2002 foUowing an evidentiary hearing in June 2002. That application was filed to implement a 
provision of Pepco's DCPSC-approved divestiture settiement that provided for a sharing of any net proceeds 
from the sale of Pepco's generation-related assets. One of the principal issues in the case is whether Pepco should 
be requfred to share with customers the excess defened income taxes (EDIT) and accumulated deferted 
investment tax credits (ADITC) associated with the sold assets and, if so, whether such sharing would violate the 
normalization provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code (IRC) and its implementing regulations. As of 
December 31, 2007, the District of Columbia allocated portions of EDIT and ADITC associated with the 
divested generating assets were approximately $6.5 million and $5.8 miUion, respectively. 

Pepco believes that a sharing of EDIT and ADITC would violate the Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) 
normalization mles. Under these mles, Pepco could not ttansfer the EDIT and the ADITC benefit to customers 
more quickly than on a sttaight line basis over the book life of the related assets. Since the assets are no longer 
owned by Pepco, there is no book life over which the EDIT and ADITC can be retumed. If Pepco were requfred 
to share EDIT and ADITC and, as a resuU, the normalization mles were violated, Pepco would be unable to use 
accelerated depreciation on District of Columbia allocated or assigned property. In addition to sharing with 
customers the generation-related EDIT and ADITC balances, Pepco would have to pay to the IRS an timount 
equal to Pepco's Disttict of Columbia jurisdictional generation-related ADITC balance ($5.8 milhon as of 
December 31, 2007), as well as its District of Columbia jurisdictional ttansmission and distribution-related 
ADITC balance ($4.0 million as of December 31, 2007) in each case as those balances exist as of the later of the 
date a DCPSC order is issued and all rights to appeal have been exhausted or lapsed, or the date the DCPSC 
order becomes operative. 

In March 2003, the IRS issued a notice of proposed mlemaking (NOPR), which would allow for the sharing 
of EDIT and ADITC related to divested assets with utility customers on a prospective basis and at the election of 
the taxpayer on a rettoactive basis. In December 2005 a revised NOPR was issued which, among other things, 
withdrew the March 2003 NOPR and eliminated the taxpayer's ability to elect to apply the regulation 
rettoactively. Conunents on the revised NOPR were filed in March 2(X)6, and a public hearing was held in April 
2006. Pepco filed a letter witii ttie DCPSC in January 2006, in which it has reiterated tiiat tiie DCPSC should 
continue to defer any decision on the ADITC and EDIT issues until the IRS issues final regalations or states that 
its regulations project related to this issue will be tenninated without the issuance of any regulations. Other issues 
in the divestiture proceeding deal with the tteatment of intemal costs and cost aUocations as deductions from the 
gross proceeds of the divestiture. 

Pepco believes ttiat its calculation of the District of Columbia customers' share of divestiture proceeds is 
conect. However, depending on the ultimate outcome of this proceeding, Pepco could be required to make 
additional gain-sharing payments to Disttict of Columbia customers, including the payments described aibove 
related to EDIT and ADITC. Such additional payments (which, otiier tiian the EDIT and ADITC related 
payments, cannot be estimated) would be charged to expense in the quarter and year in which a final decision is 
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rendered and could have a material adverse effect on Pepco's and PHI's results of operations for tiiose periods. 
However, neither PHI nor Pepco believes tiiat additional gain-sharing payments, if any, or the ADITC-related 
payments to the IRS, if required, would have a material adverse impact on its financial position or cash flows. 

Maryland 

Pepco filed its divestiture proceeds plan application with the MPSC in April 2001. The principal issue in the 
Maryland case is the same EDIT and ADITC sharing issue ttiat has been raised in the Disttict of Columbia case. 
See the discussion above under "Divestiture Cases—District of Columbia." As of December 31, 2007, ttie 
Maryland allocated portions of EDIT and ADITC associated with ttie divested generating assets were 
approximately $9.1 miUion and $10.4 mUUon, respectively. Other issues deal witii ttie tteatment of certain costs 
as deductions from the gross proceeds of the divestiture. In November 2003, ttie Hearing Examiner in the 
Maryland proceeding issued a proposed order with respect to the apphcation that concluded that Pepco's 
Maryland divestiture settlement agreement provided for a sharing between Pepco and customers ofthe EDIT and 
ADITC associated with the sold assets. Pepco believes that such a sharing would violate tiie normalization mles 
(discussed above) and would result in Pepco's inabiUty to use accelerated depreciation on Maryland allocated or 
assigned property. If tiie proposed order is affirmed, Pepco would have to share with its Maryland customers, on 
an approximately 50/50 basis, the Maryland allocated portion of the generation-related EDIT ($9.1 milhon as of 
December 31, 2007), and the Maryland-allocated portion of generation-related ADITC. Furthermore, Pepco 
would have to pay to the IRS an amount equal to Pepco's Maryland jurisdictional generation-related ADITC 
balance ($10.4 million as of December 31, 2007), as weU as its Maryland retail jurisdictional ADITC 
ttansmission and distribution-related balance ($7.2 million as of December 31, 2007), in each case as ttiose 
balances exist as of tiie later of the date a MPSC order is issued and all rights to appeal have been exhausted or 
lapsed, or the date the MPSC order becomes operative. The Hearing Examiner decided all other issues in favor of 
Pepco, except for the determination that only one-half of the severance payments that Pepco included in its 
calculation of corporate reorganization costs should be deducted from the sales proceeds before sharing ofthe net 
gain between Pepco and customers. Pepco filed a letter with the MPSC in January 2006, in which it has reiterated 
that the MPSC should continue to defer any decision on tiie ADITC and EDIT issues until the IRS issues final 
regulations or states that its regulations project related to this issue wiU be terminated without the issuance of any 
regulations. 

In December 2003, Pepco appealed the Hearing Examiner's decision to the MPSC as it relates to the 
tteatment of EDIT and ADITC and corporate reorganization costs. The MPSC has not issued any mhng on the 
appeal and Pepco does not beUeve that it will do so until action is taken by the IRS as described above. However, 
depending on the ultimate outcome of this proceeding, Pepco could be required to share with Us customers 
approximately 50 percent of the EDIT and ADITC balances described above in addition to the additional gain-
sharing payments relating to the disallowed severance payments. Such additional payments would be charged to 
expense in the quarter and year in which a final decision is rendered and could have a material adverse effect on 
results of operations for those periods. However, neither PHI nor Pepco believes that additional gain-sharing 
payments, if any, or the ADITC-related payments to the IRS, if required, would have a material adverse impact 
on its financial position or cash flows. 

New Jersey 

In connection with the divestiture by ACE of its nuclear generating assets, the NJBPU in July 2000 
preliminarily determined that the amount of sttanded costs associated with the divested assets that ACE could 
recover from ratepayers should be reduced by approximately $94.8 milUon, consisting of $54.1 miUion of 
accumulated deferred federal income taxes (ADFIT) associated with accelerated depreciation on the divested 
nuclear assets, and $40.7 miUion of current tax loss from selling the assets at a price below the tax basis. 

The $54.1 million in defened taxes associated with the divested assets' accelerated depreciation, however, 
is subject to the normalization mles. Due to uncertainty under federal tax law regarding whether the sharing of 
federal income tax benefits associated witii the divested assets, mcluding ADFIT related to accelerated 
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depreciation, with ACE's customers would violate the normalization rules, ACE submitted a request to the IRS 
for a Private Letter Ruhng (PLR) to clarify the applicable law. The NJBPU delayed its final determination ofthe 
amount of recoverable sttanded costs until after the receipt of the PLR. 

On May 25, 2006, the IRS issued the PLR in which it stated that retummg to ratepayers any of the 
unamortized ADFIT attributable to accelerated depreciation on the divested assets after the sale of the assets by 
means of a reduction of the amount of recoverable sttanded costs would violate the normalization mles. 

On June 9, 2006, ACE submitted a letter to the NJBPU, requesting tiiat the NJBPU conduct proceedings to 
finalize the determination ofthe sttanded costs associated with the sale of ACE's nuclear assets in accordance 
witii the PLR. In tiie absence of an NJBPU action regarding ACE's request, on June 22, 2007, ACE filed a 
motion requesting that the NJBPU issue an order finalizing the determination of such sttanded costs in 
accordance with tiie PLR. On October 24, 2007, the NJBPU approved a stipulation resolving the ADFIT issue 
and issued a clarifying order, which concludes that the $94.8 nullion in sttanded cost reduction, including the 
$54.1 nuUion in ADFIT, does not violate the IRS normalization mles. In explaining this result, die NJBPU stated 
that (i) its earUer orders determining ACE's recoverable sttanded costs "net oftax" did not cause ADFIT 
associated with certain divested nuclear assets to reduce sttanded costs otherwise recoverable from ACE's 
ratepayers, and (ii) because the Market Transition Charge-Tax component ofthe sttanded cost recovery was 
intended by the NJBPU to gross-up "net oftax" sttanded costs, thereby ensuring and establishing tiiat the ADFIT 
balance was not flowed tiirough to ratepayers, the normalization mles were not violated. 

Default Electricity Supply Proceedings 

Virginia 

In June 2007, the Virginia State Corporation Commission (VSCC) denied DPL's request for an increase in 
its rates for Default Service for the period July 1, 2007 to May 31, 2008. DPL appealed in both state and federal 
courts. Those appeals have been dismissed in light of the closing of the saleof DPL's Vfrginia electric operations 
as described below under the heading "DPL Sale of Virginia Operations." 

ACE Saie of B.L. England Generating Facility 

On Febmary 8,2007, ACE completed the sale of the B.L. England generating facihty to RC Cape May 
Holdings, LLC (RC Cape May), an affiUate of Rockland Capital Energy Investments, LLC, for which it received 
proceeds of approxmiately $9 nullion. At tiie time of the sale, RC Cape May and ACE agreed to submit to 
arbittation the issue of whether RC Cape May, under the terms of the purchase agreement, must pay to ACE an 
additional $3.1 miUion as part ofthe purchase price. On Febmary 26, 2008, the arbittators issued a decision 
awarding $3.1 million to ACE, plus interest, attomeys' fees and costs, for a total award of approximately $4.2 
miUion. 

On July 18, 2007, ACE received a claim for indemnification from RC Cape May under the purchase 
agreement. RC Cape May contends that one of ttie assets it purchased, a conttact for terminal services (TSA) 
between ACE and Citgo Asphalt Refining Co. (Citgo), has been declared by Citgo to have been tenninated due to 
a failure by ACE to renew the conttact in a timely manner. RC Cape May has commenced an arbittation 
proceeding against Citgo seeking a determination that the TSA remains in effect and has notified ACE of the 
proceeding. In addition, RC Cape May has asserted a claim for indemnification from ACE in the amount of 
$25 mUlion if the TSA is held not to be enforceable against Citgo. While ACE believes that it has defenses to the 
indemnification under the terms of the purchase agreement, should the arbittator mle that tiiie TSA has 
terminated, the outcome of this matter is uncertain. ACE notified RC Cape May of its intent to participate in the 
pending arbittation. 

The sale of B.L. England will not affect the sttanded costs associated with tiie plant that afready have been 
securitized. ACE anticipates that approximately $9 milUon to $10 million of additional regulatory assets related 
to B.L. England may, subject to NJBPU approval, be eligible for recovery as sttanded costs. Approximately $47 
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miUion in emission aUowance credits associated with B. L. England were monetized for tiie benefit of ACE's 
ratepayers pursuant to tiie NJBPU order approving tiie sale. Net proceeds from tiie sale of ttie plant and 
monetization of ttie emission allowance credits, estimated to be $32.2 million as of December 31,2007, wiU be 
credited to ACE's ratepayers in accordance with the requirements of EDECA and NJBPU orders. The 
appropriate mechanism for crediting tiie net proceeds from tiie sale of the plant and the monetized emission 
aUowance credits to ratepayers is being determined in a proceeding tiiat is cunently pending before tiie NJBPU. 

DPL Sale of Virginia Operations 

On January 2, 2008, DPL completed (i) tiie sale of its retail electtic disttibution business on tiie Eastem 
Shore of Virginia to A&N Electric Cooperative (A&N) for a purchase price of approximately $45.2 miUion, after 
closing adjustments, and (ii) the sale of its wholesale electric ttansmission business located on the Eastem Shore 
of Virginia to Old Dominion Electric Cooperative (ODEC) for a purchase price of approximately $5.4 mUUon, 
after closing adjustments. Each of A&N and ODEC assumed certain post-closing liabUities and unknown 
pre-closing liabilities related to tiie respective assets they are purchasing (including, in the A&N ttansaction, 
most envfronmental liabilities), except that DPL remained liable for unknown pre-closing liabilities if they 
become known within six months after the January 2, 2008 closing date. These sales are expected to resuh in an 
immaterial financial gain to DPL that will be recorded m tiie first quarter of 2008. 

Pepco Energy Services Deactivation of Power Plants 

Pepco Energy Services owns and operates two oU-ftted power plants. The power plants are located in 
Washington, D.C. and have a generating capacity rating of approximately 790 MW. Pepco Energy Services seUs 
the output of tiiese plants into the wholesale market administered by PJM. In Febmary 2007, Pepco Energy 
Services provided notice to PJM of its intention to deactivate ttiese plants. In May 2007, Pepco Energy Services 
deactivated one combustion turbine at its Buzzard Point facility witii a generating capacity of approximately 16 
MW. Pepco Energy Services currentiy plans to deactivate ttie balance of botii plants by May 2012. PJM has 
informed Pepco Energy Services that these facilities are not expected to be needed for reliabihty after that time, 
but that its evaluation is dependent on the completion of ttansmission upgrades. Pepco Energy Services' timing 
for deactivation of these units, in whole or in part, may be accelerated or delayed based on the operating 
condition of the units, economic conditions, and reliability considerations. Prior to deactivation ofthe plants, 
Pepco Energy Services may incur deficiency charges imposed by PJM at a rate up to two times tiie capacity 
payment price that the plants receive. Deactivation is not expected to have a material impact on PHI's fmancial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

General Litigation 

During 1993, Pepco was served witii Amended Complaints filed in tiie state Cfrcuit Courts of Prince 
George's County, Baltimore City and Baltimore County, Maryland in separate ongoing, consolidated 
proceedings known as "In re: Personal Injury Asbestos Case." Pepco and other corporate entities were brought 
into these cases on a tiieory of premises liability. Under this theory, tiie plaintiffs argued tiiat Pepco was negUgent 
in not providing a safe work envfronment for employees or its conttactors, who allegedly were exposed to 
asbestos while working on Pepco's property. hiitiaUy, a total of approximately 448 individual plaintiffs added 
Pepco to their complaints. While the pleadings are not entfrely clear, it appears that each plaintiff sought 
$2 million in compensatory damages and $4 milUon in punitive damages from each defendant. 

Since the initial filings in 1993, additional individual suits have been filed against Pepco, and significant 
numbers of cases have been dismissed. As a resuh of two motions to dismiss, numerous hearings and meetings 
and one motion for summary judgment, Pepco has had approximately 400 of these cases successfuUy dismissed 
with prejudice, either voluntarily by the plaintiff or by the court. As of December 31, 2007, there are 
approximately 180 cases still pending against Pepco in the State Courts of Maryland, of which approximately 90 
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cases were filed after December 19, 2000, and were tendered to Mirant for defense and indemnification pursuant 
to the terms of the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement between Pepco and Mirant under which Pepco sold its 
generation assets to Mirant in 2000. 

WhUe the aggregate amount of monetary damages sought in ttie remaining suits (excluding those tendered 
to Mirant) is approximately $360 miUion, PHI and Pepco beUeve the amounts claimed by cunent plaintiffs are 
greatiy exaggerated. The amount of total Uability, if any, and any related insurance recovery cannot be 
determined at this time; however, based on information and relevant circumstances known at this time, neither 
PHI nor Pepco believes these suits will have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. However, if an unfavorable decision were rendered against Pepco, it could have a 
material adverse effect on Pepco's and PHI's financial position, resuUs of operations or cash flows. 

Cash Balance Plan Litigation 

In 1999, Conectiv established a cash balance retirement plan to replace defined benefit retfrement plans then 
maintained by ACE and DPL. FoUowing the acquisition by Pepco of Conectiv, tiiis plan became the Conectiv 
Cash Balance Sub-Plan within ttie PHI Rethement Plan. In September 2005, tiiree management employees of 
PHI Service Company filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware (the Delaware District 
Court) against tiie PHI Retfrement Plan, PHI and Conectiv (the PHI Parties), alleging violations of ERISA, on 
behalf of a class of management employees who did not have enough age and service when the Cash Balance 
Sub-Plan was implemented in 1999 to assure that their accmed benefits would be calculated pursuant to the 
terms of the predecessor plans sponsored by ACE and DPL. A fourth plaintiff was added to the case to represent 
DPL-legacy employees who were not eligible for grandfathered benefits. 

The plaintiffs challenged ttie design of the Cash Balance Sub-Plan and sought a declaratory judgment that 
the Cash Balance Sub-Plan was invalid and ttiat the accmed benefits of each member of the class should be 
calculated pursuant to the terms of the predecessor plans. Specifically, the complaint alleged that the use of a 
variable rate to compute the plaintiffs' accmed benefit under the Cash Balance Sub-Plan resulted in reductions in 
the accmed benefits that violated ERISA. The complaint also alleged that the benefit accmal rates and the 
minimal accmal requirements ofthe Cash Balance Sub-Plan violated ERISA as did the notice that was given to 
plan participants upon implementation ofthe Cash Balance Sub-Plan. 

On September 19,2007, the Delaware District Court issued an order granting summary judgment in favor of 
tiie PHI Parties. On October 12, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an appeal of the decision to tiie U.S. Court of Appeals 
for tiie Thfrd Circuit. 

If the plaintiffs were to prevail in this Utigation, the ABO and projected benefit obUgation (PBO) calculated 
in accordance with SFAS No. 87 each would increase by approximately $12 milUon, assuming no change in 
benefits for persons who have afready retired or whose employment has been terminated and using actuarial 
valuation data as of the thne the suit was filed. The ABO represents ttie present value tiiat participants have 
eamed as of the date of calculation. This means that only service afready worked and compensation afready 
eamed and paid is considered. The PBO is similar to the ABO, except that the PBO includes recognition of the 
effect that estimated future pay increases would have on the pension plan obUgation. 

Environmental Litigation 

PHI, through its subsidiaries, is subject to regulation by various federal, regional, state, and local authorities 
with respect to the environmental effects of its operations, including air and water quality conttol, solid and 
hazardous waste disposal, and limitations on land use. In addition, federal and state statutes authorize 
govemmental agencies to compel responsible parties to clean up certain abandoned or umemediated hazardous 
waste sites. PHI's subsidiaries may incur costs to clean up currently or formerly owned facilities or sites found to 
be contaminated, as well as other faciUties or sites that may have been contaminated due to past disposal 
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practices. Altiiough penalties assessed for violations of envfronmental laws and regulations are not recoverable 
from customers of the operating utilities, environmental clean-up costs mcurted by Pepco, DPL and ACE would 
be included by each company in its respective cost of service for ratemaking purposes. 

Cambridge, Maryland Site. In July 2004, DPL entered into an administtative consent order (ACO) with the 
Maryland Department of tiie Environment (MDE) to perform a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) 
to further identify the extent of soil, sediment and ground and surface water contamination related to former 
MGP operations at a Cambridge, Maryland site on DPL-owned property and to investigate the extent of MGP 
contamination on adjacent property. The MDE has approved the RI and DPL submitted a final FS to MDE on 
Febmary 15, 2007. No further MDE action is requfred with respect to the final FS. The costs of cleanup (as 
determined by the RI/FS and subsequent negotiations witii MDE) are anticipated to be approximately 
$3.8 million. The remedial action to be taken by DPL will include dredging activities witiiin Cambridge Creek, 
which are expected to commence in March 2008, and soil excavation on DPL's and adjacent property as early as 
August 2008. The final cleanup costs wiU include protective measures to conttol contaminant migration during 
the dredging activities and improvements to the existing shoreUne. 

Delilah Road Landfill Site. In November 1991, tiie New Jersey Department of Envfronmental Protection 
(NJDEP) identified ACE as a PRP at tiie Delilah Road Landfill site m Egg Harbor Township, New Jersey. In 
1993, ACE, along witii otiier PRPs, signed an ACO witii NJDEP to remediate the site. The soil cap remedy for 
the site has been implemented and in August 2006, NJDEP issued a No Furtiier Action Letter (NFA) and 
Covenant Not to Sue for the site. Among other things, the NFA requfres tiie PRPs to monitor tiie effectiveness of 
institutional (deed resttiction) and engineering (cap) controls at the site every two years. In September 2007, 
NJDEP approved the PRP group's petition to conduct semi-annual, rather than quarterly, groimd water 
monitoring for two years and deferred until tiie end of the two-year period a decision on the PRP group's request 
for annual groundwater monitoring thereafter. In August 2007, the PRP group agreed to reimburse the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) costs in ttie amount of $81,400 in fuU satisfaction of EPA's claims 
for all past and futtire response costs relating to the site (of which ACE's share is one-thfrd) and in October 2007, 
EPA and the PRP group entered into a tolUng agreement to permit the parties sufficient time to execute a final 
settlement agreement. This settiement agreement wiU aUow EPA to reopen the settiement in the event of new 
information or unknown conditions at ttie site. Based on information currentiy avaUable, ACE anticipates tiiat its 
share of additional cost associated with this site for post-remedy operation and maintenance wiU be 
approximately $555,000 to $600,000. ACE believes that its liabUity for post-remedy operation and mamtenance 
costs will not have a material adverse effect on its fmancial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Frontier Chemical Site. On June 29, 2007, ACE received a letter from tfie New York Department of 
Envfronmental Conservation (NYDEC) identifying ACE as a PRP at tiie Frontier Chemical Waste Processing 
Company site in Niagara FaUs, N.Y. based on hazardous waste manifests indicating that ACE sent in excess of 
7,500 gallons of manifested hazardous waste to tiie site. ACE has entered into an agreement with the other parties 
identified as PRPs to form tiie PRP group and has informed NYDEC tiiat it has entered into good faith 
negotiations with the PRP group to address ACE's responsibility at the site. ACE believes that its responsibility 
at the site will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position, resuUs of operations or cash flows. 

Carolina Transformer Site. In August 2006, EPA notified each of DPL and Pepco ttiat they have been 
identified as entities that sent PCB-laden oil to be disposed at the Carohna Transformer site in FayetteviUe, North 
Carolina. The EPA notification stated ttiat, on ttiis basis, DPL and Pepco may be PRPs. In December 2007, DPL 
and Pepco agreed to enter into a settiement agreement witii EPA and the PRP group at tiie Carolina Transformer 
site. Under tiie terms of ttie settlement, (i) Pepco and DPL each will pay $162,000 to EPA to resolve any UabiUty 
that it might have at the site, (ii) EPA covenants not to sue or bring administtative action against DPL and Pepco 
for response costs at the site, (iii) other PRP group members release all rights for cost recovery or contribution 
claims they may have against DPL and Pepco, and (iv) DPL and Pepco release all rights for cost recovery OT 
contribution claims that they may have against other parties settiing witii EPA. The consent decree is expected to 
be filed with the U.S. District Court in North CaroUna in the second quarter of 2008. 
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Deepwater Generating Station. On December 27, 2005, NJDEP issued a Title V Operating Permit for 
Conectiv Energy's Deepwater Generating Station. The permit includes new Umits on unit heat input. In order to 
comply with these new operational limits, Conectiv Energy restricted the output of the Deepwater Generating 
Station's Unit 1 and UnU 6. In 2006 and the first half of 2007, these restrictions resulted in operating losses of 
approximately $10,000 per operating day on Unit 6, primarily because of lost revenues due to reduced output, 
and to a lesser degree because of lost revenues related to capacity requirements of PJM. Since June I, 2007, 
Deepwater Unit 6 can operate within tiie heat input limits set forth in the Titie V Operating Permit without 
restricting output, because of technical improvements that partiaUy conected the inherent bias in the continuous 
emissions monitoring system that had caused recorded heat input to be higher than actual heat input. In order to 
comply with the heat input Umit at Deepwater Unit I, Conectiv Energy continues to resttict Unit 1 output, 
resulting in operating losses of approximately $500,0(X) in the second half of 2007 and projected operating losses 
in 2008 of approximately $500,000, due to penalties and lost revenues related to PJM capacity requirements. 
Beyond 2008, while penalties due to PJM capacity requirements are not expected, furtiier operating losses due to 
lost revenues related to PJM capacity requirements may continue to be incurred. The operating losses due to 
reduced output on Unit 1 have been, and are expected to continue to be, insignificant. Conectiv Energy is 
challenging these heat input resttictions and other provisions of the Titie V Operating Permit for Deepwater 
Generating Station in the New Jersey Office of Administtative Law (OAL). On October 2, 2007, the OAL issued 
a decision granting summary decision in favor of Conectiv Energy, finding that hourly heat input shall not be 
used as a condition or Umit for Conectiv Energy's electric generating operations. On October 26, 2007, the 
NJDEP Commissioner denied NJDEP's request for interlocutory review of the OAL order and determined that 
the Commissioner would review the October 2, 2007 order upon completion of the proceeding on Conectiv 
Energy's other chaUenges to the Deepwater Titie V permit. A hearing on the remaining challenged Title V permit 
provisions is scheduled for mid-April 2008. 

On April 3, 2007, NJDEP issued an Administtative Order and Notice of Civil Administtative Penalty 
Assessment (the Ffrst Order) alleging that at Conectiv Energy's Deepwater Generating Station, the maximum 
gross heat input to Unit 1 exceeded the maximum allowable heat input in calendar year 2005 and the maximum 
gross heat input to Unit 6 exceeded the niaximum allowable heat input in calendar years 2005 and 2006. The 
order required the cessation of operation of Units I and 6 above the alleged pemutted heat input levels, assessed 
a penalty of approximately $1.1 miUion and requested that Conectiv Energy provide addhional information about 
heat input lo Units 1 and 6. Conectiv Energy provided NJDEP Units 1 and 6 calendar year 2004 heat input data 
on May 9, 2007, and calendar years 1995 to 2003 heat input data on July 10, 2007. On May 23, 2007, NJDEP 
issued a second Adnunisttative Order and Notice of Civil Administtative Penalty Assessment (the Second Order) 
alleging tiiat the maximum gross heat input to Units I and 6 exceeded the maximum allowable heat input in 
calendar year 2004. The Second Order requfred the cessation of operation of Units 1 and 6 above the alleged 
permitted heat input levels and assessed a penalty of $811,600. Conectiv Energy has requested a contested case 
hearing challenging the issuance of the First Order and the Second Order and moved for a stay of the orders 
pending resolution of the Title V Operating Permit contested case described above. On November 29, 2007, the 
OAL issued orders placing the First Order and the Second Order on the inactive list for six montiis. UntU the 
OAL decision discussed above is final, it will not have an impact on these cunently inactive enforcement cases. 

IR$ Examination of Like-Kind Exchange Transaction 

In 2001, Conectiv and certain of its subsidiaries (the Conectiv Group) were engaged in the implementation 
of 2L sttategy to divest non-stt^tegic electric generating facilities and replace these faciUties with mid-merit 
electric generating capacity. As part of this strategy, the Conectiv Group exchanged its interests in two older 
coal-fired plants for the more efficient gas-fired Hay Road 11 generating facUity, which was owned by an 
unaffiUated third party. For tax purposes, Conectiv tteated the transaction as a "like-kind exchange" under IRC 
Section 1031. As a result, approximately $88 million of taxable gain was deferred for federal income tax 
purposes. 
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The ttansaction was examined by the IRS as part of tiie normal Conectiv tax audit. In May 2006, the IRS 
issued a revenue agent's report (RAR) for the audit of Conectiv's 2000, 2001 and 2002 income tax retums, m 
which the IRS disallowed the qualification of tiie exchange under IRC Section 1031. In July 2006, Conectiv filed 
a protest of this disallowance to the IRS Office of Appeals. 

PHI believes that its tax position related to this ttansaction is proper based on appUcable statutes, regulations 
and case law and is contesting the disaUowance. However, there is no absolute assurance ttiat Conectiv's position 
wiU prevail. If the IRS prevails, Conectiv would be subject to additional income taxes, interest and possible 
penalties. However, a portion of the denied benefit would be offset by additional tax depreciation. PHI has 
accmed approximately $4.9 million related to this matter. 

As of December 31, 2007, if the IRS were to fully prevail, the potential cash impact on PHI would be 
cunent income tax and interest payments of approximately $31.2 nulUon and the eamings impact would be 
approximately $9.8 million in after-tax interest. 

Federal Tax Treatment of Cross-Border Leases 

PCI maintains a portfolio of cross-border energy sale-leaseback ttansactions, which, as of December 31, 
2007, had a book value of approximately $1.4 billion, and from which PHI currently derives approximately $60 
million per year in tax benefits in the form of interest and depreciation deductions. 

In 2005, ttie Treasury Department and IRS issued Notice 2005-13 informing taxpayers tiiat tiie IRS intends 
to challenge on various grounds the purported tax benefits claimed by taxpayers entering into certain sale-
leaseback ttansactions with tax-indifferent parties (i.e., municipalities, tax-exempt and governmental entities), 
including those entered into on or prior to March 12, 2004 (the Notice). All of PCI's cross-border energy leases 
are with tax indifferent parties and were entered into prior to 2004. Also in 2005, the IRS published a 
Coordinated Issue Paper conceming the resolution of audit issues related to such ttansactions. PCI's cross-border 
energy leases are similar to those sale-leaseback ttansactions described in the Notice and the Coordinated Issue 
Paper. 

PCI's leases have been under examination by tiie IRS as part of the normal PHI tax audit. In 2006, ttie IRS 
issued its final RAR for its audit of PHI's 2001 and 2002 income tax retums. In the RAR, ttie IRS disallowed tiie 
tax benefits claimed by PHI with respect to these leases for those years. The t£ix benefits claimed by PHI with 
respect to these leases from 2001 through December 31,2007 were approximately $347 million. PHI has filed a 
protest against the IRS adjustments and the unresolved audit has been forwarded to the U.S. Office of Appeds. 
The ultimate outcome of this issue is uncertain; however, if the IRS prevails, PHI would be subject to additional 
taxes, along with interest and possibly penalties on the additional taxes, which could have a material adverse 
effect on PHI's financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. PHI beUeves that its tax position related 
to these ttansactions was appropriate based on appUcable statutes, regulations and case law, and intends to 
contest the adjustments proposed by the IRS; however, there is no assurance that PHI's position will prevail. 

In 2006, tiie FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) on Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) 13-2, which 
amends SFAS No. 13 effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. This amendment requfres a 
lease to be repriced and the book value adjusted when there is a change or probable change in the tinting of tax 
benefits of the lease, regardless of whether the change resuUs in a defertal or permanent loss of tax benefits. 
Accordingly, a material change in the timing of cash flows under PHI's cross-border leases as tiie result of a 
settiement with tiie IRS would require an adjustment to the book value ofthe leases and a charge to eamings 
equal to the repricing impact of the disallowed deductions which could result in a material adverse effect on 
PHFs financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. PHI believes its tax position was appropriate and 
at this time does not believe there is a probable change in the timing of its tax benefits that would require 
repricing the leases and a charge to eamings. 
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On December 14,2007 the U.S. Senate passed its version of tiie Farm, Nuttition, and Bioenergy Act of 2007 
(H.R. 2419), which contains a provision that would apply passive loss hmitation mles to leases with foreign tax 
indifferent parties effective for taxable years beginning after December 31,2006, even if the leases were entered 
into on or prior to March 12,2004. The U.S. House of Representatives version of this proposed legislation which 
it passed on July 27,2007 does not contain any provision that would modify the current tteatment of leases with 
tax indifferent parties. Enactment into law of a bill that is similar to that passed by the U.S. Senate in its current 
form could result in a material delay of the income tax benefits that PHI would receive in connection with its 
cross-border energy leases. Furthermore, if legislation of tiiis type were to be enacted, under FSP FAS 13-2, PHI 
would be required to adjust the book value of the leases and record a charge to eamings equal to the repricing 
impact of the defened deductions which could result in a material adverse effect on PHI's financial condition, 
results of operations and cash-flows. The U.S. House of Representatives and the U.S. Senate are expected to hold 
a conference in the near future to reconcile the differences in the two bills to determine tiie final legislation. 

IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue 

During 2001, Pepco, DPL, and ACE changed their methods of accounting with respect to capitalizable 
construction costs for income tax purposes. The change allowed the compaiues to accelerate the deduction of 
certain expenses that were previously capitahzed and depreciated. Through December 31,2005, these accelerated 
deductions generated incremental tax cash flow benefits of approximately $205 milUon (consisting of $94 
trulUon for Pepco, $62 million for DPL, and $49 milUon for ACE) for the compaiues, primarily attributable to 
thefr 2001 tax retums. 

In 2005, the Treasiuy Department released proposed regulations that, if adopted in thefr curtent form, would 
requfre Pepco, DPL, and ACE to change thefr method of accounting with respect to capitalizable constmction 
costs for income tax purposes for tax periods beginning in 2005. Based on those proposed regulations, PHI in its 
2005 federal tax retum adopted an alternative method of accounting for capitalizable constmction costs tiiat 
management believes wiU be acceptable to the IRS. 

At the same time as the new proposed regulations were released, the IRS issued Revenue RuUng 2005-53, 
which is intended to limit the abihty of certain taxpayers to utilize the method of accounting for income tax 
purposes for 2004 and prior years with respect to capitalizable constmction costs. In line with ttiis Revenue 
Ruhng, the IRS RAR for the 2001 and 2002 tax retums disallowed substantially all ofthe incremental tax 
benefits that Pepco, DPL and ACE had claimed on those returns by requiring the companies to capitalize and 
depreciate certain expenses rather than tteat such expenses as current deductions. PHFs protest ofthe IRS 
adjustments is among the unresolved audit matters relating to the 2001 and 2002 audits pending before the 
Appeals Office. 

In Febmary 2006, PHI paid approximately $121 million of taxes to cover the amount of additional taxes that 
management estimated to be payable for the years 2001 through 2004 based on the method of tax accounting that 
PHI, pursuant to the proposed regulations, has adopted on its 2005 tax retum. However, if the IRS is successful 
in requiring Pepco, DPL and ACE to capitalize and depreciate constmction costs that result in a tax and interest 
assessment greater than management's estimate of $121 miUion, PHI will be requfred to pay additional taxes and 
interest only to the extent these adjustments exceed the $121 miUion payment made in February 2006. It is 
reasonably possible that PHTs ururecognized tax benefits related to this issue wiU significantiy decrease in the 
next 12 months as a resuh of a settiement with the IRS. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 

Pepco Holdings has identified the following accounting poUcies, including certain estimates, that as a result 
of the judgments, uncertainties, uniqueness and complexities ofthe underlying accounting standards and 
operations involved, could result in material changes to its financial condition or results of operations under 
different conditions or using different assumptions. Pepco Holdings has discussed the development, selection and 
disclosure of each of tiiese policies witti tiie Audit Committee of tiie Board of Directors. 

GoodwUl Impairment Evaluation 

Pepco Holdings believes that the estimates involved in its goodwiU impairment evaluation process represent 
"Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) they may be susceptible to change from period to period because 
management is required to make assumptions and judgments about the discounting of future cash flows, which 
are inherently uncertain, (ii) actual results could vary from tiiose used in Pepco Holdings' estimates and the 
impact of such variations could be material, and (iii) the impact that recognizing an impahment would have on 
Pepco Holdings' assets and the net loss related to an impairment charge could be material. 

Pepco Holdings tests its goodwill for impairment annually as of July I, and whenever an event occurs or 
circumstances change in tiie interim that would more likely than not reduce the fafr value of a reporting unit 
below its carrying amount. SubstantiaUy all of Pepco Holdings' goodwill was generated by Pepco's acquisition 
of Conectiv in 2002 and was allocated to Pepco Holdings' Power DeUvery segment. In order to estimate the fafr 
value of its Power Delivery segment, Pepco Holdings discounts the estimated future cash flows associated with 
the segment using a discounted cash flow model with a single interest rate that is commensurate witii the risk 
involved witii such an investment. The estimation of fafr value is dependent on a number of factors, including but 
not limited to interest rates, future growtii assumptions, operating and capital expenditure requirements and other 
factors, changes in which could materially impact the results of impairment testing. Pepco Holdings' July 1, 2(K)7 
goodwill impairment testing indicated that its goodwUl balance was not impaired. A hypotiietical decrease in the 
Power Delivery segment's forecasted cash flows of 10 percent would not have resulted in an impairment charge. 

Long-Lived Assets Impairment Evaluation 

Pepco Holdings believes tiiat tiie estimates involved in its long-lived asset impafrment evaluation process 
represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) tiiey are highly susceptible to change from period to period 
because management is required to make assumptions and judgments about undiscounted and discounted future 
cash flows and fair values, which are inherentiy uncertain, (ii) actual results could vary from those used in Pepco 
Holdings' estimates and tiie impact of such variations could be material, and (iii) ttie impact tiiat recognizing an 
impairment would have on Pepco Holdings' assets as well as the net loss related to an impafrment charge could 
be material. 

SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for ttie Impafrment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," requfres ttiat certain 
long-lived assets must be tested for recoverabUity whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss may only be recognized if ttie canying amount of an asset is 
not recoverable and the carrying amount exceeds its fair value. The asset is deemed not to be recoverable when 
its carrying amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and 
eventual disposition of the asset. In order to estimate an asset's future cash flows, Pepco Holdings considers 
historical cash flows. Pepco Holdings uses its best estimates in making these evaluations and considers various 
factors, including forward price curves for energy, fuel costs, legislative inhiatives, and operating costs. If 
necessary, the process of determining fafr value is done consistent with the process described m assessing the fafr 
value of goodwill, which is discussed above. 

For a discussion of PHI's impairment losses during 2007, refer to the "Impairment Losses" section in the 
accompanying Consolidated ResuUs of Operations discussion. 
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Accounting for Derivatives 

Pepco Holdings believes that the estimates involved in accounting for its derivative instmments represent 
"Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) the fair value of the instmments are highly susceptible to changes in 
market value and/or interest rate fluctuations, (ii) there are significant uncertainties in modeUng techniques used 
to measure fafr value in certain circumstances, (iii) actual results could vary from those used in Pepco Holdings' 
estimates and the impact of such variations could be material, and (iv) changes in fafr values and market prices 
could result in material impacts to Pepco Holdings' assets, habilities, other comprehensive income (loss), and 
results of operations. See Note (2), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Accounting for Derivatives" 
to the consolidated financial statements of PHI for information on PHFs accounting for derivatives. 

Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries use derivative instmments primarily to manage risk associated with 
conunodity prices and interest rates. SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instmments and Hedging 
Activities," as amended, govems the accounting tteatment for derivatives and requires that derivative instruments 
be measured at fair value. The fair value of derivatives is determined using quoted exchange prices where 
available. For instmments that are not ttaded on an exchange, extemal broker quotes are used to determine fair 
value. For some custom and complex instmments, an intemal model is used to interpolate broker quality price 
information. The same valuation methods are used to determine the value of non-derivative, commodity exposure 
for risk management purposes. 

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 

Pepco Holdings beUeves that the estimates involved in reporting the costs of providing pension and other 
posttetfrement benefits represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) they are based on an acmarial 
calculation that includes a number of assumptions which are subjective in nature, (U) they are dependent on 
numerous factors resulting from actual plan experience and assumptions of fiiture experience, and (Ui) changes in 
assumptions could impact Pepco Holdings' expected future cash funding requfrements for the plans and would 
have an impact on the projected benefit obligations, the reported pension and other posttetirement benefit 
hability on the balance sheet, and the reported annual net periodic pension and otiier posttetfrement benefit cost 
on the income statement. In terms of quantifying the anticipated impact of a change in assumptions, Pepco 
Holdings estimates that a .25% change in the discount rate used to value the benefit obligations could resuU in a 
$5 miUion impact on its consolidated balance sheets and statements of eamings. Additionally, Pepco Holdings 
estimates that a .25% change in the expected rettun on plan assets could result in a $4 miUion impact on the 
consoUdated balance sheets and statements of eamings and a .25% change in the assumed healthcare cost trend 
rate could result in a $.5 miUion impact on its consolidated balance sheets and statements of eamings. Pepco 
Holdings' management consults with its actuaries and investment consultants when selecting its plan 
assumptions. 

Pepco Holdings follows die guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," SFAS 
No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Posttetfrement Benefits Other Than Pensions," and SFAS No. 158, 
"Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Posttetirement Plans, an amendment of FASB 
Statements No, 87, 88,106 and 132(R)" (SFAS No. 158), when accounting for these benefits. Under these 
accounting standards, assumptions are made regarding the valuation of benefit obligations and the performance 
of plan assets. In accordance with these standards, the impact of changes in these assumptions and the difference 
between actual and expected or estimated results on pension and posttetirement obligations is generally 
recognized over the working lives of the employees who benefit under the plans rather than immediately 
recognized in the statements of eamings. Plan assets are stated at their market value as of the measurement date, 
which is December 31. 
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Regulation of Power Delivery Operations 

The requirements of SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for ttie Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," apply to 
the Power DeUvery businesses of Pepco, DPL, and ACE. Pepco Holdings believes that the judgment involved in 
accounting for its regulated activities represent "Critical Accounting Estimates" because (i) a sigruficant amount 
of judgment is required (including but not limited to the interpretation of laws and regulatory commission orders) 
to assess the probability of the recovery of regulatory assets, (ii) actual results and interpretations could vary 
from those used in Pepco Holdings' estimates and die impact of such variations could be material, and (iu) the 
impact that writing off a regulatory asset would have on Pepco Holdings' assets and the net loss related to the 
charge could be material. 

UnbiHed Revenue 

Unbilled revenue represents an estimate of revenue eamed from services rendered by Pepco Holdings' 
utility operations that have not yet been billed. Pepco Holdings' utility operations calculate unbiUed revenue 
using an output based methodology. This methodology is based on the supply of electricity or gas distributed to 
customers. Pepco Holdings believes that the estimates involved in its unbilled revenue process represent "Critical 
Accounting Estimates" because management is required to make assumptions and judgments about input factors 
such as customer sales mix and estimated power line losses (estimates of electricity expected to be lost in the 
process of its transmission and distribution to customers), all of which are inherently uncertain and susceptible to 
change from period to period, the impact of which could be material. 

Accounting for Income Taxes 

Pepco Holdings and the majority of its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax retum. Pepco 
Holdings accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" and 
effective January 1, 2007, adopted FIN 48 "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes". FIN 48 clarifies the 
criteria for recognition of tax benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 109, and prescribes a financial statement 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. 
Specifically, it clarifies that an entity's tax benefits must be "more likely than not" of bemg sustained assuming 
ttiat position will be examined by taxing authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information prior to 
recording the related tax benefit in the financial statements. If tiie position drops below tiie "more likely than not" 
standard, the benefit can no longer be recognized. 

Assumptions, judgment and the use of estimates are required in determining if tiie "more likely than not" 
standard has been met when developing the provision for income taxes. Pepco Holdings' assumptions, judgments 
and estimates take into account cunent tax laws, interpretation of cunent tax laws and the possible outcomes of 
curtent and future investigations conducted by tax authorities. Pepco Holdings has established reserves few: 
income taxes to address potential exposures involving tax positions that could be challenged by tax authorities. 
Although Pepco Holdings believes that these assumptions, judgments and estimates are reasonable, changes in 
tax laws or its interpretation of tax laws and the resolutions of the cunent and any future investigations could 
significantly impact the amounts provided for income taxes in the consoUdated financial statements. 

Under SFAS No. 109, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded, representing future effects on 
income taxes for temporary differences between the bases of assets and liabilities for fmancial reporting and tax 
purposes. Pepco Holdings evaluates quarterly the probability of realizing defened tax assets by reviewing a 
forecast of future taxable income and the availability of tax planning sttategies that can be implemented, if 
necessary, to realize deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income or successfully implement 
lax planning strategies may affect the realization of deferred tax assets. 
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New Accounting Standards and Pronouncements 

For information conceming new accounting standards and pronouncements that have recentiy been adopted by 
PHI and its subsidiaries or that one or more of the companies wiU be requfred to adopt on or before a specified date 
in the future, see Note (2) "Summary of Significant Accounting PoUcies—^Newly Adopted Accounting Standards 
and Recentiy Issued Accounting PoUcies, Not Yet Adopted" to the consoUdated fmancial statements of PHI. 

RISK FACTORS 

The businesses of PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including the 
events or conditions identified below. The occunence of one or more of these events or conditions could have an 
adverse effect on tiie business of any one or more of tiie compaiues, including, depending on the circumstances, 
its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Unless otherwise noted, each risk factor set fortii 
below appUes to each of PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE. 

PHI and its subsidiaries are subject to substantial governmental regulation, and unfavorable regulatory 
treatment could have a negative effect. 

PHI's Power Delivery businesses are subject to regulation by various federal, state and local regulatory 
agencies tiiat sigruficantiy affects their operations. Each of Pepco, DPL and ACE is regulated by state regulatory 
agencies in its service territories, with respect to, among other things, the rates it can charge retail customers for 
the supply and distribution of electricity (and additionally for DPL the supply and distribution of natural gas). In 
addition, the rates that the companies can charge for electricity ttansmission are regulated by FERC, and DPL's 
natural gas ttansportation is regulated by FERC. The companies cannot change supply, distribution, or 
ttansmission rates without approval by the applicable regulatory authority. While ttie approved distribution and 
ttansmission rales are mtended lo permit the companies to recover thefr costs of service and eam a reasonable 
rate of remm, the profitability of the companies is affected by the rates they are able to charge. In addition, if the 
costs incurred by any ofthe companies in operating its ttansmission and disttibution facilities exceed the allowed 
amounts for costs included in the approved rates, the financial results of tiiat company, and conespondingly, PHI, 
will be adversely affected. 

PHFs subsidiaries also are required to have numerous permits, approvals and certificates from govemmental 
agencies ttiat regulate thefr businesses. PHI believes that each of its subsidiaries has, and each of Pepco, DPL and 
ACE believes it has, obtained or sought renewal of the material permits, approvals and certificates necessary for 
its existing operations and that its business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws; however, none of 
the companies is able to predict the impact of future regulatory activhies of any of these agencies on its business. 
Changes in or reinterpretations of existing laws or regulations, or the imposition of new laws or regulations, may 
requfre any one or more of PHI's subsidiaries to incur additional expenses or significant capital expenditures or 
to change the way it conducts its operations. 

Pepco may be required to make additional divestiture proceeds gain-sharing payments to customers in the 
District of Columbia and^Maryland, 

Pepco cmrently is involved in regulatory proceedings in Maryland and the District of Columbia related to 
the sharing of the net proceeds fix>m the sale of its generation-related assets. The principal issue in the 
proceedings is whether Pepco should be required to share with customers the excess deferred income taxes and 
accumulated deferred investment tax credits associated with the sold assets and, if so, whether such sharing 
would violate the normalization provisions ofthe Intemal Revenue Code and its implementing regulations. 
Depending on the outcome of the proceedings, Pepco could be required to make additional gain-sharing 
payments to customers and payments to the Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) in the amount of the associated 
accumulated deferred investment tax credits, and Pepco might be unable to use accelerated depreciation on 
District of Columbia and Maryland allocated or assigned property. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Regulatory and Other Matters—Divestimre Cases" for 
additional information. 
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The operating results ofthe Power Delivery business and the Competitive Energy businesses fluctuate on a 
seasonal basis and can be adversely affected by changes in weather. 

The Power Delivery business is seasonal and weather patterns can have a material impact on their operating 
performance. Demand for electricity is generally higher in the summer montiis associated with coohng and 
demand for electticity and natural gas is generally higher in the winter months associated with heating as 
compared to other times of the year. Accordingly, each of PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE has generated less revenue 
and income when temperatures are warmer than normal in the winter and cooler than normal in the summer. In 
Maryland, however, the decoupling of distribution revenue for a given reporting period, from the amount of 
power delivered during the period as the result of tiie adoption by the MPSC of a bill stabilization adjustment 
mechanism for retail customers, has had the effect of eliminating changes in customer usage due to weather 
conditions or for other reasons as a factor having an impact on reported revenue and income. 

Historically, the competitive energy operations of Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services also have 
produced less revenue when weather conditions are milder than normal, which can negatively impact PHI's 
income from these operations. The Competitive Energy businesses' energy management services generally are 
not seasonal. 

Facilities may not operate as planned or may require significant maintenance expenditures, which could 
decrease revenues or increase expenses. 

Operation of the Pepco, DPL and ACE tt^msmission and distribution facilities and ttie Competitive Energy 
businesses' generation facilities involves many risks, including the breakdown or failure of equipment, accidents, 
labor disputes and performance below expected levels. Older facilities and equipment, even if maintained in 
accordance with sound engineering practices, may require significant capital expenditures for additions or 
upgrades to keep them operating at peak efficiency, to comply with changing environmental requirements, or to 
provide reliable operations. Natural disasters and weather-related incidents, including tomadoes, hurricanes and 
snow and ice storms, also can dismpt generation, ttansmission and disttibution delivery systems. Operation of 
generation, transmission and distribution faciUties below expected capacity levels can reduce revenues and result 
in the incunence of additional expenses that may not be recoverable from customers or through insurance, 
including deficiency charges imposed by PJM on generation facilities at a rate up to two times the capacity 
payment price which the generation facility receives. Furthermore, if the company owning the facilities is unable 
to perform its conttactual obligations for any of these reasons, that company, and conespondingly PHI, may 
incur penalties or damages. 

The transmission facilities ofthe Power DeUvery business are interconnected with the faciUties of other 
transmission facility owners whose actions could have a negative impact on operations. 

The electricity transmission facilities of Pepco, DPL and ACE are directly interconnected with the 
transmission facilities of contiguous utiUties and, as such, are part of an interstate power ttansmission grid. FERC 
has designated a number of regional ttansmission orgaruzations to coordinate the operation of portions ofthe 
interstate transmission grid. Pepco, DPL and ACE are members of tiie PJM RTO. In 1997, FERC approved PJM 
as the sole provider of ttansmission service in the PJM RTO region, which today consists of all or parts of 
Delaware, Ulinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North CaroUna, Ohio, Pennsylvania, 
Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and the Disttict of Columbia. Pepco, DPL and ACE operate their 
transmission facUities under the direction and conttol of PJM. PJM RTO and tiie otiier regional transmission 
organizations have established sophisticated systems that are designed to ensure the reliability of the operation of 
transmission facilities and prevent the operations of one utihty from having an adverse impact on tiie operations 
of the other utiUties. However, the systems put in place by PJM RTO and the other regional ttansmission 
organizations may not always be adequate to prevent problems at other utilities from causing service 
intermptions in the transmission facilities of Pepco, DPL or ACE. If any of Pepco, DPL or ACE were to suffer 
such a service intermption, it could have a negative impact on it and on PHI. 
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The cost of compliance with environmental laws, including laws relating to emissions of greenhouse gases, 
is significant and new environmental laws may increase expenses. 

The operations of PHI's subsidiaries, including Pepco, DPL and ACE, are subject to extensive federal, state 
and local environmental statutes, mles and regulations relating to air quality, water quality, spUl prevention, 
waste management, natural resources, site remediation, and health and safety. These laws and regulations can 
require sigruficant capital and other expenditures to, among other things, meet emissions standards, conduct site 
remediation and perform environmental monitoring. If a company fails to comply with applicable environmental 
laws and regulations, even if caused by factors beyond its control, such failure could result in the assessment of 
civil or criminal penalties and liabilities and the need to expend significant sums to come into compliance. 

In addition, PHI's subsidiaries are required to obtain and comply with a variety of envfronmental permits, 
licenses, inspections and other approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required environmental regulatory 
approval, or if there is a failure to obtain, maintain or comply with any such approval, operations at affected 
faciUties could be halted or subjected to additional costs. 

There is growing concem at the federal and state levels about CO2 and other greenhouse gas emissions. As a 
result, it is possible that state and federal regulations will be developed that wUl impose more stringent 
limitations on emissions than are currentiy in effect. Any of these factors could result in increased capital 
expenditures and/or operating costs for one or more generating plants operated by PHI's Conectiv Energy and 
Pepco Energy Services businesses. Until specific regulations are promulgated, the impact that any new 
environmental regulations, voluntary compliance guidelines, enforcement initiatives, or legislation may have on 
the results of operations, financial position or Uquidity of PHI and its subsidiaries is not determinable. 

PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE each continues to monitor federal and state activity related to environmental 
matters in order to analyze thefr potential operational and cost implications. 

New environmental laws and regulations, or new interpretations of existing laws and regulations, could 
impose more stringent linutations on the operations of PHI's subsidiaries or require them to incur significant 
additional costs. Cunent compliance sttategies may not successfully address the relevant standards and 
interpretations of the future. 

Failure to retain and attract key skilled prof essional and technical employees could have an adverse effect 
on the operations. 

The ability of each of PHI and its subsidiaries, including Pepco, DPL and ACE, to implement its business 
sttategy is dependent on its ability to recmit, retain and motivate employees. Competition for skiUed employees 
in some areas is high and the inability to retain and atttact these employees could adversely affect the company's 
business, operations and financial condition. 

PHI's Competitive Energy businesses are highly competitive. 

The unregulated energy generation, supply and marketing businesses primarily in the mid-Atlantic region 
are characterized by intense competition at both ttie wholesale and retail levels. PHI's Competitive Energy 
businesses compete with numerous non-utility generators, independent power producers, wholesale and retail 
energy marketers, and traditional utilities. This competition generally has the effect of reducing margins and 
requires a continual focus on conttolling costs. 

B-72 



PHVs Competitive Energy businesses rely on some generation, transmission, storage, and distribution 
assets that they do not own or control to deliver wholesale and retail electricity and natural gas and to 
obtain fuel for their generation facilities. 

PHI's Competitive Energy businesses depend upon electric generation and ttansmission facilities, natural 
gas pipelines, and natural gas storage facilities owned and operated by others. The operation of their generation 
facilities also depends upon coal, natural gas or diesel fuel supplied by others. If electric generation or 
ttansmission, natural gas pipelines, or natural gas storage are dismpted or capacity is inadequate or unavailable, 
the Competitive Energy businesses' ability to buy and receive and/or sell and deliver wholesale and retail power 
and natural gas, and therefore to fulfill their contractual obligations, could be adversely affected. Similarly, if the 
fuel supply to one or more of their generation plants is dismpted and storage or other altemative sources of 
supply are not available, the Competitive Energy businesses' ability to operate their generating facilities could be 
adversely affected. 

Changes in technology may adversely affect the Power DeUvery business and PHVs Competitive Energy 
businesses. 

Research and development activities are ongoing to improve altemative technologies to produce electricity, 
including fuel cells, micro turbines and photovoltaic (solar) ceUs. It is possible that advances in these or other 
ahemative technologies will reduce the costs of electricity production from these technologies, thereby making 
the generating facUities of PHI's Competitive Energy businesses less competitive. In addition, increased 
conservation efforts and advances in technology could reduce demand for electticity supply and distribution, 
which could adversely affect the Power Delivery businesses of Pepco, DPL and ACE and PHI's Competitive 
Energy businesses. Changes in technology also could alter the channels tiirough which retail electric customers 
buy electricity, which could adversely affect the Power DeUvery businesses of Pepco, DPL and ACE. 

PHPs risk management procedures may not prevent losses in the operation of its Competitive Energy 
businesses. 

The operations of PHTs Competitive Energy businesses are conducted in accordance with sophisticated risk 
management systems that are designed to quantify risk. However, actual results sometimes deviate from modeled 
expectations. In particular, risks in PHFs energy activities are measured and monitored utUizing value-at-risk 
models to determine the effects of potential one-day favorable or unfavorable price movements. These esthnates 
are based on historical price volatiUty and assume a normal distribution of price changes and a 95% probabiUty 
of occunence. Consequentiy, if prices significantiy deviate from historical prices, PHI's risk management 
systems, including assumptions supporting risk limits, may not protect PHI from significant losses. In addition, 
adverse changes in energy prices may result in economic losses in PHI's eamings and cash flows and reductions 
in the value of assets on its balance sheet under appUcable accounting mles. 

The commodity hedging procedures used by PHI's Competitive Energy businesses may not protect them 
from significant losses caused by volatile commodity prices. 

To lower the financial exposure related to commodity price fluctuations, PHI's Competitive Energy 
businesses routinely enter into conttacts to hedge the value of their assets and operations. As part of this strategy, 
PHI's Competitive Energy businesses utilize fixed-price, forward, physical purchase and sales conttacts, tolUng 
agreements, futures, financial swaps and option conttacts ttaded in the over-the-counter markets or on exchanges. 
Each of these various hedge instmments can present a unique set of risks in its application to PHTs energy assets. 
PHI must apply judgment in determining the application and effectiveness of each hedge instmment. Changes in 
accounting mles, or revised interpretations to existing mles, may cause hedges to be deemed ineffective as an 
accounting matter. This could have material eamings implications for the period or periods in question. Conectiv 
Energy's objective is to hedge a portion of the expected power output of its generation facilities and the costs of 
fuel used to operate those faciUties so it is not completely exposed to energy price movements. Hedge targets are 
approved by PHI's Corporate Risk Management Committee and may change from time to time based on market 

B-73 



conditions. Conectiv Energy generally establishes hedge targets annually for the next three succeeding 12-month 
periods. Within a given 12-month horizon, the acmal hedged positioning in any montii may be outside of the 
targeted range, even if the average for a 12-month period falls within the stated range. Management exercises 
judgment in determining which montiis present the most significant risk, or opportunity, and hedge levels are 
adjusted accordingly. Since energy markets can move significantiy in a short period of time, hedge levels may 
also be adjusted to reflect revised assumptions. Such factors may include, but are not Umited to, changes in 
projected plant output, revisions to fuel requirements, ttansmission consttaints, prices of alternate fuels, and 
improving or deteriorating supply and demand conditions. In addition, short-term occurrences, such as abnormal 
weather, operational events, or intta-month commodity price volatility may also cause the actual level of hedging 
coverage to vary from the estabUshed hedge targets. These events can cause flucmations in PHI's eamings from 
period to period. Due to the high heat rate of the Pepco Energy Services generating facilities, Pepco Energy 
Services generaUy does not enter into wholesale conttacts to lock in tiie forward value of its plants. To the extent 
that PHI's Competitive Energy businesses have unhedged positions or their hedging procedures do not work as 
planned, fluctuating commodity prices could result in significant losses. Conversely, by engaging in hedging 
activities, PHI may not reaUze gains that otherwise could resuU from fluctuating commodity prices. 

Business operations could be adversely affected by terrorism. 

The threat of, or actual acts of, tenorism may affect the operations of PHI or any of its subsidiaries in 
unpredictable ways and may cause changes in the insurance markets, force an increase in security measures and 
cause dismptions of fuel supplies and markets. If any of its infrastmcture facilities, such as its electtic generation, 
fuel storage, ttansmission or distribution facUities, were to be a dfrect target, or an indirect casualty, of an act of 
tenorism, the operations of PHI, Pepco, DPL or ACE could be adversely affected. Cortesponding instability in 
the financial markets as a result of teirorism also could adversely affect the abiUty to raise needed capital. 

Insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover all casualty losses that the companies might incur. 

PHI and its subsidiaries, including Pepco, DPL and ACE, ciurentiy have insurance coverage for thefr 
facilities and operations in amounts and with deductibles that they consider appropriate. However, there is no 
assurance that such insurance coverage will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms. In 
addition, some risks, such as weather related casualties, may not be insurable. In the case of loss or damage to 
property, plant or equipment, there is no assurance that the insurance proceeds, if any, received wiU be sufficient 
to cover the entire cost of replacement or repair. 

Revenues, profits and cashflows may be adversely affected by economic conditions. 

Periods of slowed economic activity generally result in decreased demand for power, particularly by 
industrial and large commercial customers. As a consequence, recessions or other downturns in the economy may 
result in decreased revenues and cash flows for the Power DeUvery businesses of Pepco, DPL and ACE and 
PHI's Competitive Energy businesses. 

The IRS challenge to cross-border energy sale and lease-back transactions entered into by a PHI subsidiary 
could result in loss of prior and future tax benefits. 

PCI maintains a portfolio of cross-border energy sale-leaseback transactions, which as of December 31, 
2007, had a book value of approximately $1.4 billion and from which PHI currentiy derives approximately $60 
milUon per year in tax benefits in the form of interest and depreciation deductions. On Febmary 11, 2005, the 
Treasury Department and IRS issued a notice informing taxpayers that the IRS intends to chaUenge the tax 
benefits claimed by taxpayers with respect to certain of these ttansactions. 

As part of the normal PHI lax audit for 2001 and 2002, tiie IRS disallowed tiie tax benefits claimed by PHI 
with respect to these leases for those years. The tax benefits claimed by PHI with respect to these leases from 
2001 through December 31, 2007 were approximately $347 million. PHI has filed a protest against the IRS 
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adjustments and the unresolved audit has been forwarded to ttie IRS Appeals Office. If the IRS prevails, PHI 
would be subject to additional taxes, along with interest and possibly penalties on the additional taxes, which 
could have a material adverse effect on PHTs results of operations and cash flows. See "Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResuUs of Operations—Regulatory and Ottier Matters-
Federal Tax Treatment of Cross-Border Leases" for additional information. 

Changes in tax law could have a material adverse effect on the tax benefits that PHI reaUzesfrom the 
portfolio of cross-border energy sale-leaseback transactions entered into by one of its subsidiaries. 

In recent years, efforts have been made by members ofthe U.S. Senate to pass legislation that would have 
the effect of deferring the deduction of losses associated witii leveraged lease ttansactions involving 
tax-indifferent parties for taxable years beginning after the year of enactment regardless of when the ttansaction 
was entered into. These proposals, which would affect ttansactions such as those included in PCI's portfoho of 
cross-border energy leases, would effectively defer the deduction of losses associated witii such leveraged lease 
transactions until the taxable year in which the taxpayer recognized taxable income from the lease, which is 
typically toward the end of the lease term. To date, no such legislation has been enacted; however, there are 
continuing efforts by members of the U.S. Senate to add legislation to various Senate biUs directed to tiie defercal 
or other curtailment of the tax benefits realized from such ttansactions. Enactment of legislation of this nature 
could result in a material delay ofthe income tax benefits that PHI would receive in connection with PCI's 
portfolio of cross-border energy leases. Furthermore, if legislation of this type were enacted, under the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board Staff Position on Financial Accounting Standard 13-2, PHI would be required to 
adjust tiie book value of the leases and record a charge to eamings equal to the repricing unpact ofthe deferred 
deductions which could result in a material adverse effect on PHI's financial condition, resuUs of operations and 
cash flows. 

IRS Revenue Ruling 2005-53 on Mixed Service Costs could require PHI to incur additional tax and interest 
payments in connection with the IRS audit of this issue for the tax years 2001 through 2004 (IRS Revenue 
Ruling 2005-53). 

During 2001, Pepco, DPL and ACE changed their metiiods of accounting with respect to capitahzable 
constmction costs for income tax purposes. The change allowed the companies to accelerate the deduction of 
certain expenses that were previously capitalized and depreciated. Through December 31, 2005, these accelerated 
deductions generated incremental tax cash flow benefits of approxmiately $205 milUon (consisting of $94 
miUion for Pepco, $62 million for DPL and $49 million for ACE) for ttie companies, primarily attributable to 
their 2001 tax returns. 

In 2005, the Treasury Department issued proposed regulations that, if adopted in their cunent form, would 
require Pepco, DPL and ACE to change their method of accounting with respect to capUalizable constmction 
costs for income tax purposes for future tax periods beginning in 2005. Based on tiie proposed regulations, PHI 
in its 2005 federal tax retum adopted an altemative metiiod of accounting for capitalizable consttuction costs tiiat 
management believes will be acceptable to the IRS. 

At the same time as tiie proposed regulations were released, the IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2005-53, which 
is intended to limit the abiUty of certain taxpayers to utilize the method of accounting for income tax purposes 
they utilized on their tax returns for 2004 and prior years with respect to capitalizable constmction costs. In line 
with this Revenue Ruling, the IRS revenue agent's report for the 2001 and 2002 tax rettims disaUowed 
substantially all ofthe incremental tax benefits tiiat Pepco, DPL and ACE had claimed on tiiose retums by 
requiring the companies to capitaUze and depreciate certain expenses rather ttian tteat such expenses as current 
deductions. PHI has filed a protest against the IRS adjustments and the issue is among the unresolved audit 
matters relating to tiie 2001 and 2002 audits pending before tiie Appeals Office. 
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In Febmary 2006, PHI paid approximately $ 121 nullion of taxes to cover tiie amount of additional taxes and 
interest that management estimated to be payable for the years 2001 through 2004 based on the method of tax 
accounting that PHI, pursuant to the proposed regulations, adopted on its 2005 tax retiun. However, if the IRS is 
successful in requiring Pepco, DPL and ACE to capitalize and depreciate constmction costs that result in a tax 
and interest assessment greater than management's estimate of $121 mUlion, PHI will be requfred to pay 
additional taxes and interest only to the extent these adjustments exceed the $121 nullion payment made in 
Febmary 2006. 

PHI and its subsidiaries are dependent on their ability to successful^ access capital markets. An inability to 
access capital may adversely affect their businesses. 

PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE each rely on access to both short-term money markets and longer-term capital 
markets as a source of liquidity and to satisfy thefr capital requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from thefr 
operations. Capital market dismptions, or a downgrade in credit ratings, would increase the cost of borrowing or 
could adversely affect the abiUty to access one or more financial markets. In addition, a reduction in PHI's credit 
ratings could require PHI or its subsidiaries to post additional collateral in connection with some of the 
Competitive Energy businesses' wholesale marketing and financing activities. Dismptions to the capital markets 
could include, but are not Unuted to: 

• recession or an economic slowdown; 

• the bankmptcy of one or more energy companies; 

• significant increases in the prices for oil or other fiiel; 

• a tenorist attack or threatened attacks; or 

• a significant ttansmission failure. 

In accordance with the requfrements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC mles thereunder, 
PHI's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal conttol over financial reporting and is 
required to assess annually the effectiveness of these conttols. The inability to certify the effectiveness of these 
controls due to the identification of one or more material weaknesses in these controls also could increase 
financing costs or could adversely affect the ability to access one or more financial markets. 

Future defined benefit plan funding obUgations are tweeted by assumptions regarding the valuation of 
PHI's benefit obUgations and the performance of plan assets; actual experience which varies from the 
assumptions could result in an obligation of PHI, Pepco, DPL or ACE to make significant unplanned cash 
contributions to the Retirement Plan. 

PHI follows the guidance of SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions" in accountmg for pension 
benefits under its non-contributory defined benefit plan (the PHI Retfrement Plan). In addition, on December 31, 
2006, PHI implemented SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 
Posttetirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)" (SFAS No. 158) which 
requires that companies recognize a net UabiUty or asset to report the funded status of their defined benefit 
pension and other posttetfrement benefit plans on the balance sheet. In accordance with these accounting 
standards, PHI makes assumptions regarding the valuation of benefit obUgations and the performance of plan 
assets. Changes in assumptions, such as the use of a different discount rate or expected retum on plan assets, 
affect tiie calculation of projected benefit obUgations (PBO), accumulated benefit obUgation (ABO), reported 
pension liability, regulated assets, or accumulated other comprehensive income on PHI's consolidated balance 
sheet and on the balance sheets of Pepco, DPL and ACE, and reported annual net periodic pension benefit cost on 
PHI's consolidated statement of eamings and on the statements of eamings of Pepco, DPL and ACE. 

Use of altemative assumptions could also impact the expected future cash funding requfrements of PHI, 
Pepco, DPL and ACE for the PHI Retirement Plan if the plan did not meet the minimum funding requfrements of 
the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). 
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PHVs cash flow, ability to pay dividends and ability to satisfy debt obligations depend on the performance of 
its operating subsidiaries. PHI's unsecured obligations are effectively subordinated to the liabilities and the 
outstanding preferred stock of its subsidiaries. 

PHI is a holding company that conducts its operations entirely through its subsidiaries, and all of PHI's 
consolidated operating assets are held by its subsidiaries. Accordingly, PHI's cash flow, its ability to satisfy its 
obligations to creditors and its ability to pay dividends on its common stock are dependent upon the eamings of 
the subsidiaries and tiie distribution of such earnings to PHI in the form of dividends. The subsidiaries are 
separate and distinct legal entities and have no obligation to pay any amounts due on any debt or equity securities 
issued by PHI or to make any funds available for such payment. Because the claims of the creditors of PHI's 
subsidiaries and the preferred stockholders of ACE are superior to PHI's entitlement to dividends, the unsecured 
debt and obligations of PHI are effectively subordinated to aU existing and future liabilities of its subsidiaries and 
to tiie rights of the holders of ACE's prefened stock to receive dividend payments. 

Energy companies are subject to adverse publicity which makes them vulnerable to negative regulatory and 
litigation outcomes. 

The energy sector has been among the sectors ofthe economy that have been the subject of highly 
publicized allegations of misconduct in recent years. In addition, many utility companies have been publicly 
criticized for their performance during natural disasters and weather related incidents. Adverse publicity of this 
nature may render legislatures, regulatory authorities, and other govemment officials less likely to view energy 
companies such as PHI and ks subsidiaries in a favorable tight, and may cause PHI and its subsidiaries to be 
susceptible to adverse outcomes with respect to decisions by such bodies. 

Provisions ofthe Delaware General Corporation Law may discourage an acquisition ofPHL 

As a Delaware corporation, PHI is subject to ttie business combination law set forth in Section 203 of the 
Delaware General Corporation Law, which could have the effect of delaying, discouraging or preventing an 
acquisition of PHI. 

Because Pepco is a wholly owned subsidiary of PHI, and each of DPL and ACE are indirect wholly owned 
subsidiaries of PHI, PHI can exercise substantial control over their dividend policies and businesses and 
operations. (Pepco, DPL and ACE only) 

All ofthe members of each of Pepco's, DPL's and ACE's board of directors, as weU as many of Pepco's, 
DPL's and ACE's executive officers, are officers of PHI or an affiUate of PHI. Among other decisions, each of 
Pepco's, DPL's and ACE's board is responsible for decisions regarding payment of dividends, financing and 
capital raising activities, and acquisition and disposition of assets. Within the Umitations of appUcable law, and 
subject to the financial covenants under each company's respective outstanding debt instmments, each of 
Pepco's, DPL's and ACE's board of directors wiU base its decisions conceming the amount and timing of 
dividends, and other business decisions, on ttie company's respective eamings, cash flow and capital sttiicture, 
but may also take into account the business plans and financial requirements of PHI and its other subsidiaries. 
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QUANTTTATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Risk management policies for PHI and its subsidiaries are determined by PHI's Corporate Risk 
Management Committee, the members of which are PHI's Chief Risk Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief 
Financial (!)fficer. General Counsel, Chief Information Officer and other senior executives. The Corporate Risk 
Maru^ement Committee monitors interest rate fluctuation, commodity price fluctuation, and credit risk exposure, 
and sets risk management policies that establish Umits on urtiiedged risk and determine risk reporting 
requirements. 

Commodity Price Risk 

PHI's Competitive Energy businesses use derivative instmments primarily to reduce their financial exposure 
to changes in the value of thefr assets and obligations due to commodity price fluctuations. The derivative 
instmments used by the Competitive Energy businesses include forward conttacts, futures, swaps, and exchange-
ttaded and over-the-counter options. In addition, the Competitive Energy businesses also manage commodity risk 
with conttacts that are not classified as derivatives. The two primary risk management objectives are (1) to 
manage the spread between the cost of fuel used to operate electric generation plants and the revenue received 
from the sale of the power produced by those plants, and (2) to manage the spread between retail sales 
commitments and die cost of supply used to service those commitments to ensure stable and known minimum 
cash flows, and lock in favorable prices and margins when they become available. To a lesser extent, Conectiv 
Energy also engages in energy marketing activities. Energy marketing activities consist primarily of wholesale 
natural gas and fuel oil marketing; the activities ofthe short-term power desk, which generates margin by 
capturing price differences between power pools, and locational and tinting differences within a power pool; and 
prior to October 31,2006, provided operating services under an agreement with an unaffihated generating plant. 
PHI collectively refers to these energy marketing activities, including its commodity risk management activities, 
as "other energy commodity" activities and identifies this activity separately from the discontinued proprietary 
trading activity that was discontinued in 2003. 

The Corporate Risk Management Committee has the responsibility for establishing corporate comphance 
requirements for the Competitive Energy businesses' energy market participation. PHI collectively refers to these 
energy market activities, including its commodity risk management activities, as "other energy commodity" 
activities. PHI does not engage in proprietary trading activities. PHI uses a value-at-risk (VaR) model to assess 
the market risk of its Competitive Energy businesses' energy commodity activities, PHI also uses other measures 
to limit and monitor risk in its energy commodity activities, including limits on the nominal size of positions and 
periodic loss Umits. VaR represents the potential mark-to-market loss on energy conttacts or portfoUos due to 
changes in market prices for a specified time period and confidence level. PHI estimates VaR using a delta-
normal variance / covariance model with a 95 percent, one-tailed confidence level and assuming a one-day 
holding period. Smce VaR is an estimate, it is not necessarily indicative of acmal results that may occur. 

Value at Risk Associated with Energy Contracts 
For the Year Ended December 31,2007 

(Millions of dollars) 

VaR for 
Proprietary Competitive 

Trading Energy 
VaR Activity (a) 

95% confidence level, one-day holding period, one-tailed 
Period end $ — $ 4.2 
Average for the period $ — $ 5.8 
High $ — $12.0 
Low $ — $ 2.1 
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(a) This column represents all energy derivative conttacts, normal purchase and sales conttacts, modeled 
generation output and fuel requirements and modeled customer load obligations for PHI's other energy 
commodity activities. 

For additional information about PHI's derivative activities refer to Note (2), "Accounting for Derivatives" 
and Note (13), "Use of Derivatives in Energy and Interest Rate Hedging Activities" ofthe Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Pepco Holdings. 

A significant portion ofthe Conectiv Energy's portfoho of electric generating plants consists of "mid-merit" 
assets and peaking assets. Mid-merit electtic generating plants are typically combined cycle units that can 
quickly change tiiefr megawatt output level on an econonuc basis. These plants are generally operated during 
times when demand for electricity rises and power prices are higher. Conectiv Energy economically hedges both 
the estimated plant output and fuel requirements as the estimated levels of output and fuel needs change. 
Economic hedge percentages include the estimated electticity output of Conectiv Energy's generation plaits and 
any associated financial or physical commodity contracts (including derivative contracts that are classified as 
cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133, other derivative instmments, wholesale normal purchase and sales 
contracts, and load service obligations). 

Conectiv Energy maintains a forward 36 month program with targeted ranges for economicaUy hedging its 
projected on-peak plant output combined with its on-peak energy purchase commitments (based on the then 
cunent forward electricity price curve) as follows: 

Month Target Range 

1-12 50-100% 
13-24 25-75% 
25-36 0-50% 

The primary purpose of the risk management program is to improve the predictability and stabihty of 
margins by selling forward a portion of its projected plant output, and buying forward a portion of its projected 
fuel supply requirements. Within each period, hedged percentages can vary sigruficantiy above or below the 
average reported percentages. 

As of December 31, 2007, tiie electticity sold forward by Conectiv Energy as a percentage of projected 
on-peak plant output combined with on-peak energy purchase commitments was 94%, 98%, and 39% for the 
1-12 month, 13-24 month and 25-36 month forward periods, respectively. Hedge percentages were above tiie 
target ranges for the 13-24 month period due to Conectiv Energy's success in the defauU electricity supply 
auctions and a decrease in projected on-peak plant output since the forward sale commitments were entered into. 
The amount of forward on-peak sales during the 1-12 month period represents 22% of Conectiv Energy's 
combined total on-peak generatmg capability and on-peak energy purchase commitments. The volumettic 
percentages for the forward periods can vary and may not represent the amount of expected value hedged. 

Not all of the value associated witii Conectiv Energy's generation activities can be hedged such as the 
portion attributable to ancillary services and fuel switching due to the lack of market products, market Uquidity, 
and other factors. Also the hedging of locational value can be limited. 

Pepco Energy Services purchases electric and natural gas futures, swaps, options and forward conttacts to 
hedge price risk in connection witii the purchase of physical namral gas and electricity for dehvery to customers. 
Pepco Energy Services accounts for its fumres and swap conttacts as cash flow hedges of forecasted ttansactions. 
Its options contracts are marked-to-market ttirough cunent eamings. Its forward conttacts are accounted for using 
standard accmal accounting since these conttacts meet the requirements for normal purchase and sale accounting 
under SFAS No. 133. 
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Credit and Nonperformance Risk 

Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries attempt to minimize credit risk exposure to wholesale energy counterparties 
through, among other things, formal credit policies, regular assessment of counterparty creditworthiness and the 
establishment of a credit Umk for each counterparty, monitoring procedures that include stress testing, the use of 
standard agreements which allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single 
counterparty and collateral requirements under certain cfrcumstances, and have established reserves for credit 
losses. As of December 31, 2007, credit exposure to wholesale energy counterparties was weighted 74% with 
investment grade counterparties, 22% with counterparties without extemal credit quality ratings, and 4% with 
non-investment grade counterparties. 

This table provides information on the Competitive Energy businesses' credit exposure, net of collateral, to 
wholesale counterparties. 

Schedule of Credit Risk Exposure on Competitive Wholesale Energy Contracts 
(Millions of dollars) 

December 31,2007 
Number of 

Exposure Counterparties Net Exposure (rf 
Before Credit Credit Net Greater Than Counterparties 

Rating (a) Collateral (b) Collateral (c) Exposure 10% (d) Greater Than 10% 

Investment Grade $116.5 $3.0 $113.5 1 $22.4 
Non-Investment Grade 7.1 .6 6.5 — 
No Extemal Ratings 34.6 .7 33.9 — 
Credit reserves $ L7 

(a) Investment Grade—primarily determined using publicly available credit ratings of the counterparty. If the 
counterparty has provided a guarantee by a higher-rated entity (e.g., Us parent), it is determined based upon 
ttie rating of its guarantor. Included m "Investment Grade" are counterparties with a minimum Standard & 
Poor's or Moody's Investor Service rating of BBB- or Baa3, respectively. 

(b) Exposure Before Credit Collateral—includes the marked to market (MTM) energy conttact net assets for 
open/unrealized ttansactions, the net receivable/payable for reahzed transactions and net open positions for 
conttacts not subject to MTM. Amounts due from counterparties are offset by liabilities payable to those 
counterparties to the extent that legally enforceable netting arrangements are in place. Thus, this column 
presents the net credit exposure to counterparties after reflectmg all aUowable netting, but before 
considering collateral held. 

(c) Credit Collateral—the face amount of cash deposits, letters ofcredit and performance bonds received from 
counterparties, not adjusted for probability of default, and, if applicable, property interests (including oil and 
gas reserves). 

(d) Using a percentage of the total exposure. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Pepco Holdings manages interest rates through the use of fixed and, to a lesser extent, variable rate debt. 
Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries variable or floating rate debt is subject to the risk of flucmating interest rates 
in the normal course of business. The effect of a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates on the annual interest 
costs for short-term and variable rate debt was approximately $4.5 mUlion as of December 31, 2007. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Some of the statements contained in tins Annual Report are forward-looking statements within tiie meaning 
of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are subject to ttie safe harbor created by 
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements include declarations regarding Pepco 
Holdings' intents, beliefs and cunent expectations. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements 
by terminology such as "may," "wiU," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "beUeves," "estimates," 
"predicts," "potential" or "continue" or tiie negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. Any 
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results could differ materially 
from those indicated by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve estimates, 
assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors tiiat may cause PHTs actual results, 
levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any fiimre results, levels of 
activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. 

The forward-looking statements contained herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to the foUowing 
important factors, which are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties, are beyond Pepco Holdings' control and 
may cause actual results to dilTer materially from those contained in forward-looking statements: 

• Prevailing govemmental policies and regulatory actions affecting the energy industt^, mcluding aUowed 
rates of retum, industry and rate stmcture, acquisition and disposal of assets and faciUties, operation and 
constmction of plant facilities, recovery of purchased power expenses, and present or prospective 
wholesale and retail competition; 

Changes in and compliance witii environmental and safety laws and poUcies; 

Weather conditions; 

Population growtii rates and demographic pattems; 

Competition for retail and wholesale customers; 

General economic conditions, including potential negative impacts resulting from an economic 

downturn; 

Growtii in demand, sales and capacity to fulfiU demand; 

Changes in tax rates or policies or in rates of inflation; 

Changes in accounting standards or practices; 

Changes in project costs; 

Unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 

The ability to obtain funding in the capital markets on favorable terms; 
Rules and regulations imposed by federal and/or state regulatory commissions, PJM and otiier regional 
transmission organizations (New York Independent System Operator, ISONE), the North American 
Electric Reliability Council and other applicable electric rehabihty organizations; 

Legal and administtative proceedings (whether civil or criminal) and settlements that affect PHI's 
business and profitabUity; 

Pace of entry into new markets; 

Volatility in market demand and prices for energy, capacity and fuel; 

Interest rate fluctuations and credit market concems; and 

Effects of geopolitical events, including the threat of domestic terrorism. 

Any forward-looking statements speak only as to the date of this Annual Report and Pepco Holdings 
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or cfrcumstances after the 
date on which such statements are made or to reflect the occunence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge 
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from time to time, and it is not possible for Pepco Holdings to predict all of such factors, nor can Pepco Holdings 
assess the impact of any such factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, 
may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. 

The foregoing review of factors should not be constmed as exhaustive. 

Management's Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting 

The management of Pepco Holdings is responsible for establishing and maintmning adequate intemal 
conttol over financial reporting. Because of inherent limitations, intemal conttol over financial reporting may not 
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 
to the risk that conttols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the pohcies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Management assessed its internal conttol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on the 
framework in Intemal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission. Based on its assessment, the management of Pepco Holdings concluded that its 
mtemal conttol over fmancial reporting was effective as of December 31,2007. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements of 
Pepco Holdings included in this Annual Report, has issued its attestation report on Pepco Holdings' intemal 
control over financial reporting, which is included herein. 

Report of Independent Registered PubUc Accounting Firm 

To the Shareholders and Board of Dfrectors of 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consoUdated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of 
eamings, comprehensive eamings, shareholders' equity and cash flows present fafrly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Pepco Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,2007 and December 31, 2006, and 
the results of thefr operations and thefr cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our 
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal conttol over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Intemal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Conunittee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is 
responsible for these financial statements, for mmntaining effective intemal conttol over financial reporting and 
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal conttol over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management's Report on Intemal Conttol over Financial Reporting. Our responsibUity is to express opinions on 
these financial statements and on the Company's intemal conttol over financial reporting based on our integrated 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective intemal 
conttol over financial reporting was maintained in aU material respects. Our audits of the financial statements 
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in tiie financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of intemal conttol over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of intemal conttol over fmancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal conttol based on the assessed risk. 
Our audits also included perfomung such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
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As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its manner of 
accounting and reporting for uncertain tax positions in 2007. 

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliabihty of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the ttansactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company; (ii) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iU) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal conttol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to fumre periods are subject to the risk that 
conttols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or tiiat the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

^iU^A^i^Lot/ujC^opje^S t i p 
Washington, DC 
Febmary 29, 2008 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, BMC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS 

For tiie Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 

(in millions, except per share data) 

Operating Revenue 
Power Delivery $5,244.2 $5,118.8 $4,702.9 
Competitive Energy 4,054.0 3,160.8 3,288.2 
Other 68.2 83.3 74.4 

Total Operating Revenue 9,366.4 8,362.9 8,065.5 

Operating Expenses 
Fuel and purchased energy 6,336.4 5,416.5 4,899.7 
Other services cost of sales 606.9 649.4 712.3 
Other operation and maintenance 857.5 807.3 815.7 
Depreciation and amortization 365.9 413.2 427.3 
Otiiertaxes 357.1 343.0 342.2 
Deferted electric service costs 68.1 22.1 120.2 
Impafrment losses 2.0 18,9 — 
Effect of settlement of Mirant bankmptcy claims (33.4) — (70.5) 
Gain on sale of assets (.7) (.8) (86.8) 

Total Operating Expenses 8,559.8 7,669.6 7,160.1 

Operating Income 806.6 693.3 905.4 

Other Income (Expenses) 
Interest and dividend income 19.6 16.9 16.0 
Interest expense (339.8) (339.1) (337.6) 
Income (loss) from equity investments 10.1 5.1 (2.2) 
Impairment loss on equity investments — (1.8) (4.1) 
Ottierincome 27.7 48.3 50.8 
Ottierexpenses (1.8) (11.8) (8.4) 

Total Ottier Expenses (284.2) (282.4) (285.5) 

preferred Stock Dividend Requirements of Subsidiaries .3 1.2 2.5 

Income Before Income Tax Expense and Extraordinary Item 522.1 409.7 617.4 

Income Tax Expense 187.9 161.4 255.2 

Income Before Extraordinary Item 334.2 248.3 362.2 

Extraordinary Item (net of tax of $6.2 million) — — 9.0 

Netincome $ 334.2 $ 248.3 $ 371.2 

Basic and Diluted Share Information 
Weighted average shares outstanding 194.1 190.7 189.0 
Eamings per share of common stock 

Before exttaordinary item $ 1.72 $ 1.30 $ 1.91 
Exttaordinary item — — .05 

Total $ 1.72 $ 1.30 $ 1.96 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 
(MiUions of dollars) 
Net income $334.2 $248.3 $371.2 

Other comprehensive eamings (losses) 

Unrealized gains (losses) on commodity derivatives designated as cash flow 
hedges: 
Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising during period (.3) (143.8) 117.1 
Less: reclassification adjustment for (losses) gains included in net 

eamings (84.3) (2.3) 76.1 

Net unreaUzed gains (losses) on commodity derivatives 84.0 (141.5) 41.0 

Realized gains on Treasury Lock transaction 9.4 11.7 1L7 

Unrealized gains on interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow 
hedges: 
Unrealized holding gains arising during period — — 1-5 

Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net eamings — — Ll 

Net unrealized gains on interest rate swaps — — 4 

Minimum pension liabUity adjustment — (L2) (5.2) 

Amortization of gains and losses for prior service cost 1.6 — — 

Other comprehensive eamings (losses), before income taxes 95.0 (131.0) 47.9 

Income tax expense (benefit) 37.1 (50.8) 18.7 

Other comprehensive eamings (losses), net of income taxes 57.9 (80.2) 29.2 

Comprehensive earnings $392.1 $ 168.1 $400.4 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, December 31, 
ASSETS 2007 2006 
(Millions of dollars) 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $30.6 million 

and $35.8 miUion, respectively 
Fuel, materials and supplies—at average cost 
Umealized gains—derivative contracts 
Prepayments of income taxes 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total Current Assets 

INVESTMENTS AND OTIIER ASSETS 
Goodwill 
Regulatory assets 
Investment in finance leases held in Tmst 
Income taxes receivable 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Otiier 

Total Investments and Other Assets 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 

TOTALASSETS 

$ 55.1 
14,5 

1,278.3 
287.9 

26.7 
249.8 

84.8 

1,997.1 

1,409.6 
1,515.7 
1,384.4 

196.1 
424.1 
307.3 

5,237.2 

12,306.5 
(4,429.8) 

7,876.7 

$15,111.0 

$ 48.8 
12.0 

1,253.5 
288.8 
72.7 

228.4 
77,2 

1,981.4 

1,409.2 
1,570.8 
1,321.8 

— 
17.5 

366.2 

4,685.5 

11,819.7 
(4,243.1) 

7,576.6 

$14,243.5 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(MiUions of doUars, except shares) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Short-term debt 
Cunent maturities of long-term debt and project funding 
Accounts payable and accmed liabUities 
Capital lease obligations due within one year 
Taxes accmed 
Interest accmed 
Liabilities and accmed interest related to uncertain tax positions 
Otiier 

Total Cunent Liabilities 

DEFERRED CREDITS 
Regulatory liabilities 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Investment tax credits 
Pension benefit obligation 
Other postretirement benefit obligations 
Income taxes payable 
Other 

Total Defened Credits 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding 
Long-term project funding 
Capital lease obligations 

Total Long-Term LiabiUties 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 12) 

MINORITY INTEREST 6.2 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $.01 par value—authorized 400,000,000 shares—issued 

200,512,890 shares and 191,932,445 shares, respectively 2.0 
Premium on stock and other capital contributions 2,869.2 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (45.5) 
Retained eamings 1,192.7 

Total Shareholders' Equity 4,018.4 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $15,111.0 

December 31, 
2007 

$ 288.8 
332.2 
796.7 

6.0 
133.5 
70.1 

131.7 
281.8 

2,040.8 

1,248.9 
2,105.1 

38.9 
65.5 

385.5 
164.9 
302.2 

4,311.0 

4,174.8 
433.5 
20.9 

105.4 

4.734.6 

December 31, 
2006 

$ 349.6 
857.5 
700.7 

5.5 
99.9 
80.1 
— 

440.7 

2,534.0 

842.7 
2,084.0 

46.1 
78.3 

405.0 
— 

249.4 

3,705.5 

3,768.6 
464.4 
23.3 

111.1 

4,367.4 

24.4 

1.9 
2,645.0 
(103.4) 

1,068.7 

3,612.2 

$14,243.5 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of tiiese Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 

(MiUions of doUars) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income $ 334.2 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 365.9 
Gain on sale of assets (.7) 
Effect of settlement of Mirant banlmiptcy claims (33.4) 
Gain on sale of other investment (.1) 
Extraordinary item — 
Rents received from leveraged leases under income eamed (72.5) 
Impairment losses 2.0 
E^oceeds from sale of claims with Mirant — 
Proceeds from settlement of Mirant bankruptcy claims 507.2 
Reimbursements to Mirant (108.3) 
Changes in restricted cash and cash equivalents related to Mirant settlement (417.3) 
Deferred income taxes , . . . . 82.7 
Investment tax credit adjustments (2.5) 
Prepaid pension expense 12.6 
Energy supply contracts (2.6) 
Other deferred charges 71,2 
Other deferred credits (21.9) 
Changes in: 

Accounts TEceivable (28.3) 
Regulatory assets and liabilities 3.5 
Prepaid expenses (18.0) 
Fuel, materials and supplies (3.8) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 48.3 
Interest and taxes accrued 29.0 
Sale of emission allowances 47.8 

Net Cash From Operating Activities 795.0 
INVESTING Ac nvr r iEs 
Net investment in property, plant and equipment (623.4) 
Proceeds from settlement of Mirant bankruptcy claims representing reimbursement for investment in 

property, plant and equipment 15.0 
Proceeds from/changes in: 

Sale of other assets II .2 
Purchases of other investments (1.0) 
Sale of other investments 1.2 
Net investment in receivables 2.4 
Changes in restricted cash 8.2 

Net other investing activities 4.8 
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (581.6) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Dividends paid on preferred stock of subsidiaries (.3) 
Dividends paid on common stock (202.6) 
Common stock issued to the Dividend Reinvestment Plan 28.0 
Redemptionof preferred stock of subsidiaries (18.2) 
Redemption of variable rate demand bonds (2.5) 
Issuance of common stock 199.6 
Issuances of long-term debt 703.9 
Reacquisition of long-term debt (854.9) 
(Repayments) issuances of short-term debt, net (58.3) 
Cost of issuances (6.7) 
Net other financing activities 4.9 
Net Cash Used By Financing Activities (207.1) 
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.3 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 48.8 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 55.1 

NON-CASH ACTIVITIES 
Asset retirement obligations associated with removal costs transferred to regulatory liabilities $ 9.7 
Excess accumulated depreciation transferred to regulatory liabilities $ — 
Sale of financed project account receivables $ — 
Recoverable pension/OPEB costs included in regulatory assets $ (31.4) 
Transfer of combustion turbines to constmction work in progress $ 57.0 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash paid for interest (net of capitalized interest of $8.7 million, $3.8 million and $3.8 million, respectively) 

and paid for income taxes: 
Interest $ 338.2 
Income taxes $ 35.7 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

2006 2005 

$248.3 $371.2 

413.2 
(.8) 

— 
(13.2) 
— 

(56.1) 
20.7 
— 
70.0 

243.6 
(4.7) 
21.9 
(5.1) 

(94.9) 
18.4 

225.1 
(31.8) 

4.5 
(8.3) 

(375.3) 
(472.9) 

202.6 

427.3 
(86.8) 
(70.5) 

(8.0) 
(15.2) 
(79.3) 

4.1 
112.9 

— 

(51.6) 
(5.1) 

(43.2) 
(11.3) 
17.0 

(29.1) 

(153.7) 
76.1 
10.3 

(76.4) 
327.5 
270.7 

986.9 

(474.6) (467.1) 

181.5 
(•6) 

24.2 
2.2 

11.0 
27.2 

(229.1) 

(1-2) 
(198.3) 

29.8 
(21.5) 
— 
17.0 

514.5 
(578.0) 
193.2 

(5.6) 
3.9 

(46.2) 
(72.7) 
121.5 

$ 48.8 

$ 78.0 
$ — 
$ — 
$ 365.4 
$ — 

$ 331.8 
$ 238.6 

84.1 
(2.1) 
33.8 
(7.1) 
19.0 
5.5 

(333.9) 

(2.5) 
(188.9) 

27.5 
(9.0) 
(2.0) 
5.7 

532.0 
(755.8) 
(161.3) 

(9.0) 
2.3 

(561.0) 
92.0 
29.5 

$ 121.5 

$ (9.9) 
$ 131.0 
$ 50.0 
$ — 
$ -

$ 328.4 
$ 44.1 
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUTFY 

Common Stock 
Shares Par Value 

(MiUions of dollars, except shares) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER31, 2004 188,327,510 $ 1.9 
Net Income — — 
Other comprehensive income — — 
Dividends on common stock 

($1.00/sh.) — — 
Reacquisition of subsidiary preferred 

stock — — 
Issuance of common stock: 

Original issue shares 261,708 — 
DRP original shares 1,228,505 — 

Reacquired Conectiv and Pepco PARS . . . ~ _ — 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 189,817,723 1.9 
Net Income — — 
Other comprehensive loss — — 
Impact of initially applying SFAS 

No. 158, net of tax — — 
Dividends on common stock 

($1.04/sh.) — — 
Reacquisition of subsidiary preferred 

stock — — 
Issuance of common stock: 

Original issue shares 882,153 — 
DRP original shares 1,232,569 — 

Compensation expense on share-based 
awards — — 

Treasury stock — — 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 191,932,445 ~ T 9 
Net Income — — 
Other comprehensive income — — 
Dividends on common stock 

($1.04/sh.) — — 
Reacquisition of subsidiary preferred 

stock — — 
Issuance of common stock: 

Original issue shares 7,601,290 .1 
DRP original shares 979,155 — 

Compensation expense on share-based 
awards — — 

Cumulative effect adjustment related to 
the implementation of FIN 48 

LTIP dividend 
Treasury stock 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2007 . . 

Accumulated 
Capital Other 

Premium Stock Comprehensive 
on Stock Expense (Loss) Earnings 

$2,566.2 $(13.5) $ (52.0) 

— — 29.2 

5.7 — — 
27.5 — — 

.3 — — 

2,599.8 (13.5) 

(.4) — 

17.0 — 
29.8 — 

13.1 — 
(.8) -

2,658,5 (13.5) 

(.6) -

199.5 
28.0 

(.2) 

(2.5) -

(22.8) 

(80.2) 

(.4) 

(103.4) 

57.9 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 836.4 
371.2 

(188.9) 

1,018.7 
248.3 

(198.3) 

1,068.7 
334.2 

(202.6) 

— 

— 

200,512,890 

— 

$2.0 

— — 

— — 

$2,882.9 $(13.7) 

— 

— 

$ (45.5) 

(7.4) 
(.3) 
.1 

$1,192.7 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(1) ORGANIZATION 

Pepco Holdings, Inc. (PHI or Pepco Holdings), a Delaware corporation incorporated in 2001, is a diversified 
energy company that, through its operating subsidiaries, is engaged primarily in two principal business 
operations: 

• electricity and natural gas delivery (Power Delivery), conducted through the following regulated public 
utility companies, each of which is a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the Exchange Act): 

• Potomac Electric Power Company (Pepco), which was incorporated in Washington, D.C. in 1896 
and became a domestic Virginia corporation in 1949. 

• Delmarva Power & Light Company (DPL), which was incorporated in Delaware in 1909 and 
became a domestic Virginia corporation in 1979, and 

• Atlantic City Electric Company (ACE), which was incorporated in New Jersey in 1924. 

• competitive energy generation, marketing and supply (Competitive Energy) conducted through 
subsidiaries of Conectiv Energy Holding Company (Conectiv Energy) and Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
(Pepco Energy Services). 

PHI Service Company, a subsidiary service company of PHI, provides a variety of support services, 
including legal, accounting, treasury, tax, purchasing and information technology services to PHI and its 
operating subsidiaries. These services are provided pursuant to a service agreement among PHI, PHI Service 
Company, and the participating operating subsidiaries. The expenses of the service company are charged to PHI 
and the participating operating subsidiaries in accordance with costing methodologies set forth in the service 
agreement. 

The following is a description of each of PHI's two principal business operations. 

Power Delivery 

The largest component of PHI's business is Power Delivery, which consists of the transmission, distribution 
and default supply of electricity and the delivery and supply of natural gas. 

PHTs Power Delivery business is conducted by its three regulated utility subsidiaries: Pepco, DPL and 
ACE. Each subsidiary is a regulated public utility in the jurisdictions that comprise its service territory. Pepco, 
DPL and ACE each owns and operates a network of wires, substations and other equipment that are classified 
either as transmission or distribution facihties. Transmission facilities are high-voltage systems that carry 
wholesale electricity into, or across, the utility's service territory. Distribution facilities are low-voltage systems 
that carry electricity to end-use customers in the utility's service territory. Together the three companies 
constitute a single segment for financial reporting purposes. 
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Each company is responsible for the delivery of electricity and, in the case of DPL, natural gas in its service 
territory, for which it is paid tariff rates established by the local public service commission. Each company also 
supplies electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its service territory who do not elect to purchase 
electricity from a competitive energy supplier. The regulatory term for this supply service varies by Jurisdiction 
as follows: 

Delaware 

District of Columbia 

Maryland 

New Jersey 

Virginia 

Provider of Last Resort service—before May 1, 2006 
Standard Offer Service (SOS)—on and after May 1, 2006 

SOS 

SOS 

Basic Generation Service (BGS) 

Default Service 

In this Annual Report, these supply services are referred to generally as Default Electricity Supply, 

Competitive Energy 

The Competitive Energy business provides competitive generation, marketing and supply of electricity and 
gas, and related energy management services, primarily in the mid-Atiantic region. PHI's Competitive Energy 
operations are conducted through subsidiaries of Conectiv Energy Holding Company (collectively, Conectiv 
Energy) and Pepco Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, Pepco Energy Services). Conectiv 
Energy and Pepco Energy Services are separate operating segments for financial reporting purposes. 

Other Business Operations 

Through its subsidiary Potomac Capital Investment Corporation (PCI), PHI maintains a portfolio of cross-
border energy sale-leaseback transactions, with a book value at December 31, 2007 of approximately $ 1.4 
billion. This activity constitutes a fourth operating segment, which is designated as "Other Non-Regulated" for 
financial reporting purposes. For a discussion of PHFs cross-border leasmg transactions, see "Regulatory and 
Other Matters—Federal Tax Treatment of Cross-Border Leases," in Note (12), "Commitments and 
Contingencies." 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolidation Policy 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pepco Holdings and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany balances and transactions between subsidiaries have been 
eliminated. Pepco Holdings uses the equity method to report investments, corporate joint ventures, partnerships, 
and affiliated companies in which it holds a 20% to 50% voting interest and cannot exercise control over the 
operations and policies of the investment. Undivided interests in several jointly owned electric plants previously 
held by PHI, and certain transmission and other facilities currently held, are consolidated in proportion to PHTs 
percentage interest in the facility. 

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 
(FIN) 46R entitied "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" (FIN 46R), Pepco Holdings consolidates those 
variable interest entities where Pepco Holdings or a subsidiary has been determined to be primary beneficiary. 
FIN 46R addresses conditions under which an entity should be consolidated based upon variable interests rather 
than voting interests. For additional information, see the FIN 46R discussion later in this Note. 
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Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and 
habilities in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Although Pepco Holdings believes 
that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are based upon information available to management at 
the time the estimates are made. Actual results may differ significantly from these estimates. 

Significant estimates used by Pepco Holdings include the assessment of contingencies, the calculation of 
future cash flows and fair value amounts for use in goodwill and asset impairment evaluations, fair value 
calculations (based on estimated market pricing) associated with derivative instruments, pension and other 
postretirement benefits assumptions, imbilled revenue calculations, the assessment ofthe probabihty of recovery 
of regulatory assets, and income tax provisions and reserves. Additionally, PHI is subject to legal, regulatory, and 
other proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. PHI records an estimated liability 
for these proceedings and claims that are probable and reasonably estimable. 

Changes in Accounting Estimates 

During 2007, as a result of depreciation studies presented as part of Pepco's and DPL's Maryland rate cases, 
the MPSC approved new lower depreciation rates for Maryland distribution assets owned by Pepco and DPL. 
This resulted in lower depreciation expense of approximately $19.1 miUion for the last six months of 2(X)7. 

During 2005, Pepco recorded the impact of an increase in estimated unbilled revenue (electricity and gas 
delivered to the customer but not yet billed), primarily reflecting a change in Pepco's unbilled revenue estimation 
process. This modification in accounting estimate increased net eamings for the year ended December 31, 2005 
by approximately $2.2 million. 

During 2005, DPL and ACE each recorded the impact of reductions in estimated unbilled revenue, primarily 
reflecting an increase in the estimated amount of power line losses (electricity lost in the process of its 
transmission and distribution to customers). These changes in accounting estimates reduced net eamings for the 
year ended December 3 L 2005 by approximately $7.4 million, of which $1.0 million was attributable to DPL and 
$6.4 million was attributable to ACE. 

During 2005, Conectiv Energy increased the estimated useful lives of its generation assets which resulted in 
lower depreciation expense of approximately $5.3 million. 

Revenue Recognition 

Regulated Revenue 

The Power Delivery businesses recognize revenue upon delivery of electricity and gas to their customers, 
including amounts for services rendered but not yet billed (unbilled revenue). Pepco Holdings recorded amoimts 
for unbilled revenue of $169.8 million and $172.2 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
These amounts are included in "Accounts receivable.'* Pepco Holdings' utility subsidiaries calculate unbilled 
revenue using an output based methodology. This methodology is based on the supply of electricity or gas 
intended for distribution to customers. The unbilled revenue process requires management to make assumptions 
and judgments about input factors such as customer sales mix, temperatm^ and estimated power line losses 
(estimates of electricity expected to be lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers), all of 
which are inherentiy uncertain and susceptible to change from period to period, the impact of which could be 
material. 
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The taxes related to the consumption of electricity and gas by the utility customers, such as fuel, energy, or 
other similar taxes, are components of the tariff rates charged by PHI subsidiaries and, as such, are billed to 
customers and recorded in "Operating Revenues." Accruals for these taxes are recorded in "Other taxes." Excise 
tax related generally to the consumption of gasoline by PHI and its subsidiaries in die normal course of business 
is charged to operations, maintenance or construction, and is de minimis. 

Competitive Revenue 

The Competitive Energy businesses recognize revenue upon delivery of electricity and gas to the customer, 
including amounts for electricity and gas delivered, but not yet billed. Unrealized derivative gains and losses are 
recognized in current eamings as revenue if the derivative activity does not quahfy for hedge accounting or 
normal sales treatment under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133. Revenue for Pepco 
Energy Services' energy efficiency construction business is recognized using the percentage-of-completion 
method which recognizes revenue as work is completed on the contract, and revenues from its operation and 
maintenance and other products and services contracts are recognized when eamed. Revenue from the Other 
Non-Regulated business lines is principally recognized when services are performed or products are delivered; 
however, revenues from utility industry services contracts are recognized using the percentage-of-completion 
method. 

Regulation of Power Delivery Operations 

The Power Delivery operations of Pepco are regulated by tiie District of Columbia Public Service 
Commission (DCPSC) and the Maryland Public Service Commission (MPSC). 

The Power Delivery operations of DPL are regulated by the Delaware Public Service Commission (DPSC) 
and the MPSC and, until the sale of its Virginia operations on January 2, 2008, was regulated by tiie Virginia 
State Corporation Commission (VSCC). DPL's interstate transportation and wholesale sale of natural gas are 
regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). 

The Power Delivery operations of ACE are regulated by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU). 

The transmission and wholesale sale of electricity by each of Pepco, DPL, and ACE are regulated by FERC. 

The requirements of SFAS No. 71 apply to the Power Delivery businesses of Pepco, DPL, and ACE. SFAS 
No. 71 allows regulated entities, in appropriate circumstances, to establish regulatory assets and Uabiiities and to 
defer the income statement impact of certain costs that are expected to be recovered in future rates. 
Management's assessment of the probability of recovery of regulatory assets requires judgment and 
interpretation of laws, regulatory commission orders, and other factors. If management subsequentiy detennines, 
based on changes in facts or circumstances, that a regulatory asset is not probable of recovery, then tiie regulatory 
asset must be eliminated through a charge to eamings. 

As part of the new electric service distribution base rates for Pepco and DPL approved by tiie MPSC. 
effective June 16, 2007, the MPSC approved for botii companies a bill stabihzation adjustment mechanism 
(BSA) for retail customers. See Note (12) "Commitments and Contingencies—Regulatory and Other Matters— 
Rate Proceedings." For customers to which tiie BSA applies, Pepco and DPL recognize distribution revenue 
based on an approved distribution charge per customer. From a revenue recognition standpoint, the BSA thus 
decouples the distribution revenue recognized in a reporting period from the amount of power delivered during 
the period. Pursuant to this mechanism, Pepco and DPL recognize either (a) a positive adjustment equal to the 
amount by which revenue from Maryland retail distribution sales falls short of the revenue tiiat Pepco and DPL 
are entitled to eam based on the approved distribution charge per customer or (b) a negative adjustment equal to 
the amount by which revenue from such distribution sales exceeds the revenue that Pepco and DPL are entitied to 
eam based on the approved distribution charge per customer (a Revenue Decoupling Adjustment). A positive 
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Revenue Decoupling Adjustment is recorded as a regulatory asset and a negative Revenue Decoupling 
Adjustment is recorded as a regulatory liability. The net Revenue Decoupling Adjustment at December 31, 2(X)7 
is a regulatory asset and is included in the "Other" Une item on the table of regulatory asset balances Usted 
below. 

The components of Pepco Holdings' regulatory asset balances at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as 
follows: 

2007 2006 
(Millions of dollars) 

Securitized stranded costs $ 734.6 $ 773.0 
Recoverable pension and OPEB costs 334.0 365.4 
Deferred energy supply costs 1.7 6.9 
Deferred recoverable income taxes 155.6 130.5 
Deferted debt extinguishment costs 71.5 76.9 
Unrecovered pm*chased power contract costs 10.0 13.5 
Deferred other postretirement benefit costs 12.5 15.0 
Phase in credits 38.9 31.0 
Asset retirement cost — 33.0 
Otiier 156.9 125.6 

Total Regulatory Assets $1,515.7 $1,570.8 

The components of Pepco Holdings' regulatory liability balances at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as 
follows: 

2007 2006 
(Millions of dollars) 

Deferred income taxes due to customers $ 60.5 $ 69.3 
Deferred energy supply costs 240.9 164.9 
Federal and New Jersey tax benefits, related to seciuitized stranded 

costs 31.5 34.6 
Asset removal costs 331.8 322.2 
Excess depreciation reserve 90.0 105.8 
Asset retirement obligation — 63.2 
Gain from sale of B.L. England 36.1 — 
Settlement proceeds—Mirant bankmptcy claims 414.6 — 
Gain from sale of Keystone and Conemaugh 30.7 48.4 
Other , 12.8 34.3 

Total Regulatory Liabilities $1,248.9 $842.7 

A description for each category of regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities follows: 

Securitized Stranded Costs: Represents stranded costs associated with contract termination payments 
associated with a contract between ACE and an unaffiliated non-utility generator (NUG) and the discontinuation 
ofthe apphcation of SFAS No. 71 for ACE's electricity generation business. The recovery of these stranded costs 
has been securitized through the issuance by Atiantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC (ACE Funding) of 
transition bonds (Transition Bonds). A customer surcharge is collected by ACE to fund principal and interest 
payments on the Transition Bonds. The stranded costs are amortized over the life ofthe Transition Bonds, which 
mature between 2010 and 2023. 
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Recoverable Pension and OPEB Costs: Represents the funded portion of Pepco Holdings' defined benefit 
pension and other postretirement benefit plans that is probable of recovery in rates under SFAS No. 71 by Pepco, 
DPL and ACE. 

Deferred Energy Supply Costs: The regulatory liabihty balances of $240.9 million and $164.9 million for 
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, primarily represent deferred costs related to a net 
over-recovery by ACE connected with the provision of BGS and other restructuring related costs incurred by 
ACE. The regulatory asset balances of $1.7 milUon and $6.9 milUon for tiie years ended December 31,2007 and 
2006, respectively, represent deferted fuel costs for DPL's gas business, which are recovered annually. 

Deferred Recoverable Income Taxes: Represents a receivable from Power Delivery's customers for tax 
benefits applicable to utility operations of Pepco, DPL, and ACE previously flowed through before the 
companies were ordered to provide deferred income taxes. As the temporary differences between tiie financial 
statement and tax basis of assets reverse, the deferred recoverable balances are reversed. There is no retum on 
these deferrals. 

Deferred Debt Extinguishment Costs; Represents the costs of debt extinguishment of Pepco, DPL and 
ACE for which recovery through regulated utility rates is considered probable and will be amortized to interest 
expense during the authorized rate recovery period. A retum is received on these deferrals. 

Unrecovered Purchased Power Contract Costs: Represents deferred costs related to purchase power 
contracts entered into by ACE and DPL. The ACE amortization period began m July 1994 and wiU end in May 
2014 and eams a retum. The DPL amortization period ended in October 2007 and eamed a retum. 

Deferred Other Postretirement Benefit Costs: Represents the non-cash portion of otiier postretirement 
benefit costs deferred by ACE during 1993 through 1997. This cost is being recovered over a 15-year period that 
began on January 1,1998. There is no retum on this defenal. 

Phase In Credits; Represents phase-in credits for participating Maryland and Etelaware residentitd and 
small commercial customers to mitigate the immediate impact of significant rate increases due to energy costs in 
2006. The deferral period for Delaware was May 1, 2006 to January 1.2008 with recovery to occur over a 
17-month period beginning January 2008. The Delaware deferral will be recovered from participating customers 
on a straight-line basis. The deferral period for Maryland was June 1, 2006 to June 1, 2007, with the recovery to 
occur over an 18-month period beginning June 2007. The Maryland deferral wiU be recovered from participating 
customers at a rate per kilowatt-hour based on energy usage during the recovery period. 

Other: Represents miscellaneous regulatory assets that generally are bemg amortized over 1 to 20 years and 
generally do not receive a retum. 

Deferred Income Taxes Due to Customers: Represents the portion of deferred income tax liabilities 
applicable to utility operations of Pepco, DPL, and ACE that has not been reflected in ctirrent customer rates for 
which future payment to customers is probable. As temporary differences between the financial statement and tax 
basis of assets reverse, deferred recoverable income taxes are amortized. 

Federal and New Jersey Tax Benefits, Related to Securitized Stranded Costs: Securitized stranded costs 
include a portion of stranded costs attributable to the future tax benefit expeaed to be realized when the higher 
tax basis of generating plants divested by ACE is deducted for New Jersey state income tax purposes as weU as 
the future benefit to be realized through the reversal of federal excess deferred taxes. To accoimt for the 
possibility that these tax benefits may be given to ACE's regulated electricity deUvery customers through lower 
rates in the future, ACE established a regulatory liability. The regulatory UabiUty related to fed^al excess 
deferred taxes will remain until such time as the Intemal Revenue Service issues its final regulations with respect 
to normalization of the.se federal excess deferred taxes. 
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Asset Removal Cc»sts: Represents Pepco's and DPL's asset retirement obligations associated with removal 
costs accmed using public service commission approved depreciation techniques for transmission, distribution, 
and general utiUty property. 

Excess Depreciation Reserve: The excess depreciation reserve was recorded as part of an ACE New Jersey 
rate case settlement. This excess reserve is the result of a change in depreciable lives and a change in 
depreciation technique from remaining life to whole life. The excess is being amortized over an 8.25 year period, 
which began in June 2005. 

Asset Retirement Obligation: During die first quarter of 2006, ACE recorded an asset retirement 
obligation of $60 million for B.L. England plant demolition and environmental remediation costs; the obligation 
was to be amortized over a two-year period. The cumulative amortization of $33.0 million at December 31,2006, 
was recorded as a regulatory asset—"Asset Retkement Cost." As discussed in Note (12) "Commitments and 
Contingencies—ACE Sale of Generating Assets," in the first quarter of 2007, ACE completed the sale of the 
B.L. England generating facility and the asset retirement obligation and asset retirement cost were reversed. 

Gain from Sale of B.L. England: In the first quarter of 2007, ACE completed the sale of the B.L. England 
generating facility. Net proceeds from the sale of the plant and monetization of the emission allowance credits 
will be credited to ACE's ratepayers in accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Electric Discount 
and Energy Competition Act (EDECA) and NJBPU orders. 

Settlement Proceeds—^Mirant Bankruptcy Claims: Represents the $413.9 million of net proceeds 
received by Pepco from settlement of a Mirant Corporation (Mirant) claim, plus interest earned, which will be 
used to pay for future above-market capacity and energy purchases under a power purchase agreement entered 
into with Panda-Brandywine L.P. (Panda) over the remaining life of tiie agreement, which extends through 2021 
(the Panda PPA). 

Gain from Sale of Keystone and Conemaugh: In the third quarter of 2006, ACE completed the sale of its 
interests in the Keystone and Conemaugh generating facilities for $175.4 million (after giving effect to post-
closing adjustments). The total gain recognized on this sale, net of adjustments, came to $131.4 miUion. 
Approximately $81.3 milUon ofthe net gain from the sale offset the remaining regulatory asset balance, which 
ACE has been recovering in rates, and $49.8 million of the net gain is being retumed to ratepayers over a 
33-month period as a credit on their bills, which began during the October 2006 billing period. The balance to be 
repaid to customers is $30.7 miUion as of December 31, 2007. 

Other: Includes miscellaneous regulatory Uabiiities such as the over-recovery of procurement, transmission 
and administrative costs associated with Maryland, Delaware and District of Columbia SOS. 

Accounting for Derivatives 

Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries use derivative instmments primarily to manage risk associated with 
commodity prices and interest rates. Risk management policies are determined by PHFs Corporate Risk 
Management Committee (CRMC). The CRMC monitors interest rate fluctuation, commodity price fluctuation, 
and credit risk exposure, and sets risk management policies that estabUsh Umits on unhedged risk. 

PHI accounts for its derivative activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative 
Instmments and Hedging Activities," as amended. SFAS No. 133 requires derivative instruments to be measured 
at fair value. Derivatives are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as other assets or other Uabiiities 
unless designated as "normal purchases and sales." 

Mafk-to-market gains and losses on derivatives that are not designated as hedges are presented on the 
Consolidated Statements of Eamings as operating revenue. PHI uses mark-to-market accounting through 
eamings for derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or that management does not designate as 
hedges. 
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The gain or loss on a derivative that hedges exposure to variable cash flow of a forecasted transaction is 
initially recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (a separate component of common stockholders' equity) and 
is subsequently reclassified into eamings in the same category as the item being hedged when the gain or loss 
from the forecasted transaction occurs. If a forecasted transaction is no longer probable, the deferred gain or loss 
in accumulated other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified to eamings. Gains or losses related to 
any ineffective portion of cash flow hedges are also recognized in eamings immediately. 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges result in a change in the value of the 
asset, liability, or firm commitment being hedged. Changes in fair value of the asset, Uability, or firm 
commitment, and the hedging instmment, are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings. 

Certain commodity forwards are not required to be recorded on a mark-to-market basis of accounting under 
SFAS No. 133. These contracts are designated as "normal purchases and sales" as permitted by SFAS No. 133. 
This type of contract is used in normal operations, setties physically, and foUows standard accmal accounting. 
Unrealized gains and losses on these contracts do not appear on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Examples of 
these transactions include purchases of fuel to be consumed in power plants and actual receipts and deliveries of 
electric power. Normal purchases and sales transactions are presented on a gross basis, normal sales as operating 
revenue, and normal purchases as fuel and purchased energy expenses. 

PHI uses option contracts to mitigate certain risks. These options are normally marked-to-market through 
current eamings because of die difficulty in qualifying options for hedge accounting treatment. Market prices, 
when available, are used to value options. If market prices are not available, the market value of the options is 
estimated using Black-Scholes closed form models. Option contracts typically make up only a small portion of 
PHI's total derivatives portfolio. 

The fair value of derivatives is determined using quoted exchange prices where available. For instmments 
that are not traded on an exchange, extemal broker quotes are used to determine fair value. For some custom and 
complex instmments, intemal models are used to interpolate broker quality price information. Models are also 
used to estimate volumes for certain transactions. The same valuation methods are used to determine the value of 
non-derivative commodity exposure for risk management purposes. 

The impact of derivatives that are marked-to-market through current eamings, the ineffective portion of 
cash flow hedges, and the portion of fair value hedges that flows to current eamings are presented on a net basis 
in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings. When a hedging gain or loss is realized, it is presented on a net basis 
in the same category as the underlying item being hedged. Normal purchase and sale transactions are presented 
gross on the Consohdated Statements of Eamings as they are realized. The unrealized assets and liabilities that 
offset unrealized derivative gains and losses are presented gross on the Consolidated Balance Sheets except 
where contractual netting agreements are in place. 

Emission Allowances 

Emission allowances for sulfur dioxide and nitrous oxide are allocated to generation owners by the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) based on federal programs designed to regulate the emissions from 
power plants. EPA allotments have no cost basis to the generation owners. Depending on the mn-time of a 
generating unit in a given year, and other pollution controls it may have, the unit may need additional allowances 
above its allocation or it may have excess allowances. Allowances are traded among companies in an 
over-the-counter market, which allows companies to purchase additional allowances to avoid incturing penalties 
for noncompliance with applicable emissions standards or to sell excess allowances. 

Pepco Holdings accounts for emission allowances as inventory in the balance sheet line item "Fuel, 
materials and supplies—at average cost." Allowances from EPA allocations are added to ciurent inventory each 
year at a zero basis. Additional purchased allowances are recorded at cost. Allowances sold or consumed at the 
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power plants are expensed at a weighted-average cost. This cost tends to be relatively low due to the inclusion of 
tiie zero-basis allowances. At December 31,2007 and 2006, the book value of emission allowances was $8.4 
million and $ 11.7 milUon, respectively. Pepco Holdings has estabUshed a committee to monitor compliance with 
enussions regulations and ensiu^ its power plants have the required number of aUowances. 

Goodwill and Goodwill Impairment 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets 
acquired. Substantially all of Pepco Holdings' goodwill was generated by Pepco's August 2002 acquisition of 
Conectiv and was recorded at the PHI level. Pepco Holdings tests its goodwill for impaurment araiually as of 
July 1 and whenever an event occurs or circumstances change in the interim that would more likely than not 
reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. The July 1, 2007 test indicated that none of 
Pepco Holdings' goodwill balance was impaired. 

A roll forward of PHI's goodwiU balance foHows (miUions of doUars): 

Balance, December 31,2005 $1,431.3 
Add: Changes in estimates related to pre-merger tax UabiUties .6 
Less: Adjustment due to resolution of pre-merger tax contingencies (9.1) 

Pepco Energy impairment related to completed dispositions (13.6) 

Balance, December31,2006 1,409.2 
Less: Adjustment due to resolution of pre-merger tax contingencies and 

correction of pre-merger deferred tax balances A 

Balance, December 31,2007 $1,409.6 

Long-lived Assets Impairment 

Pepco Holdings evaluates certain long-lived assets to be held and used (for example, generating property 
and equipment and real estate) to determine if they are impau-ed whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Examples of such events or changes include a 
significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset or a significant adverse change in the manner in 
which an asset is being used or its physical condition. A long-lived asset to be held and used is written down to 
fair value if the sum of its expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than its carrying amount. 

For long-lived assets that can be classified as assets to be disposed of by sale, an impairment loss is 
recognized to the extent that the assets' carrying amount exceeds their fair value including costs to seU. 

During 2007, Pepco Holdings recorded pre-tax impairment losses of $2.0 million ($1,3 million after-tax) 
related to certain energy services business assets owned by Pepco Energy Services. Diuing 2006, Pepco Holdings 
recorded pre-tax impairment losses of $18.9 million ($13.7 million after-tax) related to certain energy services 
business assets owned by Pepco Energy Services. The impairments were recorded as a result ofthe execution of 
contracts to seU certain assets, and due to the lower than expected production and related estimated cash flows 
from other assets. The fair value ofthe assets under contracts for sale was determined based on the sales contract 
price; while the fair value of the other assets was determined by estimating future expected production and cash 
flows. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, money market funds, and commercial paper with original 
maturities of three months or less. 
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Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The restricted cash included in Cmrent Assets and the restricted cash and cash equivalents included in 
Investments and Other Assets represent (i) cash held as coUateral that is restricted from use for general corporate 
purposes and (ii) cash equivalents that are specifically segregated, based on management's intent to use such 
cash equivalents solely to fund the future above-market capacity and energy purchase costs under the Panda PPA. 
The classification as current or non-current conforms to the classification of the related UabiUties. 

Prepaid Expenses and Other 

The prepaid expenses and other balance primarily consists of prepayments and the cuirent portion of 
deferred uicome tax assets. 

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for UncoUectible Accounts 

Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries' accounts receivable balances primarily consist of customer accotmts 
receivable, other accounts receivable, and accmed unbiUed revenue. Accmed unbilled revenue represents 
revenue eamed in the current period but not billed to the customer until a future date (usuaUy witinn one month 
after the receivable is recorded). PHI uses the allowance method to account for uncoUectible accounts receivable. 

Capitalized Interest and AUowance for Funds Used During Construction 

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71, PHTs utiUty subsidiaries can capitalize as AUowance for 
Funds Used During Constmction (AFUDC) the capital costs of financing the constmction of plant and 
equipment. The debt portion of AFUDC is recorded as a reduction of "interest expense" and tiie equity portion of 
AFUDC is credited to "otiier income" in the accompanying ConsoUdated Statements of Earnings. 

Pepco Holdings recorded AFUDC for bortowed funds of $7.0 million, $2.8 milUon, and $3.3 milUon for the 
years ended December 31,2007,2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Pepco Holdings recorded amounts for the equity component of AFUDC of $4.4 milUon, $3.8 milUon and 
$4.7 million for the years ended December 31,2007,2(K)6, and 2005, respectively. 

Leasing Activities 

Income from investments in direct financing leases and leveraged lease transactions, in which PCI is an 
equity participant, is accounted for using the financing method. In accordance with the financing method, 
investments in leased property are recorded as a receivable from the lessee to be recovered through the coUection 
of future rentals. For direct financing leases, unearned income is amortized to income over the lease term at a 
constant rate of retum on the net investment. Income, including investment tax credits, on leveraged equipinent 
leases is recognized over the life of the lease at a constant rate of retimi on the positive net investment. 
Investments in equipment under capital leases are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
recorded on a straight-line basis over the equipment's estimated useful life. Each quarter, PHI reviews the 
carrying value of each lease, which includes a review of the underlying lease financial assmnptions, the timing 
and collectibility of cash flows, and the credit quality (including, if available, credit ratings) of the lessee. 
Changes to the underlying assumptions, if any, would be accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 13 and 
reflected in the carrying value of the lease effective for the quarter within which they occm-. 

Amortization of Debt Issuance and Reacquisition Costs 

Pepco Holdings defers and amortizes debt issuance costs and long-term debt premiums and discoimts over 
the lives of the respective debt issues. Costs associated with the redemption of debt for PHTs subsidiaries are 
also deferred and amortized over the lives of the new issues. 
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Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 

Pepco Holdings sponsors a non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan that covers substantiaUy all 
employees of Pepco, DPL, ACE and certain employees of other Pepco Holdings subsidiaries (the PHI Retirement 
Plan). Pepco Holdings also provides supplemental retirement benefits to certain eUgible executives and key 
employees through a nonqualified retirement plan and provides certain postretirement health care and life 
insurance benefits for eligible retured employees. 

Pepco Holdings accounts for the PHI Retirement Plan and nonquahfied retirement plans in accordance with 
SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," as amended by SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting 
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postrethement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,88,106 
and 132 (R)" (SFAS No. 158) and its postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for eUgible employees 
in accordance with SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions," 
as amended by SFAS No. 158. PHI's financial statement disclosures are prepared in accordance with 
SFAS No. 132, "Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits," as amended by 
SFAS No. 158. 

See Note (6), Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits, for additional information. 

Severance Costs 

In 2004, the Power Delivery business reduced its work force through a combination of retirements and 
targeted reductions. This reduction plan met the criteria for the accounting treatment provided under SFAS 
No. 88, "Employer's Accounting for Settiements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for 
Termination Benefits," and SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exh or Disposal Activities," 
as applicable. A roll forward of PHTs severance accrual balance is as follows (millions of dollars): 

Balance, December 31,2005 $ 2.5 
Accmed during 2(X)6 7.3 
Payments during 2006 (5.2) 

Balance, December 31, 2006 4.6 
Accmed during 2007 1.9 
Payments during 2007 (6.4) 

Balance, December 31, 2007 $ .1 

Based on the employees that accepted the severance packages, substantially all of the severance liability was 
paid by December 31,2007. Employees had the option of taking severance payments in a lump sum or over a 
period of time. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs 
and other direct and indirect costs including capitalized interest. The carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment is evaluated for impairment whenever circumstances indicate the carrying value of those assets may 
not be recoverable under the provisions of SFAS No. 144. Upon retirement, the cost of regulated property, net of 
salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. For non-regulated property, the cost and accumulated 
depreciation of the property, plant and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of are removed from the related 
accounts and included in the determination of any gain or loss on disposition. 
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The annual provision for depreciation on electric and gas property, plant and equipment is computed on a 
straight-line basis using composite rates by classes of depreciable property. Accumulated depreciation is charged 
with the cost of depreciable property retired, less salvage and other recoveries. Property, plant and equipment 
other than electric and gas facilities is generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over die useful lives ofthe 
assets. The table below provides system-wide composite depreciation rates for the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006, and 2005. 

Transmission & 
Distribution Cksneration 

2007 ^ ^ 2007 2006 2005 

Pepco 3.0% 3,5% 3.4% — — — 
DPL 2.9% 3.0% 3.1% _ — — 
ACE 2.9% 2.9% 3.1% — .3%(a) 2.4% 
Conectiv Energy — — — 2.0^o 2.0% 2.2% 
Pepco Energy Services — — — 10.1% 9.6% 8.4% 

(a) Rate reflects the Consolidated Balance Sheet classification of ACE's generation assets as "assets held for 
sale" in 2006 and therefore no depreciation expense was recorded. 

In accordance with FASB Staff Position (FSP) American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry 
Audit Guide, Audits of Airiines—"Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities" (FSP AUG AIR-1), 
costs associated with planned major maintenance activities related to generation facilities are expensed as 
incurred. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 

In accordance witii SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" and FIN 47, asset 
removal costs are recorded as regulatory liabilities. At December 31, 2007, $331.8 million of accrued asset 
removal costs ($234.2 milUon for DPL and $97.6 miUion for Pepco) and at December 31,2006, $322.2 miUion 
of accmed asset removal costs ($229.5 milUon for DPL and $92.7 milUon for Pepco) are reflected as regulatory 
liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Public service commission-approved depreciation 
rates for ACE do not contain components for the recovery of removal cost; therefore, the recording of asset 
retirement obligations for ACE associated with accruals for removal cost is not required. Additionally, in 2005 
Pepco Holdings recorded conditional asset retirement obUgations of approximately $1.5 million. Accretion for 
2007 and 2006, which relates to the regulated Power DeUvery segment, has been recorded as a regulatory asset. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Pepco Holdings adopted and implemented SFAS No. 123R, on January 1,2006, using the modified 
prospective method. Under this method, Pepco Holdings recognizes compensation expense for share-based 
awards, modifications or cancellations after the effective date, based on the grant-date fair value. Compensation 
expense is recognized over the requisite service period. In addition, compensation cost recognized includes the 
cost for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, measured at the grant-
date fair value. A deferred tax asset and deferred tax benefit are also recognized concurrently with compensation 
expense for tiie tax effect ofthe deduction of stock options and restricted stock awards, which are deductible only 
upon exercise and vesting/release from restriction, respectively. In applying the modified prospective transition 
method, Pepco Holdings has not restated prior interim and annual financial results and therefore these prior 
periods do not reflect the revised recognition of share-based compensation cost as requned by SFAS No. 123R, 

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP 123(R)-3, "Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax 
Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards" (FSP 123R-3). FSP 123R-3 provides an elective altemative transition 
method that includes a computation that establishes the beginning balance of tiie additional paid-in capital (APIC 
pool) related to tiie tax effects of employee and director stock-based compensation, and a simplified method to 
determine the subsequent impact on the APIC pool of employee and director stock-based awards that are 
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outstanding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. Entities may make a one-time election to apply the transition 
method discussed in FSP 123R-3. That one-time election may be made within one year of an entity's adoption of 
SFAS No. 123R, or the FSP's effective date (November 11,2005), whichever is later. Pepco Holdings adopted 
the altemative transition method at December 31,2006. 

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, Pepco Holdings accounted for its share-based employee 
compensation under the intrinsic value method of expense recognition and measurement prescribed by 
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opitiion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related 
Interpretations" (APB No, 25), Under this method, compensation expense was recognized for restricted stock 
awards but not for stock options granted since the exercise price was equal to the grant-date market price of the 
stock. 

The issuance of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," in 1995 as amended by SFAS 
No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure," permitted continued 
apphcation of APB No. 25, but required tabular presentation of pro-forma stock-based employee compensation 
cost, net income, and basic and diluted earnings per share as if the fau:-value based method of expense 
recognition and measurement prescribed by SFAS No. 123 had been applied to all options. This information for 
the year ended December 31,2005 is as follows: 

For the Year Ended 
December 31,2005 
(MiUions of dollars, 

except per share data) 
Net Income $371.2 
Add: Total stock-based employee compensation expense included in net income as reported 

(net of related tax effect of $1.8 miUion) 2.6 
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value 

based methods for all awards (net of related tax effect of $2.0 million) (2.8) 

Pro forma net income $371.0 

Basic eamings per share as reported $ 1.96 
Pro forma basic eamings per share 1.96 
Diluted eamings per share as reported 1.96 
Pro forma diluted eamings per share 1.96 

Pepco Holdings estimates the fair value of each stock option award on the date of grant using tiie Black-
Scholes-Merton option pricing model. This model uses assumptions related to expected option term, expected 
volatiUty, expected dividend yield and risk-free interest rate. Pepco Holdings uses historical data to estimate 
option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model; separate groups of employees that have 
similar historical exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. The expected term of 
options granted is derived from the output of the option valuation model and represents the period of time that 
options granted are expected to be outstanding. 

No stock options were granted in 2005,2006 or 2007. 

No modifications were made to outstanding stock options prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, and no 
changes in valuation methodology or assumptions in estimating the fair value of stock options have occurred 
with its adoption. 

There were no ciunulative adjustments recorded in the financial statements as a result of this new 
pronouncement; the percentage of forfeitures of outstanding stock options issued prior to SFAS No. 123R's 
adoption is estimated to be zero. 

As of January 1, 2007, there are no outstanding options that were not fiilly vested. Consequentiy, no 
compensation cost related to the vesting of options was recorded in 2007. 
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Cash received from stock options exercised under all share-based payment arrangements for the years ended 
December 31,2007,2006 and 2005, was $13.4 million, $15.9 milUon, and $3.7 milUon. respectively. The actual 
tax benefit reaUzed from tiiese option exercises totaled $1.2 million, $.9 million, and $.3 million, respectively, for 
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. 

Pepco Holdings' current policy is to issue new shares to satisfy stock option exercises and the vesting of 
restricted stock awards. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Eamings 

A detail of the components of Pepco Holdings' Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Eamings is as 
follows. For additional information, see the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Eamings. 

Accumulated 
Interest Other 

Commodity Treasury Rate Comprehensive 
Derivatives Lock Swaps Other (Loss) Eamli^ 

(Millions of dollars) 
Balance, December 31,2004 $ (.5) $(47.1) $(.3) $(4.1) $(52.0) 
Curtent year change 25,1 7 ^ 3 (3.2)(a) 29.2 

Balance, December 31,2005 24.6 (40.1) — (7.3) (22.8) 

Current year change (86.5) 7.0 — (.7)(a) (80.2) 
Impact of initiaUy applying SFAS No. 158, net of tax . . . — — — (.4) C4) 

Balance, December 31,2006 (61.9) (33,1) — (8.4) (103.4) 
Current year change 52.7 4 3 — ^(b) 57.9 

Balance, December 31,2007 $ (9.2) $(28.8) $— $(7.5) $ (45.5) 

(a) Represents an adjustment for nonqualified pension plan minimum liability and the impact of initially 
applying SFAS No. 158. 

(b) Represents amortization of gains and losses for prior service costs. 

A detail of the income tax (benefit) expense allocated to the components of Pepco Holdings* Other 
Comprehensive (Loss) Eamings for each year is as follows. 

Accumulated 
Interest Other 

Commodity Treasury Rate Comprehensive 
Derivatives Lock Swaps Other (Loss) Eamings 

(Millions of doUars) 
December 31,2005 $ 15.9 $4.7 $ .1 $(2.0)(a) $ 18.7 
December 31,2006 $(55,0) $4.7 $— $ (.5)(a) $(50.8) 
December 31,2007 $ 31.3 $5.1 $— $ .7(b) $ 37.1 

(a) Represents tiie income tax benefit on an adjustment for nonqualified pension plan minimum liability. 
(b) Represents income tax expense on amortization of gains and losses for prior service costs. 

Financial Investment Liquidation 

In October 2005, PCI received $13.3 milUon in cash related to the liquidation of a preferted stock 
investment that was written-off in 2(K)1 and recorded an after-tax gain of $8.9 milUon. 
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Income Taxes 

PHI and the majority of its subsidiaries file a consohdated federal income tax retum. Federal income taxes 
are allocated among PHI and the subsidiaries included in its consolidated group pursuant to a written tax sharing 
agreement which was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in connection with the 
establishment of PHI as a holding company as part of Pepco's acquisition of Conectiv on August 1, 2002. Under 
this tax sharing agreement, PHI's consolidated federal income tax liability is allocated based upon PHI's and its 
subsidiaries' separate taxable income or loss amounts. 

In 2006, the FASB issued HN 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes" (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies 
the criteria for recognition of tax benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," 
and prescribes a financial statement recognition threshold and measurement attribute for a tax position taken or 
expected to be taken in a tax retum. Specifically, it clarifies that an entity's tax benefits must be "more likely 
than not" of being sustained prior to recording the related tax benefit in the financial statements. If the position 
drops below the "more likely than not" standard, the benefit can no longer be recognized. FIN 48 also provides 
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosiu'e, and 
transition. 

On May 2, 2007, the FASB issued FSP HN 48-1, "Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48" 
(FIN 48-1), which provides guidance on how an enterprise should determine whether a tax position is effectively 
settied for the purpose of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. PHI applied the guidance of HN 
48-1 with its adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. 

The consolidated financial statements include current and deferted income taxes. Curtent income taxes 
represent the amounts of tax expected to be reported on PHI's and its subsidiaries' federal and state income tax 
returns. 

Deferted income tax assets and UabiUties represent the tax effects of temporary differences between the 
financial statement and tax basis of existing assets and liabilities and are measured using presently enacted tax 
rates. The portion of Pepco's, DPL's, and ACE's deferred tax liability applicable to its utility operations that has 
not been recovered from utility customers represents income taxes recoverable in the future and is included in 
"regulatory assets" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. For additional information, see the preceding discussion 
under "Regulation of Power Delivery Operations." 

Deferred income tax expense generally represents the net change during the reporting period in the net 
deferred tax UabiUty and deferted recoverable income taxes. 

PHI recognizes interest on under/over payments of income taxes, interest on unrecognized tax benefits, and 
tax-related penalties in income tax expense. 

Investment tax credits from utility plants purchased in prior years are reported on the ConsoUdated Balance 
Sheets as "Investment tax credits." These investment tax credits are being amortized to income over the useful 
Uves ofthe related utility plant. 

FIN 46R, '^Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" 

Subsidiaries of Pepco Holdings have power purchase agreements (PPAs) with a number of entities, 
including three NUGs and ACE and the Panda PPA. Due to a variable element in die pricing stmcture of the 
NUGs and the Panda PPA, Pepco and ACE, respectively, potentially assume the variability in the operations of 
the plants related to these PPAs and therefore have a variable interest in the counterparties to these PPAs, In 
accordance with the provisions of FIN 46R, Pepco Holdings continued, during 2007, to conduct exhaustive 
efforts to obtain information from these four entities, but was unable to obtain sufficient information to conduct 
the analysis required under FIN 46R to determine whether these four entities were variable interest entities or if 
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the Pepco Holdings subsidiaries were the primary beneficiary. As a result, Pepco Holdings has appUed the scc^e 
exemption from the application of FIN 46R for enterprises that have conducted exhaustive efforts to obtain the 
necessary information, but have not been able to obtain such information. 

Net purchase activities with the counterparties to the NUGs and the Panda PPA for the years ended 
December 31,2007, 2006, and 2005, were approximately $412 milUon, $403 nulUon, and $419 tniUion, 
respectively, of which approximately $378 million, $367 million, and $381 mUUon, respectively, related to 
power purchases under the NUGs and the Panda PPA. Pepco Holdings does not have loss exposure tmder the 
NUGs because cost recovery will be achieved from ACE's customers through regulated rates. In addition, there 
is no loss exposure on the Panda PPA as recovery will be achieved through the PJM Interconnection LLC (PJM) 
and funds received from the Mirant bankmptcy settiement. 

Sale of Interest in Cogeneration Joint Venture 

During the first quarter of 2006, Conectiv Energy recognized a $12.3 million pre-tax gain ($7.9 milUon 
after-tax) on the sale of its equity interest in a joint venture which owns a wood biuning cogeneration faciUty. 

Other Non-Current Assets 

The other assets balance principally consists of real estate under development, equity and other investments, 
unrealized derivative assets, and deferred compensation tmst assets. 

Other Current liabilities 

The other curtent liability balance principally consists of customer deposits, accrued vacation liability, 
curtent unrealized derivative liabilities, and other miscellaneous UabiUties. For 2006, tiiis balance included $70 
milUon paid to Pepco by Mirant in settiement of claims resuUing from the Murant bankmptcy. 

Other Deferred Credits 

The other deferted credits balance principally consists of non-current unrealized derivative liabilities and 
miscellaneous deferred Uabiiities. 

Preferred Stock 

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, PHI had 40 milUon shares of prefened stock authorized for issuance, 
with a par value of $.01 per share. No shares of preferted stock were outstanding at December 31,2007 and 
2006. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to ciurent year presentation. 

Newly Adopted Accounting Standards 

FSP FTB 85-4-1, 'Accounting for Ufe Settlement Contracts by Third-Party Investors" 

In March 2006, tiie FASB issued FSP FASB Technical BuUetin (FTB) 85-4-1, "Accounting for Life 
Settiement Contracts by Third-Party Investors" (FSP FTB 85-4-1). This FSP provides initial and subsequent 
measurement guidance and financial statement presentation and disclosure guidance for investments by third-
party investors in life settlement contracts. FSP FTB 85-4-1 also amends certain provisions of FTB No, 85-4, 
"Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance," and SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instmments and 
Hedging Activities." The guidance m FSP FTB 85-4-1 appUes prospectively for all new Ufe settiement contracts 
and is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2006 (year ended December 31, 2007 for Pepco 
Holdings). Implementation of FSP FTB 85-4-1 did not have a material impact on Pepco Holdings' overaU 
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 
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SFAS No. 155, "Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments—an amendment of FASB Statements 
No. 133 and 140" 

In Febmary 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, "Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instmments— 
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140" (SFAS No. 155). SFAS No. 155 amends SFAS No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivative Instmments and Hedging Activities," and SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers 
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities." SFAS No. 155 resolves issues addressed 
in SFAS No. 133 Implementation Issue No. Dl, "Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in 
Securitized Financial Assets." SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instmments acquired or issued after the 
beginning of an entity's first fiscal year that begins after September 15,2006 (year ended December 31,2007 for 
Pepco Holdings). Implementation of SFAS No. 155 did not have a material impact on Pepco Holdings' overall 
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 

SFAS No. 156, "Accountingfor Servicing of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140" 

In March 2006, tiie FASB issued SFAS No. 156, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets" (SFAS 
No. 156), an amendment of SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and 
Extinguishments of Liabilities," with respect to the accounting for separately recogiuzed servicing assets and 
servicing liabilities. SFAS No. 156 requires an entity to recognize a servicing asset or servicing Uability upon 
undertaking an obligation to service a financial asset via certain servicing contracts, and for all separately 
recognized servicing assets and servicing Uabiiities to be initially measured at fair value, if practicable. 
Subsequent measurement is permitted using either the amortization method or the fair value measurement 
method for each class of separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities, 

SFAS No. 156 is effective as of the beginning of an entity's first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 
2006 (year ended December 31, 2007 for Pepco Holdings). Application is to be applied prospectively to all 
transactions following adoption of SFAS No. 156. Implementation of SFAS No. 156 did not have a material 
impact on Pepco Holdings' overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 

EITF Issue No. 06-3, "Disclosure Requirements for Taxes Assessed by a Govemmental Authority on 
Revenue-producing Transactions" 

On June 28, 2006, tiie FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 06-3, "Disclosure 
Requirements for Taxes Assessed by a Govemmental Authority on Revenue-producing Transactions" 
(EITF 06-3). EITF 06-3 provides guidance on an entity's disclosure of its accounting policy regarding the gross 
or net presentation of certain taxes and provides that if taxes included in gross revenues are significant, a 
company should disclose the amount of such taxes for each period for which an income statement is presented 
(i.e., both interim and annual periods). Taxes within the scope of EITF 06-3 are those that are imposed on and 
concurtent with a specific revenue-producing transaction. Taxes assessed on an entity's activities over a period of 
time are not witiiin the scope of EITF 06-3. Pepco Holdings implemented EITF 06-3 during the first quarter of 
2007. Taxes included in Pepco Holdings gross revenues were $318.3 milUon, $259.9 million and $266.1 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

FSP FAS 13-2, "Accountingfor a Change or Projected Change in the Timing of Cash Flows Relating to 
Income Taxes Generated by a Leveraged Lease Transaction" 

On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FSP Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) 13-2, "Accounting for a 
Change or Projected Change in the Timing of Cash Flows Relating to Income Taxes Generated by a Leveraged 
Lease Transaction" (FSP FAS 13-2). FSP FAS 13-2, which amends SFAS No. 13, "Accounting for Leases," 
addresses how a change or projected change in the timing of cash flows relating to income taxes generated by a 
leveraged lease transaction affects the accounting by a lessor for that lease. 
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FSP FAS 13-2 is effective for the first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2006 (year ended 
December 31, 2007 for Pepco Holdings). A material change in the timing of cash flows under Pepco Holdings' 
cross-border leases as the result of a settlement with the Intemal Revenue Service or a change in tax law would 
require an adjustment to the book value of the leases and a charge to earnings equal to the repricing impact of the 
disallowed deductions which could result in a material adverse effect on Pepco Holdings' overall financial 
condition, results of operations, and cash flows. For a further discussion, see "Federal Tax Treatment of Cross-
Border Leases" in Note (12), "Commitments and Contingencies." 

FSP A UG AIR'J, "Accountingfor Planned Major Maintenance Activities " 

On September 8, 2006, the FASB issued FSP AUG AIR-1, which prohibits the use of the accme-in-advance 
method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities in annual and interim financial reporting periods 
for all industries. FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective the first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2006 (year 
ended December 31, 2007 for Pepco Holdings). Implementation of FSP AUG AIR-1 did not have a material 
impact on Pepco Holdings' overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 

EITF Issue No. 06-5, "Accountingfor Purchases of Life Insurance—Determining the Amount That Could Be 
Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, Accountingfor Purchases of Life Insurance " 

On September 20, 2006, tiie FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 06-5, "Accounting for Purchases of Life 
Insurance—Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance witii FASB Technical Bulletin 
No. 85-4, Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance" (EITF 06-5) which provides guidance on whetiier an 
enthy should consider the contractual ability to surrender all of the individual-life policies (or certificates under a 
group Hfe policy) together when determining the amount that could be realized in accordance witii FTB 85-4, and 
whetiier a guarantee of the additional value associated with the group life policy affects that determination. EITF 
06-5 provides that a policyholder should (i) determine the amount that could be realized under tiie msurance 
contract assuming the surrender of an individual-life by individual-life poUcy (or certificate by certificate in a 
group policy) and (ii) not discount the cash surrender value component of the amount that could be realized when 
contractual restrictions on the ability to surtender a policy exist unless contractual limitations prescribe that the 
cash surrender value component ofthe amount that could be realized is a fixed amount, in which case the amount 
that could be realized should be discounted in accordance with Accounting Principles Board of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Opinion 21. EITF 06-5 is effective for fiscal years beginiung after 
December 15, 2006 (year ended December 31, 2007 for Pepco Holdings). Implementation of EITF 06-5 did not 
have a material impact on Pepco Holdings' overall financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, or 
footnote disclosure requirements. 

FASB Staff Position No. EITF 00-19-2, "Accountingfor Registration Payment Arrangements " 

On December 21, 2006, the FASB issued FSP No. EITF 00-19-2, "Accounting for Registration Payment 
Arrangements" (FSP EITF 00-19-2), which addresses an issuer's accounting for registration payment 
arrangements and specifies that the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer 
consideration under a registration payment arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included as a 
provision of a financial instmment or other agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in 
accordance with SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies." FSP EITF 00-19-2 is effective immediately for 
registration payment arrangements and the financial instmments subject to those arrangements that are entered 
into or modified subsequent to the date of its issuance. For registration payment arrangements and financial 
instmments subject to those arrangements that were entered into prior to the issuance of FSP EITF 00-19-2, this 
guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, and 
interim periods within those fiscal years (year ended December 31, 2007 for Pepco Holdings). Pepco Holdmgs 
implemented FSP EITF 00-19-2 during the first quarter of 2007. The implementation did not have a material 
impact on its overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards, Not Yet Adopted 

SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" 

In September 2006, tiie FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" (SFAS No. 157) which 
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measiuing fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair 
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronotmcements that require or permit fair 
value measurements and does not require any new fair value measurements. However, it is possible that the 
application of this Statement will change cmrent practice with respect to tiie definition of fair value, the methods 
used to measure fair value, and the disclosures about fair value measurements. 

The provisions of SFAS No. 157, as issued, are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15,2007, and interim periods witiiin those fiscal years (January 1, 2008 for Pepco 
Holdings). On Febmary 6, 2008, the FASB decided to issue final Staff Positions that will (i) defer the effective 
date of SFAS No. 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or 
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least annually) and (ii) remove 
certain leasing transactions from tiie scope of SFAS No. 157, The final Staff Positions will defer the effective 
date of SFAS No. 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15,2(X)8, and interim periods within those fiscal 
years for items within the scope of the final Staff Positions. Pepco Holdings has evaluated the impact of SFAS 
No. 157 and does not anticipate its adoption will have a material impact on its overall financial condition, results 
of operations, cash flows, or footnote disclosure requirements. 

SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an 
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" 

On Febmary 15,2007, die FASB issued SFAS No, 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and 
Financial LiabiUties—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (SFAS No. 159) which permits 
entities to elect to measure eUgible financial instmments at fan: value. The objective of SFAS No. 159 is to 
improve financial reporting by providing entities with tiie opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported eamings 
caused by measuring related assets and Uabiiities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting 
provisions. SFAS No, 159 appUes under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value 
measurements and does not require any new fair value measurements. However, it is possible that the apphcation 
of SFAS No. 159 will change current practice with respect to the definition of fair value, the methods used to 
measure fau* value, and the disclosures about fair value measurements. 

SFAS No. 159 estabUshes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons 
between companies that choose different measiu-ement attributes for similar types of assets and Uabiiities. SFAS 
No. 159 requires companies to provide additional information that will help mvestors and other users of financial 
statements to more easily understand the effect of the company's choice to use fair value on its eammgs. It also 
requires entities to display the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the company has chosen to use 
fair value on the face ofthe balance sheet, SFAS No. 159 does not eliminate disclosure requirements included in 
otiier accounting standards. 

SFAS No. 159 applies to the beginning of a reporting entity's first fiscal year that begins after 
November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for Pepco Holdings), with early adoption permitted for an entity that has 
also elected to apply the provisions of SFAS No, 157, Fair Value Measurements. An entity is prohibited from 
retrospectively applying SFAS No. 159, unless it chooses early adoption. SFAS No. 159 also applies to eligible 
items existing at November 15, 2007 (or early adoption dale). Pepco Holdings has evaluated the impact of SFAS 
No. 159 and does not anticipate its adoption will have a material impact on its overall financial condition, results 
of operations, cash flows, or footnote disclosure requirements. 
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FSP FIN 39-1, "Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39" 

On April 30, 2007, the FASB issued FSP FIN 39-1, "Amendment of FASB hiterpretation No. 39" to amend 
certain portions of Interpretation 39. The FSP replaces the terms "conditional contracts" and "exchange 
contracts" in Interpretation 39 with the term "derivative instmments" as defined in Statement 133. The FSP also 
amends Interpretation 39 lo allow for the offsetting of fair value amounts for the right to reclaim cash coUateral 
or receivable, or the obligation to retum cash collateral or payable, arising from the same master netting 
arrangement as the derivative instmments. FSP FIN 39-1 applies to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 
2007 (year ending December 31, 2008 for Pepco Holdings), with early adoption permitted. Pepco Holdings has 
evaluated the impact of FSP FIN 39-1 and has determined that it does not have a material impact on its overaU 
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, or footnote disclosure requu-ements. 

EITF Issue No. 06-11, "Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards" 

On June 27, 2007, tiie FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 06-11, "Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of 
Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards" (EITF 06-11) which provides that a reaUzed income tax benefit 
from dividends or dividend equivalents that are charged to retained eamings and paid to employees for equity 
classified nonvested equity shares, nonvested equity share units, and outstanding equity share options should be 
recognized as an increase to additional paid-in capital (APIC). The amount recognized in APIC for the reaUzed 
income tax benefit from dividends on those awards should be included in the pool of excess tax benefits available 
to absorb tax deficiencies on share-based payment awards (i.e. the "APIC pool"). 

EITF Issue No. 06-11 also provides that, when the estimated amount of forfeitures increases or actual 
forfeitures exceeds estimates, the amount of tax benefits previously recognized in APIC should be reclassified 
into the income statement; however, the amount reclassified is limited to the APIC pool balance on the 
reclassification date. 

EITF Issue No. 06-11 applies prospectively to the income tax benefits of dividends on equity-classified 
employee share-based payment awards that are declared in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, and 
interim periods within those fiscal years (year ending December 31, 2008 for Pepco Holdings). Early application 
is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year for which interim or annual financial statements have not yet 
been issued. Retrospective application to previously issued financial statements is prohibited. Entities must 
disclose the nature of any change in their accounting policy for income tax benefits of dividends on share-based 
payment awards resulting from the adoption of this guidance. Pepco Holdings has evaluated the impact of EITF 
Issue No. 06-11 and has determined that it does not have a material impact on its overall financial condition, 
results of operations, cash flows, or footnote disclosure requirements. 

SFAS No. 141 (R), "Business Combinations—a replacement of FASB Statement No. 141" 

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), "Business Combinations—a replacement of 
FASB Statement No. 141" (SFAS No. 141(R)) which replaces FASB Statement No. 141, "Business 
Combinations." This Statement retains the fundamental requirements in Statement 141 that the acquisition 
method of accounting (which Statement 141 called the purchase method) be used for aU business combinations 
and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination. 

SFAS No. 141(R) applies to all transactions or other events in which an entity (the acquirer) obtains control 
of one or more businesses (the acquiree). It does not apply to (i) the formation of a joint venture, (ii) the 
acquisition of an asset or a group of assets that does not constitute a business, (iii) a combmation between entities 
or businesses under common control and (iv) a combination between not-for-profit organizations or the 
acquisition of a for-profit business by a not-for-profit organization. 

SFAS No. 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or 
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008 (January 1, 2009 
for Pepco Holdings). An entity may not apply it before that date. 
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SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB 
No. 51" 

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial 
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51" (SFAS No. 160) which amends ARB 51 to establish accounting and 
reporting standards for the noncontrolUng interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It 
clarifies that a noncontrolUng mterest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consoUdated entity that 
should be reported as equity in the consoUdated financial statements. 

A noncontrolUng interest, sometimes called a minority interest, is the portion of equity in a subsidiary not 
attributable, directiy or mdirectiy, to a parent. The objective of SFAS No. 160 is to improve the relevance, 
comparability, and transparency of the financial mformation that a reporting entity provides in its consolidated 
financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards that require (i) the ownership interests in 
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent be clearly identified, labeled, and presented in the consolidated 
statement of financial position within equity, but separate from the parent's equity, (ii) the amount of 
consoUdated net income attributable to the parent and to tiie noncontrolling mterest be clearly identified and 
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of income, (iii) changes in a parent's ownership interest while 
the parent retains its controlling financial interest in its subsidiary be accounted for consistently. A parent's 
ownership interest in a subsidiary changes if the parent purchases additional ownership interests in its subsidiary 
or if the parent seUs some of its ownership interests in its subsidiary. It also changes if the subsidiary reacquu^s 
some of its ownership interests or the subsidiary issues additional ownership interests. All of those transactions 
are economically similar, and tiiis Statement requires that they be accounted for similarly, as equity transactions, 
(iv) when a subsidiaty is deconsolidated, any retained noncontrolling equity investment in the former subsidiary 
be initially measured at fan- value. The gain or loss on the deconsoUdation ofthe subsidiary is measured using the 
fair value of any noncontroUing equity investment rather than the carrying amount of that retained investment 
and (v) entities provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the 
parent and the interests ofthe noncontrollmg owners. 

SFAS No. 160 applies to all entities that prepare consolidated financial statements, except not-for-profit 
organizations, but will affect only tiiose entities that have an outstanding noncontrolUng interest in one or more 
subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary. 

SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or 
after December 15, 2008 (January 1, 2009, for Pepco Holdings). Earlier adoption is prohibited. SFAS No. 160 
shall be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which this Statement is mitially applied, 
except for the presentation and disclosure requirements. The presentation and disclosure requirements shall be 
applied retrospectively for all periods presented. Pepco Holdings is curtentiy evaluating tiie impact SFAS 
No. 160 may have on its overall financial condition, resuUs of operations, cash flows or footnote disclosure 
requirements. 
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(3) SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Based on the provisions of SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related 
Information," Pepco Holdings' management has identified its operating segments at December 31, 2007 as 
Power Delivery, Conectiv Energy, Pepco Energy Services, and Otiier Non-Regulated. Prior to 2007, intrasegment 
revenues and expenses were not eliminated at the segment level for purposes of presenting segment financial 
results but rather were eliminated for PHI's consolidated results tinough tiie "Corp. & Otiier" column. Beginning 
in 2007, intrasegment revenues and expenses are eliminated at tiie segment level. Segment results for the years 
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 have been reclassified to conform to tiie curtent presentation. Segment 
financial information for tiie years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, is as follows. 

Year Ended December 31,2007 
(MUUons of dollars) 

Competitive 
Enei^ SegmCTits 

Pepco Other 
Power Conectiv Energy Non- Corp.& 

Delivery Energy Services Regulated Qtberja) PHI Cons. 

Operating Revenue $5,244.2 $2,205.6(b) $2,309.1(b) $ 76.2 $ (468.7) $ 9,366.4 
Operating Expense (c) 4,713.6(b)(d) 2,057.1 2,250.9 5.0 (466.8) 8,559.8 
Operating Income 530.6 148.5 58.2 71.2 (1.9) 806.6 
Interest Income 13.0 5.5 3.2 10.4 (12.5) 19.6 
Interest Expense 189.3 32.7 3.6 33.8 80.4 339.8 
Other Income 19.5 .5 5.0 9.8 1.2 36.0 
Preferted Stock Dividends .3 — — 2.5 (2.5) ,3 
Income Taxes 141.7(e) 48.8 24.4 9.3 (36.3) 187.9 
Net Income (Loss) 231.8 73.0 38.4 45.8 (54.8) 334.2 
Total Assets 9,799.9 1,785.3 682.7 1,533.0 1,310.1 15,111.0 
Constmction Expenditures . . . . $ 554.2 $ 42.0 $ 15.2 $ — $ 12.0 $ 623.4 

(a) Includes unallocated Pepco Holdings' (parent company) capital costs, such as acquisition financmg costs, 
and the depreciation and amortization related to purchase accounting adjustments for the i m value of • 
Conectiv assets and Uabiiities as ofthe August 1, 2002 acquisition date. Additionally, tiie Total Assets Ime 
item in this column includes Pepco Holdmgs' goodwill balance. Included in Corp. & Other are 
intercompany amounts of $(469.0) miUion for Operating Revenue, $(464.2) nulUon for Operating Expense, 
$(92.8) miUion for Interest Income, $(90.4) million for Interest Expense, and $(2.5) million for Preferted 
Stock Dividends. 

(b) Power Delivery purchased electric energy and capacity and natural gas from Conectiv Energy and Pepco 
Energy Services in the amount of $431.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. 

(c) Includes depreciation and amortization of $365.9 million, consisting of $306.0 milUon for Power DeUvery, 
$37.7 million for Conectiv Energy, $12.1 milUon for Pepco Energy Services, $1.8 nulUon for Otiier 
Non-Regulated and $8.3 million for Corp. & Other. 

(d) Includes $33.4 miUion ($20.0 milhon, after-tax) from settiement of Mirant bankmptcy clamis. 
(e) Includes $19.5 million benefit ($17.7 milUon net of fees) related to Maryland income tax settiement. 

B- l l l 



Year Ended December 31,2006 
(MiUions of doUars) 

Competitive 
Energy Segments 

Pepco Other 
Power Conectiv Energy Non- Corp. & 

Delivery Energy Services R^ulated Qther(a) PHI Cons. 

Operating Revenue $5,118.8 $l,964.2(b)(g) $1,668,9 $ 90.6 $ (479.6)(g) $ 8,362.9 
Operating Expense (c) 4,65l.0(b) l,866.6(g) l,631.2(e) 6.5 (485.7)(g) 7,669.6 
Operating Income 467.8 97.6 37.7 84.1 6.1 693.3 
Interest Income 12.0 7.7(g) 2.9 7.3(h) (I3.0)(g)(h) 16.9 
Interest Expense 180.5 36.1(g) 4.9 3S,2(h) 79.4(g)(h) 339.1 
Ottierincome 18,6 10.4(d) 1.6 7.9 1.3 39.8 
Preferted Stock Dividends 2.1 — — 2.5 (3.4) 1.2 
Income Taxes 124.5(f) 32.5 16.7 8.4(f) (20.7)(f) 161.4 
Net Income (Loss) 191.3 47.1 20.6 50.2 (60.9) 248.3 
Total Assets 8,933.3 1,841,5 617.6 1,595.6 1,255.5 14,243.5 
Constmction Expenditures $ 447.2 $ 11.8 $ 6.3 $ — $ 9.3 $ 474.6 

(a) Includes unallocated Pepco Holdings' (parent company) capital costs, such as acquisition financing costs, 
and the depreciation and amortization related to purchase accounting adjustments for the fair value of 
Conectiv assets and liabilities as ofthe August 1, 2002 acquisition date. Additionally, the Total Assets Une 
item in this column includes Pepco Holdings' goodwill balance. Included in Corp. & Other are 
intercompany amounts of $(481.3) million for Operating Revenue, $(475.1) million for Operating Expense, 
$(90.0) milUon for Interest Income, $(87.6) million for Interest Expense, and $(2.5) million for Preferted 
Stock Dividends. 

(b) Power Delivery piwchased electric energy and capacity and natural gas from Conectiv Energy in the amount 
of $460.5 miUion for tiie year ended December 31, 2006. 

(c) Includes depreciation and amortization of $413.2 miUion, consisting of $354.3 million for Power Delivery, 
$36.3 milUon for Conectiv Energy, $11.8 miUion for Pepco Energy Services, $1.8 milUon for Other 
Non-Regulated and $9.0 milUon for Corp. & Other. 

(d) Includes $12.3 miUion gain ($7.9 nuUion after-tax) on the sale of its equity interest in a joint venture which 
owns a wood buming cogeneration faciUty in California. 

(e) Includes $18.9 miUion of impairment losses ($13.7 miUion after-tax) related to certain energy services 
business assets. 

(f) In 2006, PHI resolved certain, but not all, tax matters that were raised in Intemal Revenue Service audits 
related to the 2001 and 2002 tax years. Adjustments recorded related to these resolved tax matters residted 
in a $6.3 million increase in net income ($2.5 miUion for Power Delivery and $5.4 million for Other 
Non-Regulated, partially offset by an unfavorable $1.6 million impact in Corp. & Otiier). To the extent that 
the matters resolved related to tax contingencies from the Conectiv legacy companies that existed at the 
August 2002 acquisition date, in accordance with accounting mles, an additional adjustment of $9.1 miUion 
($3.1 miUion related to Power DeUvery and $6.0 milUon related to Other Non-Regulated) was recorded in 
Corp. & Other to eliminate the tax benefits recorded by Power Delivery and Other Non-Regulated against 
the goodwill balance that resulted from the acquisition. Also during 2006, the total favorable impact of $2.6 
million was recorded that resulted from changes in estimates related to prior year tax liabilities subject to 
audit ($4.1 million for Power Delivery, partially offset by an unfavorable $1.5 million for Corp. & Other). 

(g) Due to the reclassification referred to in the introductory paragraph, the Conectiv Energy segment does not 
include $193,1 miUion of intrasegment operating revenue and operating expense and $27.7 million of 
intrasegment interest income and interest expense. Accordingly, the Corp. & Other column does not include 
an elimination for these amounts. 

(h) Due to the reclassification referred to in the introductory paragraph, the Otiier Non-Regulated segment does 
not include $163.1 million of intrasegment interest income and interest expense. Accordingly, the Corp. & 
Other column does not include an elimination for these amounts. 

B-112 



Year Ended December 31.2005 
(MUlions of dollars) 

Competitive 
Energy Segments 

Pepco Other 
Power Conectiv Energy Non- Corp. & 

Delivery Energy Services Regulated Other(a) PHI Cons. 
Operating Revenue $4,702.9 $2,393. l(b)(h) $1,487.5 $ 84.5 $ (602.5)(h) $ 8,065.5 
Operating Expense (g) 4,032.1(b)(e) 2,289.2(h) 1,445.1 (3.8)(f) (602.5)(h) 7,160.1 
Operating Income 670.8 103.9 42.4 88.3 — 905.4 
Interest Income 8.3 3.0(h) 2.5 7.8(i) (5.6)(h)(i) 16.0 
Interest Expense 175.0 29.8(h) 5.6 41.7(i) 85.5(h)(i) 337.6 
Other Income 20.2 3.6 1.7 4.6 6.0 36.1 
Preferred Stock Dividends . . . 2.6 — — 2.5 (2.6) 2.5 
Income Taxes 228.6(c) 32.6 15.3 12.8 (34,1) 255.2 
Extraordinary Item (net of tax 

of $6.2 milUon) 9.0(d) — _ _ _ 9.0 
Net Income (Loss) 302.1 48.1 25.7 43.7 (48,4) 371.2 
Total Assets 8,738.6 2,227.6 514.4 1,476.9 1,081.4 14,038.9 
Constmction Expenditures . . . $ 432.1 $ 15.4 $ 11.3 $ — $ 8.3 $ 467.1 

(a) Includes unallocated Pepco Holdings' (parent company) capital costs, such as acquisition financmg costs, 
and the depreciation and amortization related to purchase accounting adjustments for the fair value of 
Conectiv assets and liabilities as ofthe August I, 2002 acquisition date. Additionally, the Total Assets Une 
item in this column includes Pepco Holdings' goodwiU balance. Included in Corp. & Other are 
intercompany amounts of $(605.2) million for Operating Revenue, $(599.7) million for Operatmg Expense, 
$(81.3) million for Interest Income, $(79.1) million for Interest Expense, and $(2.5) milUon for Preferred 
Stock Dividends. 

(b) Power Delivery purchased electric energy and capacity and natural gas from Conectiv Energy in the amount 
of $565.3 miUion for the year ended December 31, 2005. 

(c) Includes $10.9 million in income tax expense related to Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) Revenue Ruling 
2005-53. Also refer to Note (12) Commitments and Contingencies for a discussion ofthe IRS mixed service 
cost issue. 

(d) Relates to ACE's electric distribution rate case settiement that was accounted for in the first quarter of 2005. 
This resulted in ACE's reversal of $9.0 miUion in after-tax accmals related to certain deferred costs that are 
now deemed recoverable. This amount is classified as extraordinary since the original accmal was part of an 
extraordinary charge in conjunction with the accounting for competitive restmcturing in 1999. 

(e) Includes $70.5 miUion ($42.2 miUion after-tax) gain (net of customer sharing) from the settlement of the 
Pepco TPA Claim and the Pepco asbestos claims against the Mirant bankmptcy estate. Also includes $68.1 
million gain ($40.7 million after-tax) from the sale of non-utility land owned by Pepco at Buzzard Point. 

(f) Includes $13.3 million gain ($8.9 million after-tax) related to PCI's liquidation of a financial investment that 
was written off in 2001. 

(g) Includes depreciation and amortization of $427.3 nullion, consisting of $361.4 milUon for Power Delivery, 
$40.4 miUion for Conectiv Energy, $14.5 nullion for Pepco Energy Services, $1.7 milhon for Otiier 
Non-Regulated and $9.3 miUion for Corp. & Ottier. 

(h) Due to the reclassification referted to in the introductory paragraph, the Conectiv Energy segment does not 
include $210.5 miiUon of intrasegment operating revenue and operating expense and $28.9 milhon of 
intrasegment interest income and interest expense. Accordingly, the Corp. & Other column does not include 
an elimination for these amounts. 

(i) Due to the reclassification referred to in the introductory paragraph, the CHher Non-Regulated segment does 
not include $107.4 miUion of intrasegment interest income and interest expense. Accordingly, the Corp. & 
Other column does not include an elimination for these amounts. 
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(4) LEASING ACTIVITIES 

Finance Leases 

As of December 31,2007 and 2006, Pepco Holdings had equity investments in energy leveraged leases of 
$1,384.4 milUon and $1,321.8 milhon, respectively, consisting of electric power plants and natural gas 
transmission and distribution networks located outside ofthe United States. As of December 31,2007, $708.4 
million of equity is attributable to facilities located in Austria, $490.5 milUon in The Netherlands and $185,5 
million in Australia. 

The components ofthe net investment in finance leases at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized 
below (milUons of dollars): 

At December 31,2007; 

Scheduled lease payments, net of not\-recourse debt $2,281.2 
Less: Unearned and deferred income , (896.8) 

Investment in finance leases held in tmst 1,384.4 
Less: Deferred taxes , (772.8) 

Net Investment in Finance Leases Held in Tmst $ 611.6 

At December 31,2006: 

Scheduled lease payments, net of non-recourse debt $2,284.6 
Less: Unearned and deferred mcome (962.8) 

Investment in finance leases held in tmst 1,321.8 
Less: Deferted taxes (682.2) 

Net Investment in Finance Leases Held in Tmst $ 639.6 

Income recognized from leveraged leases (included in ''Other Operating Revenue") was comprised of the 
following for the years ended December 31: 

2007 2006 2005 

(Milfions 4rf dollars) 

Pre-tax eamings from leveraged leases $76.0 $88.2 $81.5 
Income tax expense 15.8 25.8 20.6 

Net Income from Leveraged Leases Held in Trust $60.2 $62,4 $60.9 

Scheduled lease payments from lever^ed leases ate net of non-recourse debt. Minimum lease payments 
receivable from PCTs finance leases for each of tiie years 2008 through 2012 and thereafter are zero for 2008 and 
2009, $16.0 million for 2010, zero for 2011 and 2012, and $1,368.4 million tiiereafter. For a discussion of tiie 
federal tax treatment of cross-border leases, see Note (12) "Conunitments and Contingencies." 

Lease Commitments 

Pepco leases its consolidated control center, an integrated energy management center used by Pepco to 
centrally control the operation of its transmission and distribution systems. This lease is accoimted for as a capital 
lease and was iintially recorded at the present value of future lease payments, which totaled $152 milUon. The 
lease requires semi-annual payments of $7.6 milUon over a 25-year period beginning in December 1994 and 
provides for transfer of ownership of the system to Pepco for $ 1 at the end of the lease term. Under SFAS No. 71, 
tiie amortization of leased assets is modified so that the total interest on the obUgation and amortization of the 
leased asset is equal to ttie rental expense allowed for rate-making purposes. This lease has been treated as an 
operating lease for rate-making purposes. 
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Capital lease assets recorded within Property, Plant and Equipment at December 31,2007 and 2006, in 
millions of dollars, are comprised of tiie following: 

Original Accumulated Net Book 
At December 31,2007 Cost Amortization Value 
Transmission $ 76.0 $20.5 $ 55.5 
Distribution 76.0 20.5 55.5 
General 2 ^ 2.4 .2 

Total $154.6 $43.4 $111.2 

At December 31,2006 

Transmission $ 76.0 $18.0 $ 58.0 
Distribution 76.0 18.0 58.0 
General 2 ^ 2.0 ^ 

Total $154.6 $38.0 $116.6 

The approximate annual commitments under all capital leases are $15.4 milUon for 2008, $15.2 nulUon for 
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, and $106.7 miUion tiiereafter. 

Rental expense for operating leases was $50.6 million, $50.8 milUon, and $53.3 miUion for the years ended 
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. 

Total future minimum operating lease payments for Pepco Holdings as of December 31,2007 include $38.1 
million in 2008, $33.7 milUon in 2009, $28.7 miUion in 2010, $25.6 million in 2011, $24.0 nuUion m 2012 and 
$361.9 million after 2012. 

(S) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment is comprised of the foUowing: 

Original Accumolated Net Book 
At December 31,2007 Cost Depreciation Vahie 

(Millions of dollars) 
Generation $ 1,758.2 $ 607.9 $1,150.3 
Distribution 6,494.2 2,426.6 4.067.6 
Transmission 1,961.7 712.2 1.249.5 
Gas 363.7 104.8 258.9 
Constmction work in progress 561.1 — 561.1 
Non-operating and other property 1,167.6 578.3 589.3 

Total $12,306.5 $4,429.8 $7,876.7 

At December 31, 2006 

Generation $ 1,811.6 $ 608.9 $1,202,7 
Distribution 6,285.6 2,302.3 3.983.3 
Transmission 1.850.3 679.1 1,171.2 
Gas 349.8 97.6 252.2 
Constmction work in progress 343.5 — 343.5 
Non-operating and other property 1,178.9 555.2 623.7 

Total $11,819.7 $4,243.1 $7,576.6 

The non-operating and other property amounts include balances for general plant, distribution and 
transmission plant held for future use as well as other property held by non-utiUty subsidiaries. 
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Pepco Holdings' utiUty subsidiaries use separate depreciation rates for each electric plant account. The rates 
vary fix)m jurisdiction to jurisdiction. 

Asset Sales 

As discussed in Note (2), Summary of Significant Accounting PoUcies, in the third quarter of 2006, ACE 
completed the sale of its interest in the Keystone and Conemaugh generating facilities for approximately $175.4 
miUion (after giving effect to post-closing adjustments) and in the first quarter of 2007, ACE completed the sale 
of the B.L. England generating facility for a price of $9.0 miUion. 

In the third quarter of 2005, Pepco sold for $75 milUon in cash 384,051 square feet of excess non-utiUty 
land located at Buzzard Point in the District of Columbia. The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of $68.1 milUon, 
which was recorded as a reduction of Operating Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Eammgs. 

Jointly Owned Plant 

PHTs ConsoUdated Balance Sheet includes its proportionate share of assets and UabiUties related to jointiy 
owned plant. PHFs subsidiaries have ownership interests in transmission facilities and other facilities in which 
various parties have ovsoiership interests. PHTs proportionate share of operating and maintenance expenses of the 
jointiy owned plant is included in the corresponding expenses in PHI's Consolidated Statements of Eamings. PHI 
is responsible for providing its share of financing for the jointly owned faciUties. Information with respect to 
PHI's share of jointly owned plant as of December 31, 2007 is shown below. 

Jointiy Owned Plant 
Ownership 

Share 

Transmission FaciUties Various 
Other FaciUties Various 

Total 

Plant in 
Service 

$35.8 
5.1 

$40.9 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Construction 
WcH'ltin 
Pn^ess 

(Millions of doUars) 
$23.1 $— 

2.1 — 

$25.2 $— 

(6) PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFTTS 

Pension Benefits and Other Postretirement Benefits 

Pepco Holdings sponsors the PHI Retirement Plan, which covers substantially aU employees of Pepco, DPL, 
ACE and certain employees of other Pepco Holdings' subsidiaries. Pepco Holdings also provides supplemental 
retirement benefits to certain eUgible executive and key employees through nonqualified retirement plans. 

Pepco Holdings provides certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for eUgible retired 
employees. Certain employees hired on January 1, 2005 or later will not have company subsidized retiree 
medical coverage; however, they will be able to purchase coverage at full cost through PHI. 

Pepco Holdings accounts for the PHI Retirement Plan and nonqualified retirement plans in accordance with 
SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," and its postretirement health care and life insurance 
benefits for eligible employees in accordance with SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement 
Benefits Other Than Pensions." In addition, on December 31, 2006, Pepco Holdings implemented SFAS 
No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of 
FASB Stateiacnts No. 87, 88, 106 and 132 (R)" (SFAS No. 158) which requires that companies recognize a net 
UabiUty or asset to report the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans 
on the balance sheet with an offset to accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders' equity or a 
deferral in a regulatory asset or UabiUty if probable of recovery in rates under SFAS No. 71 "Accounting For the 
Effects of Certain Types of Legislation." SFAS No. 158 does not change how pension and other postretirement 
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benefits are accounted for and reported in the consolidated statements of eamings. PHI's financial statement 
disclosures are prepared in accordance with SFAS No. 132, "Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Ottier 
Postretirement Benefits," as revised and amended by SFAS No. 158. Refer to Note (2) "Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies—Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans" for additional information. 

All amounts in the following tables are in millions of dollars. 

Other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

At December 31, 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Change in Benefit Obligation 
Benefit obUgation at beginning of year $3,715.3 $1,746.0 $ 611.2 $ 610.2 
Service cost 36.3 40.5 7.1 8.4 
Interest cost 101.6 96.9 36.7 34.6 
Amendments 3.6 — — — 
Actuarial (gain) loss (7.0) (42.4) 3.2 (3.6) 
Benefits paid (149.0) (125.7) (38.4) (38.4) 

Benefit obligation at end of year $1.700.8 $1,715.3 $ 619.8 $611.2 

Change in Plan Assets 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $1,633.7 $1,578.4 $ 206.2 $ 173.7 
Actual return on plan assets 138.7 177.8 12.0 23.2 
Company contributions 8.0 3.2 54.5 47.7 
Benefitspaid (149.0) (125.7) (38.4) (38.4) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $1,631,4 $1.633.7 $ 234.3 $206.2 

Funded Status at end of year (plan assets less plan 
ObUgations) $ (69.4) $ (81.6) $(385.5) $(405.0) 

The foUowing table provides tiie amounts recognized in PHI's Consolidated Balance Sheets as of 
December 31, 2007 in comphance with SFAS No. 158: 

Other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

Regulatory asset $202.6 $229.9 $ 131.4 $ 135.5 
Current liabihties (3,9) (3.3) — — 
Pension benefit obligation (65.5) (78.3) — — 
Other postretirement benefit obligations — — (385.5) (405.0) 
Deferred income tax . . . 5.0 5.6 — — 
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax . . . . 7.5 8.4 — — 

Net amount recognized $145.7 $162.3 $(254.1) $(269.5) 
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Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) and regulatory assets at 
December 31,2007 in compliance witii SFAS No. 158 consist of: 

Pension Benefits 
Other Postretirement 

Benefits 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

Unrecognized net actuarial loss $214.7 $242.8 $158.9 $167.6 
Unamortized prior service cost (credit) .3 Ll (31.2) (36.6) 
Unamortized transition liabUity — — 3.7 4.5 

215.0 243.9 131.4 135.5 

Accumulated other comprehensive income ($7.5 milUon, 
and $8.4 miUion net of tax) 12.4 14.0 — — 

Regulatory assets 202.6 229.9 131.4 135.5 

$215.0 $243.9 $131.4 $135.5 

The table below provides the components of net periodic benefit costs recognized for the years ended 
December 31. 

Other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

2007 2006~ 2005 2007 2006 2005 

Service cost $ 36.3 $ 40.5 $ 37.9 $ 7.1 $ 8.4 $ 8.5 
Interest cost 101.6 96.9 96.1 36.7 34.6 33.6 
Expected retum on plan assets (130.2) (130.0) (125.5) (13.3) (11.5) (10.9) 
Amortization of prior service cost .8 .8 1.1 (4.2) (4,0) (3.3) 
Amortization of netloss 9.3 17.5 10.9 11.2 14.3 11.3 
Recognition of Benefit Contract 3.6 — — 2.0 — — 
Curtailment/Settiement 

(Gain)/Loss 3 3 — — (.4) — — 

Net periodic benefit cost $ 24.7 $ 25.7 $ 20.5 $39.1 $41.8 $39.2 

The 2007 combined pension and other posU:etirement net periodic benefit cost of $63.8 million includes 
$22.3 miUion for Pepco, $4.3 milhon for DPL and $11.0 milUon for ACE. The remaining net periodic benefit 
cost includes amounts for other PHI subsidiaries. 

The 2006 combined pension and other postreturement net periodic benefit cost of $67.5 million includes 
$32.1 milUon for Pepco. $.7 milUon for DPL and $14.3 million for ACE. The remaining net periodic benefit cost 
includes amounts for other PHI subsidiaries. 

The 2005 combined pension and other postretirement net periodic benefit cost of $59.7 million includes 
$28.9 million for Pepco, $(2.0) million for DPL and $16.9 miUion for ACE. The remaining net periodic benefit 
cost includes amounts for ottier PHI subsidiaries. 
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The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the benefit obligations at 
December 31: 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Health care cost trend rate assumed for current year 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the 

ultimate trend rate) 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 

Pension Benefits 
2007 2006 

6.25% 6.00% 
4.50% 4.50% 

— — 

Other Postretirement 
Benefits 

2007 

6.25% 
4.50% 
8.00% 

5.00% 
2010 

2006 

6.00% 
4.50% 
9,00% 

5.00% 
2010 

Assumed heaUh care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for tiie health 
care plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following 
effects (millions of dollars): 

1-Percentage- 1-Percentage-
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Increase (decrease) on total service and interest cost $ 2.1 $ (2.1) 
Increase (decrease) on postretirement benefit obligation $31.8 $(31.6) 

The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine ttie net periodic benefit cost for the 
years ended December 31 : 

Otiber Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

Discount rate 6.000% 5.625% 6.000% 5.625% 
Expected long-term retum on plan assets 8.250% 8.500% 8.250% 8.500% 
Rate of compensation increase 4,500% 4,500% 4.500% 4.500% 

A cash flow matched bond portfolio approach to developing a discount rate is used to value SFAS No. 87 
and SFAS No. 106 liabilities. The hypothetical portfolio includes high quality instmments with maturities that 
mirror the benefit obligations. 

In selecting an expected rate ofretum on plan assets, PHI considers actual historical retums, econonuc 
forecasts and the judgment of its investment consultants on expected long-term performance for tiie types of 
investments held by the plan. The plan assets consist of equity and fixed income investments, and when viewed 
over a long-term horizon, are expected to yield a retum on assets of 8.250%. 

Plan Assets 

The PHI Retirement Plan weighted average asset allocations at December 31,2007, and 2006. by asset 
category are as foUows: 

Plan Assets 
at Decemi)er 31, 
2007 2006 

Asset Category 
Equity securities 58% 58% 
Debt securities 33% 34% 
Other 9% 8% 

Total 100% 100% 

Tai^Plan 
Asset 

AUocatl<m 

60% 

10% 

100% 

Minimum/ 
Maximum 

5 5 % - 6 5 % 
30% - 50% 

0% - 1 0 % 
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Pepco Holdings' Other Postretirement plan weighted average asset allocations at December 31, 2007, and 
2006, by asset category are as follows: 

Plan Assets 
at December 31. 
2007 2006 

Asset Category 
Equity securities 62% 64% 
Debt securities 34% 33% 
Cash _ 4 % 3% 

Total 100% 100% 

Target Plan 
Asset 

Allocation 

35% 
__5% 

100% 

Minimum/ 
Maximum 

55%-65% 
20%-50% 
0% - 1 0 % 

In developing an asset allocation policy for the PHI Retirement Plan and other posU:etirement plan, PHI 
examined projections of asset retums and volatility over a long-term horizon. In connection with this analysis, 
PHI exanuned the risk/retum tradeoffs of altemative asset classes and asset mixes given long-term historical 
relationships, as well as prospective capital market retums. PHI also conducted an asset/liability study to match 
projected asset growth with projected UabiUty growtii and provide sufficient liquidity for projected benefit 
payments. By mcorporating tiie results of these analyses with an assessment of its risk posture, and taking into 
account industry practices, PHI developed its asset mix guideUnes. Under these guidelines, PHI diversifies assets 
in order to protect against large investment losses and to reduce the probabiUty of excessive performance 
volatility while maximizing retum at an acceptable risk level. Diversification of assets is implemented by 
allocating monies to various asset classes and investment styles within asset classes, and by retaining mvestment 
management firm(s) witii complementary investment philosophies, styles and approaches. Based on the 
assessment of demographics, actuarial/funding, and business and financial characteristics, PHI beUeves that its 
risk posture is sUghtiy below average relative to otiier pension plans. Consequentiy, Pepco Holdings believes that 
a sUghtly below average equity exposure (i.e. a target equity asset allocation of 60%) is appropriate for tiie PHI 
Retirement Plan and the other postretirement plan. 

On a periodic basis, Pepco Holdings reviews its asset mix and rebalances assets back to the target allocation 
over a reasonable period of time. 

No Pepco Holdings common stock is included in pension or postretirement program assets. 

Cash Flows 

Contributions—PHI Retirement Plan 

Pepco Holdings' funding policy with regard to tiie PHI Retkement Plan is to maintain a funding level in 
excess of 100% with respect to its accumulated benefit obligation (ABO), The PHI Retirement Plan currently 
meets the minimum funding requirements of the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) 
without any additional funding. In 2007 and 2006, PHI made no contributions to the plan. At December 31, 2007, 
PHI's Plan assets were $1,631.4 and the ABO was $1,538.0 million. At December 31, 2006, PHTs Plan assets 
were $1,633.7 million and the ABO was $1,575.2 milUon. Assuming no changes to the current pension plan 
assumptions, PHI projects no funding wiU be required under ERISA in 2008; however, PHI may elect to make a 
discretionary tax-deductible contribution, to maintain its plan assets in excess of its ABO. 

Contributions—Other Postretirement Benefits 

In 2007 and 2006, Pepco contributed $10.3 milUon and $6.0 miUion, respectively, DPL contributed $8.0 
mUlion and $6.8 miUion, respectively, and ACE contributed $6.8 miUion and S6.6 milUon, respectively, to the 
plans. In 2007 and 2006, contributions of $13.2 milUon and $13.5 milUon, respectively, were made by other PHI 
subsidiaries. Assuming no changes to the other postretuement benefit pension plan assumptions, PHI expects 
similar amounts to he contributed in 2008. 

B-120 



Expected Benefit Payments 

Estimated future benefit payments to participants in PHI's pension and postretirement welfare benefit plans, 
which reflect expected future service as appropriate, as of December 31,2007 are as foUows (milUons of 
dollars): 

Years 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

2013 tiu-ough 2017 

Pension Benefits 

$106.5 
110.2 
112.4 
119.5 
121.8 
656.3 

Other Postretirement BendUs 

$ 40,3 
42.3 
44.1 
45.5 
46.5 

246,1 

Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 

On December 8,2003, tiie Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 (the 
Medicare Act) became effective. The Medicare Act introduced a prescription dmg benefit under Medicare 
(Medicare Part D), as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefits plans that provide a 
benefit that is at least actuariaUy equivalent to Medicare Part D. Pepco Holdings sponsors post-retirement healtii 
care plans that provide prescription dmg benefits that PHI plan actuaries have determined are actuarially 
equivalent to Medicare Part D. At December 31,2007, the estimated reduction in accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation is $30.4 million. In 2007 and 2006, Pepco Holdings received $1.9 million and $1.6 million, 
respectively, in Federal Medicare prescription dmg subsidies. 

Pepco Holdings Retirement Savings Plan 

Pepco Holdings has a defined contribution employee benefit plan (the Plan). Participation in the Plan is 
voluntary. All participants are 100% vested and have a nonforfeitable interest in ttieu own contributions and in 
the Pepco Holdings company matching contributions, including any eamings or losses tiiereon, Pepco HoltUngs' 
matching contributions were $11.0 million, $11.0 miUion, and $10,4 miUion for the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. 
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(7) DEBT 

LONG-TERMDEBT 

The components of long-term debt are shown below. 

Interest Rate 

First Mortgage Bonds 
Pepco: 

6.25% 
6.50% 
5.875% 
5.75% (a) 
4.95% (a)(b) 
4.65% (a)(b) 
Variable (a)0?) 
5.375% (a) 
5.75% (a)(b) 
5.40% (a)(b) 
6.50% (a)(b) 

ACE: 
6.71%-7.15% 
7.25%-7.63% 
6.63% 
7.68% 
6.80% (a) 
5.60% (a) 
Variable (a)(b) 
5.80% (a)(b) 
5.80% (a)(b) 

Amortizing First Mortgage Bonds 
DPL: 

6.95% 

Total First Mortgage Bonds 

Unsecured Tax-Exempt Bonds 
DPL: 

5.20% 
3.15% 
5.50% 
4.90% 
5.65% 
Variable 

Total Unsecured Tax-Exempt Bonds 

At December 31, 

Maturity 2007 2006 

2007 
2008 
2008 
2010 
2013 
2014 
2022 
2024 
2034 
2035 
2037 

2007 - 2008 
2010-2014 

2013 
2015-2016 

2021 
2025 
2029 
2034 
2036 

2007-2008 

(Millions of dollars) 

$ — 
78.0 
50.0 
16.0 

200.0 
175.0 
109.5 
38.3 

100.0 
175.0 
250.0 

50.0 
8.0 

68.6 
17.0 
38.9 
4.0 

54.7 
120.0 
105.0 

4.4 

$ 175.0 
78.0 
50.0 
16.0 

200.0 
175.0 
109.5 
38.3 

100.0 
175.0 

— 

51.0 
8.0 

68.6 
17.0 
38.9 
4.0 

547 
120.0 
105.0 

7.6 

2019 
2023 (c) 
2025(d) 
2026(e) 
2028 

2030-2038 

$1,662.4 $1,591.6 

$ 31.0 $ 31.0 
18.2 
15.0 
34.5 
16.2 
93.4 

18.2 
15.0 
34.5 
16.2 
93.4 

$ 208.3 $ 208.3 

(a) Represents a series of First Mortgage Bonds issued by the indicated company as collateral for an 
outstanding series of senior notes or tax-exempt bonds issued by the same company. The maturity date, 
optional and mandatory prepayment provisions, if any, interest rate, and interest payment dates on each 
series of senior notes or tax-exempt bonds are identical to the terms of die collateral First Mortgage Bonds 
by which it is secured. Payments of principal and interest on a series of senior notes or tax-exempt bonds 
satisfy the corresponding payment obUgations on the related series of collateral First Mortgage Bonds. 
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Because each series of senior notes and tax-exempt bonds and the series of collateral First Mortgage Bonds 
securing that series of senior notes or tax-exempt bonds effectively represents a single financial obUgation, 
the senior notes and the tax-exempt bonds are not separately shown on the table. 

(b) Represents a series of First Mortgage Bonds issued by the indicated company as collateral for an 
outstanding series of senior notes as described in footnote (a) above that will, at such time as there are no 
First Mortgage Bonds of the issuing company outstanding (otiier than collateral First Mortgage Bonds 
securing payment of senior notes), cease to secure the corresponding series of senior notes and will be 
canceUed. 

(c) The bonds are subject to mandatory tender on August 1, 2008. 
(d) The bonds are subject to mandatory tender on July 1,2010. 
(e) The bonds are subject to mandatory tender on May 1, 2011. 

NOTE: Schedule is continued on next page. 
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At December 31, 
Interest Rate 

Medium-Term Notes (unsecured) 
Pepco: 

7.64% 
6.25% 

DPL: 
7.06%-8.13% 
7.56%-7.58% 
6.81% 
7.61% 
7.72% 

ACE: 
7.52% 

Total Medium-Term Notes (unsecured) 

Recourse Debt 
PCI: 

6.59%-6.69% 
7.62% 
7.40% (a) 

Total Recourse Debt 

Notes (secured) 
Pepco Energy Services: 

7.85% 

Notes (unsecured) 
PHI: 

5.50% 
Variable 
4.00% 
6.45% 
5.90% 
6.00% 
6.00% 
7.45% 

DPL: 
5.00% 
5,00% 
5.22% 

Total Notes (unsecured) 

Maturity 2007 2006 

2007 
2009 

2007 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2027 

(MilUons of dollHfs) 

$ — 
50.0 

14.0 
4.0 
12.0 
10.0 

$ 35.0 
50.0 

61.5 
14.0 
4.0 
12.0 
10.0 

2007 

2014 
2007 
2008 

15.0 

$ 90.0 $ 201.5 

$ 11.1 $ 

92.0 

11.1 
34.3 
92.0 

$ 103.1 $ 137.4 

2017 $ 10.0 $ 9.9 

2007 
2010 
2010 
2012 
2016 
2017 
2019 
2032 

2014 
2015 
2016 

$ -
250.0 
200,0 
750,0 
200.0 
250.0 
200.0 
250.0 

100.0 
100.0 
100.0 

$2,400.0 

$ 500,0 
250.0 
200.0 
750.0 
200.0 
— 
— 

250.0 

100.0 
100.0 
100.0 

$2,450,0 

(a) Debt issued at a fixed rate of 8.24%. The debt was swapped into variable rate debt at tfie time of issuance. 

NOTE: Schedule is continued on next page. 
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At Decembo* 31, 

Interest Rate 

Total Long-Term Debt 
Net unamortized discount 
Current maturities of long-term debt 

Total Net Long-Term Debt 

Transition Bonds Issued by ACE Funding 
2.89% 
2.89% 
4.21% 
4.46% 
4.91% 
5.05% 
5.55% 

Total 
Net unamortized discount 

Current maturities of long-term debt 

Total Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding 

Maturity 2007 2006 

2010 
2011 
2013 
2016 
2017 
2020 
2023 

(Millions of dollars) 

$4,473.8 
(6.2) 

(292.8) 
$4,174.8 

$ 13.2 
14.4 
66.0 
52.0 

118.0 
54.0 

147.0 

$4,598.7 
(4.9) 

(825.2) 
$3,768.6 

$ 34.5 
23.0 
66.0 
52.0 

118,0 
54.0 

147.0 

464.6 
(.1) 

(31.0) 

494.5 
(•2) 

(29.9) 

$ 433.5 $ 464.4 

The outstanding First Mortgage Bonds issued by each of Pepco, DPL and ACE are secured by a lien on 
substantially all ofthe issuing company's property, plant and equipment. 

ACE Funding was established in 2001 solely for the purpose of securitizing authorized portions of ACE's 
recoverable stranded costs through the issuance and sale of Transition Bonds. The proceeds ofthe sale of each 
series of Transition Bonds have been transferred to ACE in exchange for tiie transfer by ACE to ACE Funding of 
the right to collect a non-bypassable transition bond charge from ACE customers pursuant to bondable stranded 
costs rate orders issued by die NJBPU in an amount sufficient to fund the principal and interest payments on tiie 
Transition Bonds and related taxes, expenses and fees (Bondable Transition Property). The assets of ACE 
Funding, including the Bondable Transition Property, and the Transition Bond charges collected from ACE's 
customers, are not available to creditors of ACE. The holders of Transition Bonds have recourse only to the 
assets of ACE Funding. 

The aggregate amounts of maturities for long-term debt and Transition Bonds outstanding at December 31, 
2007, are $323.8 miUion in 2008, $82.2 milUon in 2009, $531.9 miUion in 2010, $69.9 milUon in 2011, $787.3 
miUion in 2012, and $3,143.3 million tiiereafter, 

PHI's long-term debt is subject to certain covenants. PHI and its subsidiaries are in compUance witii all 
requirements. 

LONG-TERM PROJECT FUNDING 

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, Pepco Energy Services had outstanding total long-term project funding 
(including current maturities) of $29.3 million and $25.7 milUon, respectively, related to energy savings contracts 
performed by Pepco Energy Services. The aggregate amounts of maturities for tiie project funding debt 
outstanding at December 31, 2007, are $8.4 miUion in 2008, $2,1 mUlion in 2009, $2.0 milUon in 2010, $1.7 
milUon in 2011, $1.6 million in 2012, and $13.5 million thereafter. 
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SHORT-TERM DEBT 

Pepco Holdings and its regulated utility subsidiaries have traditionally used a number of sources to fulfill 
short-term funding needs, such as commercial paper, short-term notes, and bank lines of credit. Proceeds from 
short-term borrowings are used primarily to meet working capital needs, but may also be used to temporarily 
fimd long-term capital requirements. A detail ofthe components of Pepco Holdings' short-term debt at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows. 

2007 2006 
(Millions of dollars) 

Commercial paper $137.1 $195.4 
Variable rate demand bonds 151.7 154.2 

Total $288.8 $349.6 

Commercial Paper 

Pepco Holdings maintains an ongoing commercial paper program of up to $875 million. Pepco, DPL. and 
ACE have ongoing commercial paper programs of up to $500 milUon, $275 milUon, and $250 miUion, 
respectively. The commercial paper programs of PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE are backed by a $1,5 bilUon credit 
facility, which is described under the heading "Credit FaciUty" below. 

Pepco Holdings, Pepco, DPL and ACE had zero, $84.0 million, $24.0 million and $29.1 milUon of 
commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2007, respectively. The weighted average interest rate for Pepco 
Holdings, Pepco, DPL and ACE commercial paper issued during 2007 was 5.58%, 5.27%, 5.35% and 5.45% 
respectively. The weighted average maturity for Pepco Holdings, Pepco, DPL and ACE was two, four, four, and 
three days respectively for all commercial paper issued during 2007. 

Variable Rate Demand Bonds 

Variable Rate Demand Bonds ("VRDB") are subject to repayment on ttie demand of the holders and for this 
reason are accounted for as short-term debt in accordance with GAAP. However, bonds submitted for purchase 
are remarketed by a remarketing agent on a best efforts basis. PHI expects that the bonds submitted for purchase 
will continue to be remarketed successfully due to the credit worthiness ofthe issuing company and because the 
remarketing resets the interest rate to the then-current market rale. The issuing company also may utilize one of 
the fixed rate/fixed term conversion options ofthe bonds to establish a maturity which cortesponds to the date of 
final maturity of the bonds. On this basis, PHI views VRDBs as a source of long-term financing. The VRDBs 
outstanding at December 31,2007 mature in 2008 to 2009 ($5,8 million), 2014 to 2017 ($48.6 milUon), 2024 
($33.3 milUon) and 2028 to 2031 ($64 miUion). The weighted average interest rate for VRDB was 3.79% during 
2007 and 3.55% during 2006. 

Credit Facitity 

PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE maintain a credit facility to provide for their respective short-term liquidity 
needs. 

The aggregate borrowing limit under the faciUty is $1.5 bUlion, all or any portion of which may be used to 
obtain loans or to issue letters of credit, PHTs credit Umit under the facility is $875 million. The credit linut of 
each of Pepco, DPL and ACE is the lesser of $500 million and the maximum amount of debt the company is 
permitted to have outstanding by its regulatory authorities, except that the aggregate amount ofcredit used by 
Pepco, DPL and ACE at any given time coUectively may not exceed $625 milUon. The interest rate payable by 
each company on utilized funds is based on the prevailing prime rate or Eurodollar rate, plus a margin that varies 
according to the credit rating ofthe bortower. The facUity also includes a "swingline loan sub-facility," pursuant 
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to which each company may make same day borrowings in an aggregate amount not to exceed $150 milUon. Any 
swingUne loan must be repaid by the borrower within seven days of receipt thereof. AU indebtedness inctured 
under the faciUty is unsecured. 

The facility commitment expiration date is May 5, 2012, with each company having the right to elect to 
have 100% of tiie principal balance of the loans outstanding on the expiration date continued as non-revolving 
term loans for a period of one year from such expiration date. 

The facility is intended to serve primarily as a source of liquidity to support the commercial paper programs 
of the respective companies. The companies also are permitted to use the faciUty to bortow funds for general 
corporate purposes and issue letters of credit. In order for a borrower to use the faciUty, certain representations 
and warranties made by the bortower at the time the credit agreement was entered into also must be tme at the 
time the facility is utilized, and the borrower must be in compUance with specified covenants, including the 
financial covenant described below. However, a material adverse change in the bortower's business, property, 
and results of operations or financial condition subsequent to the entry into the credit agreement is not a 
condition to the availability of credit under the facUity. Among the covenants to which each of the compames is 
subject are (i) the requirement that each borrowmg company maintain a ratio of total indebtedness to total 
capitalization of 65% or less, computed in accordance witii the terms of the credit agreement, which calculation 
excludes certain tmst preferred securities and defertable interest subordinated debt from the definition of total 
indebtedness (not to exceed 15% of total capitalization), (u) a restriction on sales or other dispositions of assets, 
other than sales and dispositions permitted by the credit agreement, and (iii) a restriction on the incmrence of 
liens on the assets of a borrower or any of its significant subsidiaries other than liens permitted by the credit 
agreement. The agreement does not include any rating triggers. 

(8) INCOME TAXES 

PHI and the majority of its subsidiaries file a consoUdated federal uicome tax retum. Federal mcome taxes 
are allocated among PHI and the subsidiaries included in its consolidated group pursuant to a written tax sharing 
agreement that was approved by the SEC in connection with the estabUshment of PHI as a holding company as 
part of Pepco's acquisition of Conectiv on August 1, 2002. Under this tax sharing agreement, PHI's consolidated 
federal income tax liability is allocated based upon PHI's and its subsidiaries' separate taxable income or loss. 
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The provision for consoUdated income taxes, reconciliation of consolidated income tax expense, and 
components of consolidated deferted tax liabilities (assets) are shown below. 

Provision for Consolidated Income Taxes 

For the Year 
Ended December 31, 

2007 2006 2005 
(Millions of dollars) 

Operations 
Current Tax Expense (Benefit) 

Federal $103.4 $(77.5) $236.2 
Stateandlocal 5 ^ — 81.9 

Total Current Tax Expense (Benefit) 108.4 (77.5) 318.1 

Deferted Tax Expense (Benefit) 
Federal 82.2 202.8 (24.4) 
State and local .5 40.8 (33.4) 
Investment tax credits (3.2) (4.7) (5.1) 

Total Deferted Tax Expense (Benefit) 79.5 238.9 (62.9) 

Total Income Tax Expense fi:om Operations 187.9 161.4 255.2 

Extraordinary Item 
Deferted Tax Expense 

Federal — — 4.8 
Slate and local — — L4 

Total Deferred Tax on Extraordinary Item — — 6.2 

Total Consolidated Income Tax Expense $187.9 $161,4 $261.4 

Reconciliation of Consolidated Income Tax Expense 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
2007 

Amount 

Income Before Income Taxes and Extraordinary Item $522.1 
Preferred Dividends .3 

Income Before Preferted Dividends, Income Taxes and 
Exttaordinary Item $522.4 

Income tax at federal statutory rate $182.8 
Increases (decreases) resulting from 

Depreciation metiiod and plant basis differences 9.5 
State income taxes, net of federal effect 22.6 
Tax credits (2.8) 
Maryland State refund, net of federal effect (19.5) 
Leveraged leases (7.4) 
Change in estimates related to prior year tax liabilities 4,8 
Deferred tax basis adjustment 4.1 
Otiier, net (6.2) 

Total ConsoUdated Income Tax Expense firom Operations $187.9 

2006 2005 

Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate 
(MiUions of doUars) 

$409.7 
1.2 

$410.9 

35% $143.8 

2 7.9 
4 25.6 

(1) (4.7) 
(4) — 
(1) (9.3) 
1 2.6 
1 — 

(1) (4.5) 

35% 

2 
6 

(1) 

(2) 
— 

(1) 

$617.4 
2.5 

$619.9 

$217.1 

9.7 
30.8 
(4-7) 

(7.8) 
17.9 

(7.8) 

35^ 

1 
5 

(1) 

(1) 
3 

(1) 

36% $161,4 39% $255.2 41% 
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FIN 48, "Accountingfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes" 

As disclosed in Note (2), "Summary of Significant Accountmg Policies", PHI adopted FIN 48 effective 
January 1, 2007. Upon adoption, PHI recorded the cumulative effect ofthe change in accounting principle of 
$7.4 miUion as a decrease in retained earnings. Also upon adoption, PHI had $186.9 milUon of unrecognized tax 
benefits and $24.3 million of related accmed interest. 

Reconciliation of Beginning and Ending Balances of Unrecognized Tax Benefits 

Balance as of January 1, 2007 $186.9 
Tax positions related to current year: 

Additions 37.5 
Reductions , (1.1) 

Tax positions related to prior years: 
Additions 112.5 
Reductions (13.3) 

Settiements . . (47.1) 

Balance as of December 31, 2007 $275.4 

As of December 31, 2007, PHI had $26.4 million of accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits. 

Unrecognized Benefits That If Recognized Would Affect the Effective Tax Rate 

Unrecognized tax benefits represent those tax benefits related to tax positions that have been taken or are 
expected to be taken in tax returns that are not recognized in the financial statements because, in accordance with 
FIN 48, management has either measured the tax benefit at an amount less ±an the benefit claimed or expected 
to be claimed or has concluded that it is not more Ukely than not that the tax position will be ultimately sustained. 

For the majority of these tax positions, the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but there is uncertainty 
about the timing of such deductibility. Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007, included $11.2 million 
that, if recognized, would lower the effective tax rate. 

Interest and Penalties 

PHI recognizes interest and penalties relating to its unrecognized tax benefits as an element oftax expense. 
For the year ended December 31, 2007, PHI recognized $2.1 miUion of interest expense and penalties, net, as a 
component of tax expense. 

Possible Changes to Unrecognized Benefits 

Total unrecognized tax benefits that may change over the next twelve months include the matter of Mixed 
Service Costs. See discussion in Note (12), "Commitments and Contingencies—IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue." 

Tax Years Open to Examination 

PHI and the majority of its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax retum. PHFs federal income 
tax liabilities for Pepco legacy companies for all years through 20(X), and for Conectiv legacy compaiues for aU 
years through 1999, have been detennined by the IRS, subject to adjustment to the extent of any net operating 
loss or otiier loss or credit carrybacks from subsequent years. The open tax years for the significant states where 
PHI files state income tax retums (Disnict of Columbia, Maryland, Delaware, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and 
Virginia), are the same as noted above. 
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Components of Consolidated Deferred Tax liabilities (Assets) 

At December 31, 
2007 2006 

(Millions of doUars) 
Deferred Tax LiabiUties (Assets) 

Depreciation and other book-to-tax basis differences $1,732.3 $1,774.6 
Deferted taxes on amounts to be collected through future rates 53.1 43.0 
Deferted investment tax credits (17.2) (23.4) 
Contributions in aid of construction (52.6) (60.5) 
GoodwiU and fan- value adjustments (107.0) (187.1) 
Deferted electric service and electric restmcturing liabilities (74.2) (58.6) 
Finance and operating leases 699.1 607.6 
Contracts with NUGs ! 67.8 72.6 
Fuel and purchased energy (94,8) (38.6) 
Property taxes (45.0) (63.3) 
State net operating loss (55.7) (45.5) 
Valuation allowance on state net operating loss 36.4 29.5 
Pension and other postretirement benefits 55.7 64.1 
Unrealized losses on fair value declines (13.0) (1.7) 
Ottier (103.6) (53.1) 

Total Deferred Tax LiabiUties, Net 2,081.3 2,059.6 
Deferred tax assets included in Other Current Assets 25.3 25.3 
Deferred tax Uabiiities included in Other Cmrent LiabiUties (1.5) (.9) 

Total ConsoUdated Deferred Tax LiabiUties, Net Non-Cmrent $2,105.1 $2,084,0 

The net deferted tax liabihty represents the tax effect, at presentiy enacted tax rates, of temporary 
differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and UabiUties. The portion ofthe net deferred 
tax Uability applicable to PHI's operations, which has not been reflected in current service rates, represents 
income taxes recoverable through future rates, net and is recorded as a regitiatory asset on the balance sheet. 

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 repealed the Investment Tax Credit (ITC) for property placed in service after 
December 31,1985. except for certain transition property. ITC previously eamed on Pepco's. DPL's and ACE's 
property continues to be normaUzed over the remaining service lives of the related assets. 

Resolution of Certain Intemal Revenue Service Audit Matters 

In 2006, PHI resolved certain, but not all, tax matters that were raised in Intemal Revenue Service audits 
related to the 2001 and 2002 tax years. Adjustments recorded related to these resolved tax matters resulted in a 
$6.3 milUon increase in net income ($2.5 nullion for Power DeUvery and $5.4 milUon for Other Non-Regulated, 
partially offset by an unfavorable $1.6 million impact in Corp. & Other). To the extent tiiat the matters resolved 
related to tax contingencies from the Conectiv legacy companies ttiat existed at the August 2002 merger date, in 
accordance witii accounting rules, an additional adjustment of $9.1 milUon ($3.1 milUon related to Power 
DeUvery and $6.0 milUon related to Other Non-Regulated) was recorded in Corp. & Other to eUminate the tax 
benefits recorded by Power DeUvery and Other Non-Regulated against the goodwill balance that resulted firom 
the merger. Also during 2006. the total favorable impact of $2.6 million was recorded that resulted from changes 
in estimates related to prior year tax UabiUties subject to audit ($4.1 mUUon for Power Delivery, partially offset 
by an unfavorable $1.5 nulUon for Corp. & Other). 
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Non Financial Lease Asset 

The IRS, as part of its normal audit of PCI's income tax retums. questioned whether PCI is entitied to 
certain ongoing tax deductions being taken by PCI as a resuU of the adoption by PCI of a carry-over tax basis for 
a non-lease financial asset acquired in 1998 by a subsidiary of PCI. On December 14, 2004, PCI and the IRS 
agreed to a Notice of Proposed Adjustment settling this and certain otiier tax matters. This settiement resulted in 
a cash payment in Febmary 2006 for additional taxes and interest of approximately $22.8 miUion associated with 
the examination of PCI' s 2001 -2002 tax retums and an anticipated refimd of taxes and interest of approximately 
$7.1 milUon when the examination of PCI's 2003 retum is completed. In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2004. 
PCI took a tax charge to eamings of approximately $ 19.7 million for financial reporting purposes related to this 
matter. The charge consisted of approximately $16.3 million to reflect the reversal of tax benefits recognized by 
PCI prior to September 30, 2004, and approximately $3.4 mUlion of interest on the additional taxes. During 2006 
and 2005, PCI recorded tax charges to eamings of approximately $.1 nullion and $.9 milUon, respectively, for 
interest on the additional taxes. 

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 

Taxes other than income taxes for each year are shown below. The total amounts below include $348.2 
miUion, $332.9 milUon, and $333,4 miUion, for tiie years ended December 31, 2007. 2006, and 2005. 
respectively, related to the Power DeUvery Business, which are recoverable through rates. 

2007 2006 2005 
(MiUions of doUars) 

Gross Receipts/DeUvery $146.5 $149.1 $148.3 
Property 63.5 62.7 60.4 
County Fuel and Energy 88.4 84.3 89.0 
Environmental, Use and Otiier 58.7 46.9 44.5 

Total $357.1 $343.0 $342.2 
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(9) MINORITY INTEREST 

The outstanding preferred stock issued by subsidiaries of PHI as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted 
of the following. The shares of each of these series are redeemable solely at the option of the issuer. 

Siiares 

Serial Preferred Stock 
Redemption 

Price 

DPL (a) 
4.0% Series of 1943, $100 per share par value $105.00 
3.7% Series of 1947, $100 per shait; par value $104,00 
4.28% Series of 1949, $100 per share par value $104.00 
4.56% Series of 1952. $100 per share par value $105.00 
4.20% Series of 1955, $100 per share par value $103.00 
5.0% Series of 1956, $100 per share par value $104.00 

ACE 
4,0% Series of 1944, $100 per share par value $105.50 
4.35% Series of 1949, $100 per share par value $101.00 
4.35% Series of 1953. $100 per share par value $101.00 
4.10% Series of 1954, $100 per share par value $101.00 
4.75% Series of 1958, $100 per share par value $101.00 
5.0% Series of 1960, $100 per share par value $100.00 

Total Preferted Stock of Subsidiaries 

Outstandhig 
2007 

— .; 
__ 
— 
— 
— 

24,268 
2,942 
1.680 

20,504 
8.631 
4,120 

2006 

19,809 
39,866 
28.460 
19,571 
25,404 
48.588 

24.268 
2.942 
1,680 

20,504 
8,631 
4,120 

Decern 
2007 

ber31, 
2006 

(MiUions of 
doUars) 

$— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

$ -

$2.4 
.3 
.2 

2,0 
.9 
.4 

$ 2.0 
4.0 
2.8 
2.0 
2.5 
4.9 

$18.2 

$ 2.4 
.3 
.2 

2.0 
.9 
.4 

$6.2 $ 6.2 

$6.2 $24.4 

(a) On January 18,2007, DPL redeemed all ofthe outstanding shares of its preferred stock, with an aggregate 
par value of $18.9 mUlion, at prices ranging fi-om 103% to 105% of par. 

(10) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION, DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS, AND CALCULATIONS OF 

EARNINGS PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK 

Stock'Based Compensation 

PHI maintains a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the objective of which is to increase shareholder value 
by providing a long-term incentive to reward officers, key employees, and directors of Pejico Holdings and its 
subsidiaries and to increase the ownership of Pepco Holdings' common stock by such individuals. Any officer or 
key employee of Pepco Holdings or its subsidiaries may be designated by the Board as a participant in the LTIP. 
Under the LTIP, awards to officers and key employees may be in the form of restricted stock, options, 
performance units, stock appreciation rights, and dividend equivalents. Up to 10,100,000 shares of common stock 
initially were available for issuance under tiie LTIP over a period of 10 years commencing August 1, 2002. 

Total stock-based compensation expense recorded in the ConsoUdated Statements of Earrnngs for the years 
ended December 31, 2007,2006, and 2005 is $4.3 milUon, $5.8 million, and $4.4 milUon, respectively. For ttie 
years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2(X)5, $1.9 million, $.1 million, and zero, respectively, in tax benefits 
were recognized in relation to stock-based compensation costs of stock awards. No compensation costs related to 
restricted stock grants were capitaUzed for the years ended December 31,2007, 2006 and 2005. 
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PHI recognizes compensation expense related to Performance Restticted Stock Awards based on the fak 
value of tiie awards at date of grant. PHI estimates the fair value of market condition awards using a Monte Carlo 
simulation model, in a risk-neutral framework, based on the following assumptions: 

Risk-free interest rate (%) . . 
Peer volatilities (%) 
Peer correlations 
Fair value of restricted share 

Performance Period 
2004-2006 

2.11 
16.3-62.5 
0.13-0.69 

$24,06 

2005-2007 

3.37 
15,5-60.1 
0.15-0.72 

$26.92 

Prior to acquisition of Conectiv by Pepco, each company had a long-term incentive plan under which stock 
options were granted. At the time of tiie acquisition, certain Conectiv options vested and were canceled in 
exchange for a cash payment. Certain other Conectiv options were exchanged on a 1 for 1.28205 basis for Pepco 
Holdings stock options under the LTIP: 590,198 Conectiv stock options were converted into 756,660 Pepco 
Holdings stock options. The Conectiv stock options were originally granted on January 1,1998, January 1, 
1999, July I, 1999, October 18, 2000, and January 1, 2002, in each case witii an exercise price equal to tiie 
market price (fair value) of ttie Conectiv stock on tiie date of the grant. The exercise prices of these options, after 
adjustment to give effect to the conversion ratio of Conectiv stock for Pepco Holdings stock, are $17,81, $18.91, 
$19.30, $13.08 and $19.03, respectively. AU of tiie Pepco Holdings options received in exch^ge for tiie 
Conectiv options are exercisable. 

At the time of the acquisition of Conectiv by Pepco, outstanding Pepco options were exchanged on a 
one-for-one basis for Pepco Holdings stock options granted under the LTIP. The options were originaUy granted 
under Pepco's long-term incentive plan in May 1998. May 1999, January 2000, May 2000. January 2001. May 
2001, January 2002, and May 2002. The exercise prices of ttie options are $24.3125, $29.78125, $22.4375. 
$23.15625, $24.59, $21,825, $22.57 and $22,685, respectively, which represent ttie market prices (fair values) of 
the Pepco common stock on its original grant dates. All the options granted are exercisable. 

Stock option activity for the three years ended December 31 is summarized below. The information 
presented in the table is for Pepco Holdings, including converted Pepco and Conectiv options. 

2007 2006 2005 

Number Weighted Number Weighted Number Weighted 
of Average of Average of Average 

Options Price Options Price Options Price 

Beginning-of-year balance 1,130,724 $22.5099 1,864,250 $22.1944 2,063,754 $21.8841 
Options exercised 591.089 $22.6139 733,526 $21.7081 196,299 $18.9834 
Options forfeited — $ — — $ — 3,205 $19.0300 
Options lapsed 7,000 $26.3259 — $ — — $ — 

End-of-year balance 532,635 $22.3443 1,130,724 $22.5099 1,864.250 $22.1944 

Exercisable at end of year 532,635 $22.3443 1,130,724 $22.5099 1,814,350 $22.1840 

All stock options have an expiration date of ten years from the date of grant. 

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31. 2007, 2006, and 
2005 was $3.8 milUon, $4.1 milUon, and $.1 million, respectively. 

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007.2006. and 
2005 was $3.0 million, $2.2 miUion, and $.8 miUion, respectively. For tiie years ended December 31.2007, 2006, 
and 2005, $1.2 million, $.9 million, and $.3 nullion, respectively, in tax benefits were recognized in relation to 
stock-based compensation costs of stock options. 
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As of December 31,2007, an analysis of options outstanding by exercise prices is as follows: 

Range of 
Exercise Prices 

$13.08 to $19.30 
$21.83 to $29.78 

$13.08 to $29.78 

Number Outstanding 
and Exercisable at 
December 31.2007 

161,147 
371,488 

532.635 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price 

$18,4856 
$24.0181 

$22.3443 

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
(in Years) 

4.4 
2.4 

3.0 

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R on January 1,2(X)6, Pepco Holdings recognized compensation costs 
for the LTIP based on the accounting prescribed by APB No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees." 
There were no stock-based employee compensation costs charged to expense in 2007,2006 and 2005 with 
respect to stock options granted under the LTIP. 

There were no options granted in 2007,2006, or 2005. 

The Performance Restricted Stock Program and the Merger Integration Success Program have been 
established under the LTIP. Under the Performance Restricted Stock Program, perfonnance criteria are selected 
and measured over a three-year period. The target number of share award opportunities established in 2007, 2006 
and 2(X)5 under Pepco Holdings' Perfonnance Restricted Stock Program for performance periods 2007-2009, 
2006-2008, and 2005-2007 were 190,657, 218,108, and 247,400. respectively. AdditionaUy. beginning in 2006, 
time-restricted share award opportunities with a requisite service period of three years were established under the 
LTIP. The target number of share award opportunities for these awards was 95,314 for the 2007-2009 time 
period and 109,057 for the 2006-2008 time period. The fair value per share oii award date for the performance 
restricted stock was $25.54 for tiie 2007-2009 award, $23.28 for ttie 2006-2008 award, and $26.92 for tiie 2005-
2007 award. Depending on the extent to which ttie performance criteria are satisfied, the executives are eUgible 
to eam shares of common stock and dividends accmed thereon over the vesting period, under the Performance 
Restricted Stock Program ranging fi-om 0% to 200% ofthe target share award opportunities, inclusive of 
dividends accmed. There were 418,426 awards earned with respect to the 2(X)4-2(X)6 share award opportunity. 

The maximum number of share award opportunities granted under the Merger Integration Success Program 
during 2002 was 241.075. The fair value per share on grant date was $19,735. Of those shares, 96,427 were 
restricted and vested over three years: 20% vested in 2003,30% vested in 2004, and 50% vested in 2005. The 
remaining 144.648 shares were performance-based award opportunities that could have been eamed based on the 
extent to which operating efficiencies and expense reduction goals were attained through December 31,2003 and 
2004, respectively. Although the goals were met in 2003, it was determined that 63,943 shares, including shares 
reallocated fi*om participants who did not meet performance goals as well as shares reflecting accrued dividends 
for the period August 1, 2002 to December 31, 2(X)3, granted to certain executives, would not vest until 2005, 
and then only if the cost reduction goals were maintained and Pepco Holdings' financial performance were 
satisfactory. A total of 9.277 shares of common stock vested under this program on December 31,2003 for other 
eligible employees. On March 11,2005,70,315 shares, including reinvested dividends, vested for the 
performance period ending on December 31,2004. A total of 44,644 shares, including reinvested dividends, 
vested on March 7, 2006, for the original performance period ended December 31, 2003, that was extended to 
December 31.2005. 

Under the LTIP, non-employee du-ectors are entitied to a grant on May 1 of each year of a nonquahfied 
stock option for 1,000 shares of common stock. However, the Board of Directors has determined that these grants 
wUl not be made. 

On August 1, 2(K)2. the date of the acquisition of Conectiv by Pepco. in accordance with the terms of the 
merger agreement, 80,602 shares of Conectiv performance accelemted restricted stock (PARS) were converted to 
103,336 shares of Pepco Holdings restricted stock. The PARS were originally granted on January 1, 2002 at a 

B-134 



fair market price of $24.40. All of the converted restricted stock has time-based vesting over periods ranging 
from 5 to 7 years from the original grant date. As of December 31, 2007, 96,026 converted shares have vested 
and 7,310 shares remain unvested. 

In June 2003, tiie President and Chief Executive Officer of PHI received a retention award in the form of 
14,822 shares of restricted stock. The shares vested on June 1,2006. 

In September 2007, retention awards in the form of 9,015 shares of restricted stock were granted to certain 
PHI executives, with vesting periods of two to three years. 

The 2007 activity for non-vested share opportunities is summarized below. The information presented in the 
table is for Pepco Holdings, including Conectiv PARS converted to Pepco Holdings restricted stock. 

Weiglited 
Number Average Grant 
of Shares Date Fair Value 

Non-vested share opportunities at January 1, 2007 , 728,769 $ 24.588 
Granted 300.099 25.642 
Additional performance shares granted 169,654 24.060 
Vested (418,689) (24.057) 
Forfeited (18,851) (24.323) 

Non-vested share opportunities at December 31, 2007 760,982 25.185 

The total fair value of restricted stock awards vested during the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 
2005 was $10.1 million, $2.0 milUon, and $2.7 miUion, respectively. 

As of December 31,2007, there was approximately $5.4 milUon of unrecognized compensation cost (net of 
estimated forfeitures) related to non-vested stock granted under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted-average period of approximately two years. 

Dividend Restrictions 

PHI generates no operating income of its own. Accordingly, its abUity to pay dividends to its shareholders 
depends on dividends received from its subsidiaries. In addition to their future financial performance, the ability 
of PHI's direct and indirect subsidiaries to pay dividends is subject to linuts imposed by: (i) state coiporate and 
regulatory laws, which impose limitations on the funds that can be used to pay dividends and, in the case of 
regulatory laws, as applicable, may require the prior approval of the relevant utility regulatory commissions 
before dividends can be paid; (ii) the prior rights of holders oi existing and future prefened stock, mortgage 
bonds and other long-term debt issued by the subsidiaries, and any other restrictions imposed in connection with 
the incurrence of liabilities; and (iii) certain provisions of ACE's charter that impose restrictions on payment of 
common stock dividends for the benefit of preferred stockholders. Pepco and DPL have no shares of prefened 
stock outstanding. Currentiy, the restriction in the ACE charter does not limit its ability to pay dividends. 
Restricted net assets related to PHFs consolidated subsidiaries amounted to approximately $1.8 biUion at 
December 31, 2007 and $1.9 bilUon at December 31, 2006. PHI had no restricted retained eamings or restricted 
net income at December 31, 2007 and 2006. 
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For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006. and 2005, Pepco Holdings recorded dividends from its 
subsidiaries as follows: 

Subsidiary 2007 2006 2005 

(Millions of doUars) 

Pepco $ 86.0 $ 99.0 $ 62.9 
DPL 39.0 15.0 36.4 
ACE 50.0 109.0 95.9 
Conectiv Energy — — 50.0 

$175.0 $223.0 $245.2 

Directors' Deferred Compensation 

Under the Pepco Holdings* Executive and Director Defened Compensation Plan, Pepco Holdings directors 
may elect to defer all or part of their retainer or meeting fees that constitute normal compensation. Deferred 
retainer or meeting fees can be invested in phantom Pepco Holdings shares and eam dividends as weU as 
appreciation equal to the amount of increase in fair value of the phantom shares. The ultimate payout is in cash. 
The amount defened and invested in phantom Pepco Holdings shares in the years ended December 31, 2007, 
2006 and 2005 was $.2 mUUon, $.1 miUion and $.1 miUion, respectively. 

Compensation recognized in respect of dividends and increase in fair value in the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $.3 milUon, $.3 milUon and $.1 million, respectively. The balance of defened 
compensation invested in phantom Pepco Holdings' shares at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $2.2 miUion and 
$1.8 mUlion. 

Calculations of Eamings per Share of Common Stock 

Reconciliations of the numerator and denominator for basic and diluted eamings per share of common stock 
calculations are shown below. 

For the Year Ended 
December 31. 

2007 2006 2005 

(MfflioiK of doltors» except 
share data) 

Income (Numerator): 
Net Income $334.2 $248.3 $371.2 
Add: Loss on redemption of subsidiary's prefened stock (.6) (.8) (.1) 

Eamings AppUcable to Common Stock $333.6 $247.5 $371.1 

Shares (Denominator): 
Weighted average shares outstanding for basic computation: 

Average shares outstandmg 194.1 190.7 189,0 
Adjustment to shares outstanding (.2) (.1) (.1) 

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding for Computation of Basic Eamings Per Share 
of Common Stock 193.9 190.6 188.9 

Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted computation: (a) 
Average shares outstanding 194.1 190.7 189.0 
Adjustment to shares outstanding .4 4 .2̂  

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding for Computation of Diluted Eamings Per 
Share of Common Stock 194.5 191.1 189.2 

Basic earnings per share of common stock $ 1.72 $ 1.30 $ 1.96 
Diluted eamings per share of common stock $ 1.72 $ 1.30 $ 1.96 
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(a) Approximately zero, .6 million, and 1.4 million for ttie years ended December 31,2007, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively, related to options to purchase common stock with exercise prices between $22.44 and $29.78 
per share, have been excluded from tiie calculation of diluted EPS as they are considered to be anti-dilutive. 

Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

PHI maintains a Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) tiirough which shareholders may reinvest 
cash dividends and both existing shareholders and new investors can make purchases of shares of PHI common 
stock through the investment of not less tiian $25 each calendar month nor more than $200,000 each calendar 
year. Shares of common stock purchased through the DRP may be original issue shares or, at the election of PHI, 
shares purchased in tiie open market. There were 979,155,1,232,569, and 1,228,505 original issue shares sold 
under the DRP in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Pepco Holdings Common Stock Reserved and Unissued 

The following table presents Pepco Holdings' conunon stock reserved and unissued at December 31,2007: 

Number of 
Name of Plan Shares , 

DRP 2,734,400 
Conectiv Incentive Compensation Plan ( a ) , , , 1,231,900 
Potomac Electric Power Company Long-Term Incentive Plan (a) 412,547 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan 9,117,365 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. Non-Management Duectors Compensation Plan 495,731 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. Savings Plan (b) 5,045,000 

Total 19,036;943 

(a) No further awards wUl be made under this plan. 
(b) Effective January 30,2006, Pepco Holdings established tiie Pepco Holdings, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan 

which is an amalgam of, and a successor to, (i) the Potomac Electric Power Company Savings Plan for 
Bargaining Unit Employees, (ii) tiie Potomac Electric Power Company Retirement Savings Plan for 
Management Employees (Which resulted from the merger, effective January 1,2005, of the Potomac 
Electric Power Company Savings Plan for Non-Bargaining Unit, Non-Exempt Employees and the Potomac 
Electric Power Company Savings Plan for Exempt Employees), (iii) ttie Conectiv Savings and Investment 
Plan, and (iv) the Atiantic City Electric 401(k) Savings and Investment Plan—B. 

(11) FAIR VALUES OF FINANCUL INSTRUMENTS 

The estimated fair values of Pepco Holdings' financial instmments at December 31,2007 and 2006 are 
shown below. 

At December 31, 
2007 2006 

(Millions of doUars) 
Carryii^ Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

Assets 
Derivative Instmments $ 81.9 $ 81.9 $ 123.7 $ 123.7 

Liabilities and Capitalization 
Long-Term Debt $4,467,6 $4,450.6 $4,593.8 $4,629.6 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding $ 464.5 $ 462.0 $ 494.3 $ 491.4 
Derivative Instmments $ 63.8 $ 63.8 $ 186.8 $ 186.8 
Long-Term Project Funding $ 29.3 $ 29.3 $ 25.7 $ 25.7 
Redeemable Serial Prefened Stock $ 6.2 $ 4.4 $ 24.4 $ 21.7 
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The methods and assumptions described below were used to estimate, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the 
fair value of each class of financial instruments shown above for which it is practicable to estimate a value. 

The fair values of derivative instmments were derived based on quoted market prices where available or, for 
instmments that are not traded on an exchange, based on information obtained firom over-the-counter brokers, 
industry services, or multiple-party on-line platforms. For some custom and complex instmments, an intemal 
model is used to interpolate available price infcamation. 

Long-Term Debt includes recourse and non-recourse debt issued by PCI. The fair values of this PCI debt, 
including amounts due within one year, were based on cmrent rates offered to similar companies for debt with 
similar remaining maturities. The fair values of all other Long-Term Debt and Transition Bonds issued by ACE 
Funding, including amounts due within one year, were derived based on cunent market prices, or for issues with 
no market price available, were based on discounted cash flows using cunent rates for shnilar issues with similar 
terms and remaining maturities. 

The fair value of the Redeemable Serial Prefened Stock, excluding amounts due within one year, was 
derived based on quoted market prices or discounted cash flows using cunent rates of preferred stock with 
similar terms. 

The carrying amounts of all other financial instmments in Pepco Holdings* accompanying financial 
statements approximate fair value. 

(12) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

REGULATORY AND OTHER MATTERS 

Proceeds from Settlement of Mirant Bankruptcy Claims 

In 2000, Pepco sold substantially aU of its electricity generating assets to Mirant. In 2003, Mirant 
commenced a voluntary bankmptcy proceeding in which it sought to reject certain obUgations that it had 
undertaken in connection with the asset sale. As part of the asset sale, Pepco entered into transition power 
agreements with Mirant pursuant to which Mirant agreed to supply all of the energy and capacity needed by 
Pepco to fulfill its SOS obligations in Maryland and in the District of Columbia (the TPAs). Under a settiement 
to avoid the rejection by Mirant of its obligations under the TPAs in the bankmptcy proceeding, the tenns of the 
TPAs were modified to increase the purchase price of the energy and capacity suppUed by Mirant and Pepco 
received an allowed, pre-petition general unsecured claim in the bankruptcy in the amount of $105 million (the 
TPA Claim). In December 2005, Pepco sold the TPA Claim, plus tiie right to receive accmed mterest thereon, to 
an unaffiUated third party for $112.5 milUon. In addition, Pepco received proceeds of $.5 milUon in settiement of 
an asbestos clmm against the Mirant bankmptcy estate. After customer sharing, Pepco recorded a pre-tax gain of 
$70.5 miUion from the settlement of these claims. 

In connection with the asset sale, Pepco and Mirant also entered into a "back-to-back" anangement. 
whereby Mirant agreed to purchase from Pepco the 230 megawatts of electricity and capacity that Pepco is 
obUgated to purchase annuaUy tiirough 2021 from Panda under the Panda PPA at ttie purchase price Pepco is 
obUgated to pay to Panda. As part of the further settlement of Pepco's claims against Mirant arising from the 
Mirant bankmptcy, Pepco agreed not to contest the rejection by Mirant of its obligations under the 
"back-to-back" anangement in exchange for the payment by Mirant of damages corresponding to the estimated 
amount by which the purchase price that Pepco is obligated to pay Panda for the energy and capacity exceeded 
the market price. In 2(X)7, Pepco received as damages $413,9 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares of 
Mirant common stock issued to it by Mirant. These funds are being accounted for as restricted cash based on 
management's intent to use such funds, aiid any interest eamed thereon, for the sole purpose of paying for the 
future above-market capacity and energy purchase costs under the Panda PPA. Cortespondingly, a regulatory 
liability has been established in the same amount to help offset the future above-market capacity and energy 
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purchase costs. This restricted cash has been classified as a non-current asset to be consistent with the 
classification of the non-cunent regulatory liability, and any changes in the balance of this restricted cash, 
including interest on the invested funds, are being accounted for as operating cash flows. 

As of December 31, 2007, the balance of the restricted cash account was $417.3 million. Based on a 
reexamination of the costs of the Panda PPA in light of cunent and projected wholesale market conditions 
conducted in the fourth quarter of 2007, Pepco determined that, principally due to increases in wholesale capacity 
prices, the present value above-market cost of the Panda PPA over the term of the agreement is expected to be 
significantly less than the cunent amount of the restricted cash account balance. Accordingly, on Febmary 22, 
2008, Pepco filed applications with the DCPSC and the MPSC requesting orders directing Pepco to maintain 
$320 miUion in the restricted cash accoimt and to use that cash, and any future eamings on the cash, for the sole 
purpose of paying the future above-market cost of the Panda PPA (or, in the altemative, to fund a transfer or 
assignment of tiie remaining obligations under the Panda PPA to a third party). Pepco also requested that the 
order provide that any cash remaining in the account at the conclusion of the Panda PPA be refunded to 
customers and that any shortfall be recovered from customers. Pepco further proposed that the excess proceeds 
remaining from the settlement (approximately $94.6 million, representing the amount by which the regulatory 
Uability of $414.6 million at December 31, 2007 exceeded $320 million) be shared approximately equally with 
its customers in accordance with the procedures previously approved by each commission for the sharing of the 
proceeds received by Pepco from the sale to Mirant of its generating assets. The regulatory liability of 
$414.6 miUion at December 31, 2007 differs from the restricted cash amount of $417.3 miUion on that date, in 
part, because the regulatory Uability has been reduced for the portion of the December 2007 Panda charges in 
excess of market that had not yet been paid from the restricted cash account. The amount of the restricted cash 
balance that Pepco is permitted to retain wiU be recorded as eamings upon approval of the sharing anangement 
by the respective commissions. At this time, Pepco cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

In settiement of other damages claims against Mirant, Pepco in 2007 also received a settiement payment in 
the amount of $70.0 million. Of this amount (i) $33.4 million was recorded as a reduction in operatmg expenses, 
(ii) $21.0 mUlion was recorded as a reduction in a net pre-petition receivable claim from Mirant, 
(iii) $15.0 miUion was recorded as a reduction in the capitalized costs of certain property, plant and equipment 
and (iv) $.6 million was recorded as a liability to reimburse a third party for certain legal costs associated with 
the settlement. 

Rate Proceedings 

In electric service distribution base rate cases filed by Pepco in the District of Columbia and Maryland, and 
by DPL m Maryland, and pending in 2007, Pepco and DPL proposed the adoption of a BSA for retail customers. 
Under the BSA, customer delivery rates are subject to adjustment (through a surcharge or credit mechanism), 
depending on whether actual distribution revenue per customer exceeds or falls short of the approved 
revenue-per-customer amount. The BSA wiU increase rates if actual distribution revenues faU below the level 
approved by the appUcable commission and will decrease rates if actual distribution revenues are above the 
approved level. The result will be that, over time, the utility would collect its authorized revenues for distribution 
deliveries. As a consequence, a BSA "decouples" revenue from unit sales consumption and ties the growtii in 
revenues to the growth in the number of customers. Some advantages of the BSA are that it (i) eUminates 
revenue fluctuations due to weather and changes in customer usage pattems and, therefore, provides for more 
predictable utility distribution revenues that are better aUgned with costs, (ii) provides for more reliable fixed-
cost recovery, (iii) tends to stabilize customers' delivery bills, and (iv) removes any disincentives for the 
regulated utilities to promote energy efficiency programs for their customers, because it breaks the link between 
overall sales volumes and delivery revenues. The status of the BSA proposals in each of the jurisdictions is 
described below in discussion of the respective base rate proceedings. 
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Delaware 

On September 4,2007, DPL submitted its 2007 Gas Cost Rate (GCR) fiUng to tiie DPSC. The GCR permits 
DPL to recover its gas procurement costs through customer rates. On September 18, 2007. the DPSC issued an 
initial order approving a 5.7% decrease in tiie level ofthe GCR. which became effective November 1, 2007, 
subject to refund and pending final DPSC approval after evidentiary hearings. 

District of Columbia 

In December 2006, Pepco submitted an application to the DCPSC to increase electric distribution base rates, 
including a proposed BSA. The application to the DCPSC requested an armual increase of approximately 
$46.2 miUion or an overall increase of 13.5%, reflectmg a proposed retum on equity (ROE) of 10.75%. In the 
altemative, the application requested an annual increase of $50,5 milUon or an overall mcrease of 14.8%, 
reflecting an ROE of 11.00%, if the BSA were not approved. Subsequentiy. Pepco reduced its annual revenue 
increase request to $43.4 milUon (including a proposed BSA) and $47.9 milUon (if the BSA were not approved). 

On January 30,2008, the DCPSC approved a revenue requirement increase of approximately $28.3 milUon. 
based on an authorized retum on rate base of 7.96%, including a 10% ROE. The rate increase is effective 
Febmary 20, 2008. The DCPSC. while finding the BSA to be an appropriate ratemaking concept, cited potential 
statutory problems in tiie DCPSC's abiUty to implement the BSA. The DCPSC stated that it intends to issue an 
order to estabUsh a Phase II proceeding to consider these implementation issues. 

Maryland 

On July 19, 2007, the MPSC issued orders in the electric service distribution rate cases filed by DPL and 
Pepco, each of which included approval of a BSA. The DPL order approved an annual increase in distribution 
rates of approximately $14.9 milUon (including a decrease in annual depreciation expense of approximately 
$.9 million). The Pepco order approved an aimual increase in distribution rates of approximately $10,6 million 
(including a decrease in annual depreciation expense of approximately $30.7 milUon). In each case, the approved 
distribution rate reflects an ROE of 10.0%. The orders each provided ttiat the rate increases are effective as of 
June 16,2007, and will remain in effect for an initial period of nine months fixim the date of the order (or until 
April 19,2008). These rates are subject to a Phase II proceeding in which the MPSC will consider the results of 
audits of each company's cost allocation manual, as filed with tiie MPSC, to determine whether a further 
adjustment to the rates is required. Hearings for the Phase II proceeding are scheduled for mid-March 2008. 

New Jersey 

On June 1, 2007, ACE filed with the NJBPU an apptication for permission to decrease the Non UtiUty 
Generation Charge (NGC) and increase components of its Societal Benefits Charge (SBC) to be collected from 
customers for the period October 1,2007 through September 30, 2008. The proposed changes are designed to 
effect a tme-up of the actual and estimated costs and revenues collected through the current NGC and SBC rates 
through September 30,2007 and, in the case ofthe SBC, forecasted costs and revenues for the period October I, 
2007 tiirough September 30, 2008. 

As of December 31,2007, the NGC, which is intended primarily to recover the above-market component of 
payments made by ACE under non-utiUty generation contracts and stranded costs associated with those 
commitments, had an over-recovery balance of $224.3 milUon. The fiUng proposed that the estimated NGC 
balance as of September 30,2007 in the amount of $216.2 milUon, including interest, be amortized and retumed 
to ACE customers over a four-year period, beginning October 1,2007. 

As of December 31, 2007, the SBC, which is intended to allow ACE to recover certain costs involved with 
various NJBPU-mandated social programs, had an under-recovery of approximately $20.9 mUUon, primarily due 
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to increased costs associated with funding the New Jersey Clean Energy Program. In addition, ACE has 
requested an increase to the SBC to reflect tiie funding levels approved by tiie NJBPU of $20.4 miUion for tiie 
period October 1, 2007 through September 30, 2008, bringing to $40 miUion the total recovery requested for the 
period October 1,2007 to September 30,2008 (based upon actual data through August 2007). 

The net impact of the proposed adjustments to the NGC and the SBC, including associated changes in sales 
and use tax, is an overall rate decrease of approximately $129.9 miUion for the period October 1, 2007 through 
September 30, 2008 (based upon actual data tiu:ough August 2007). The proposed adjustments and the 
cortesponding changes in customer rates are subject to the approval of the NJBPU. If approved and implemented. 
ACE anticipates that the revised rates wiU remain in effect until September 30,2008, subject to an annual trae-up 
and change each year thereafter. The proposed adjustments and the conesponding changes in customer rates 
remain under review by the NJBPU and have not yet been implemented. 

ACE Restructuring Deferral Proceeding 

Pursuant to orders issued by the NJBPU under EDECA, beginiung August 1,1999, ACE was obligated to 
provide BGS to retail electricity customers in its service territory who did not elect to purchase electricity from a 
competitive supplier. For tiie period August 1,1999 tiirough July 31, 2003, ACE's aggregate costs that it was 
allowed to recover from customers exceeded its aggregate revenues from supplying BGS. These under-recovered 
costs were partially offset by a $59.3 nuUion defened energy cost Uability existing as of July 31,1999 (LEAC 
LiabiUty) related to ACE's LeveUzed Energy Adjustment Clause and ACE's Demand Side Management 
Programs. ACE established a regulatory asset in an amount equal to the balance of under-recovered costs. 

In August 2002, ACE filed a petition with tiie NJBPU for tiie recovery of approximately $176.4 miUion m 
actual and projected defened costs relating to the provision of BGS and other restmcturing related costs incuned 
by ACE over the four-year period August 1,1999 tiu-ough July 31,2003, net of tiie $59.3 million offset forthe 
LEAC Liability. The petition also requested tiiat ACE's rates be reset as of August 1,2003 so ttiat tiiere would be 
no under-recovery of costs embedded in the rates on or after that date. The increase sought represented an overall 
8.4% annual increase in electric rates. 

In July 2004, the NJBPU issued a final order in the restmcturing deferral proceeding confirming a July 2003 
summary order, which (i) permitted ACE to begin coUecting a portion of tiie deferred costs and reset rates to 
recover on-going costs incuned as a result of EDECA, (ii) approved the recovery of $125 milUon of the deferred 
balance over a ten-year amortization period beginning August 1, 2003, (ui) transferted to ACE's then pending 
base rate case for further consideration approximately $25.4 milUon of the deferred balance (the base rate case 
ended in a settiement approved by the NJBPU in May 2005, tiie result of which is tiiat any net rate impact from 
the defertal account recoveries and credits in future years will depend in part on whether rates associated with 
other defened accounts considered in the case continue to generate over-collections relative to costs), and 
(iv) estimated tiie overall defenal balance as of July 31,2003 at $195.0 milUon. of which $44.6 milUon was 
disallowed recovery by ACE. Although ACE believes the record does not justify the level of disallowance 
imposed by tiie NJBPU in the final order, the $44.6 nullion of disallowed incuned costs were reserved during ttie 
years 1999 through 2003 (primarily 2003) through charges to eamings, primarily in the operating expense Une 
item "defened electric service costs," with a conesponding reduction in the regulatory asset balance sheet 
account. In 2005, an additional $1.2 milUon in interest on tiie disallowed amount was identified and reserved by 
ACE. In August 2004, ACE filed a notice of appeal with respect to tiie July 2004 final order witti the Appellate 
Division ofthe Superior Court of New Jersey (the Appellate Division), which hears appeals ofthe decisions of 
New Jersey administrative agencies, mcluding the NJBPU. On August 9, 2007, the AppeUate Division, citing 
deference to the factual and policy findings of the NJBPU, affirmed tiie NJBPU's decision in its entirety, 
rejecting chaUenges from ACE and tiie Division of Rate Counsel. On September 10, 2007. ACE filed an 
application for certification to tiie New Jersey Supreme Court. On January 15. 2008. tiie New Jersey Supreme 
Court denied ACE's application for certification. Because the full amount at issue in this proceeding was 
previously reserved by ACE, tiiere wiU be no further financial statement impact to ACE. 
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investiture Cases 

District of Columbia 

Final briefs on Pepco's District of Columbia divestiture proceeds sharing application were filed with the 
DCPSC in July 2002 following an evidentiary hearing in June 2002. That application was filed to implement a 
provision of Pepco's DCPSC-approved divestiture settiement that provided for a sharing of any net proceeds 
from the sale of Pepco's generation-related assets. One of tiie principal issues in the case is whether Pepco should 
be required to share with customers the excess deferred income taxes (EDIT) and accumulated defened 
investment tax credits (ADITC) associated with the sold assets and, if so. whether such sharing would violate tiie 
normalization provisions ofthe Intemal Revenue Code (IRC) and its unplementing regulations. As of 
December 31.2007, the District of Columbia allocated portions of EDIT and ADITC associated with the 
divested generating assets were approximately $6.5 million and $5.8 milUon, respectively, 

Pepco believes that a sharing of EDIT and ADITC would violate the IRS normalization mles. Under these 
rules, Pepco could not transfer the EDIT and the ADITC benefit to customers more quickly than on a straight Une 
basis over tiie book Ufe of the related assets. Since the assets are no longer owned by Pepco. there is no book life 
over which the EDIT and ADITC can be retiuned. If Pepco were required to share EDIT and ADITC and. as a 
result, the normalization mles were violated, Pepco would be unable to use accelerated depreciation on District 
of Columbia allocated or assigned property. In addition to sharing with customers the generation-related EDIT 
and ADITC balances, Pepco would have to pay to the IRS an amount equal to Pepco's District of Columbia 
jurisdictional generation-related ADITC balance ($5.8 miUion as of December 31,2007), as weU as its District of 
Columbia jiuisdictional transmission and distribution-related ADITC balance $4.0 milUon as of December 31, 
2007) in each case as those balances exist as of ttie later of tiie dale a DCPSC order is issued and all rights to 
appeal have been exhausted or lapsed, or the date the DCPSC order becomes operative. 

In March 2003, the IRS issued a notice of proposed mlemaking (NOPR), which would allow for the sharing 
of EDIT and ADITC related to divested assets with utility customers on a prospective basis and at the election of 
the taxpayer on a retroactive basis. In December 2005 a revised NOPR was issued which, among otiier things, 
withdrew the March 2003 NOPR and elinunated the taxpayer's abiUty to elect to apply the regulation 
retroactively. Comments on the revised NOPR were filed in March 2006, and a public hearing was held in April 
2006. Pepco filed a letter witti tiie DCPSC in January 2006. in which it has reiterated ttiat ttie DCPSC should 
continue to defer any decision on the ADITC and EDIT issues until the IRS issues final regulations or states that 
its regulations project related to this issue will be terminated without the issuance of any regulations. Other issues 
in the divestiture proceeding deal with the treatment of intemal costs and cost allocations as deductions from the 
gross proceeds of the divestiture. 

Pepco beUeves that its calculation of tiie District of Columbia customers' share of divestiture proceeds is 
conect. However, depending on the ultimate outcome of this proceeding, Pepco could be requked to make 
additional gain-sharing payments to District of Columbia customers, including the payments described above 
related to EDIT and ADITC. Such additional payments (which, otiier than tiie EDIT and ADITC related 
payments, cannot be estimated) would be charged to expense in the quarter and year in which a final decision is 
rendered and could have a material adverse effect on Pepco's and PHI's results of operations for those periods. 
However, neither PHI nor Pepco believes that additional gain-sharing payments, if any, or the ADITC-related 
payments to the IRS, if required, would have a material adverse impact on its financial position or cash flows. 

Maryland 

Pepco filed its divestiture proceeds plan application with the MPSC in AprU 2001. The principal issue in the 
Maryland case is the same EDIT and ADITC sharing issue ttiat has been raised in the District of Columbia case. 
See the discussion above under "Divestiture Cases—District of Columbia." As of December 31, 2007, the 
Maryland allocated portions of EDIT and ADITC associated with the divested generating assets were 
approximately $9.1 million and $10.4 nullion, respectively. Other issues deal with the treatment of certain costs 
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as deductions from the gross proceeds of the divestiture. In November 2003, the Hearing Examiner in the 
Maryland proceeding issued a proposed order with respect to the application that concluded that Pepco's 
Maryland divestiture settlement agreement provided for a sharing between Pepco and customers of the EDIT and 
ADITC associated with the sold assets. Pepco believes that such a sharing would violate the normahzation mles 
(discussed above) and would result in Pepco's inabUity to use accelerated depreciation on Maryland aUocated or 
assigned property. If the proposed order is affirmed, Pepco would have to share with its Maryland customers, on 
an approximately 50/50 basis, the Maryland aUocated portion of tiie generation-related EDIT ($9.1 milUon as of 
December 31, 2007), and the Maryland-allocated portion of generation-related ADITC. Furthermore, Pepco 
would have to pay to the IRS an amount equal to Pepco's Maryland jurisdictional generation-related ADITC 
balance ($10.4 miUion as of December 31, 2007), as well as its Maryland retail jurisdictional ADITC 
transmission and distribution-related balance ($7.2 miUion as of December 31, 2007), in each case as those 
balances exist as of the later of the date a MPSC order is issued and all rights to appeal have been exhausted or 
lapsed, or the date the MPSC order becomes operative. The Hearing Examiner decided all other issues in favor of 
Pepco, except for the determination that only one-half of the severance payments ttiat Pepco included in its 
calculation of corporate reorganization costs should be deducted from the sales proceeds before sharing of the net 
gain between Pepco and customers. Pepco filed a letter with the MPSC in January 2006, in which it has reiterated 
that the MPSC should continue to defer any decision on tiie ADITC and EDIT issues until tiie IRS issues final 
regulations or states that its regulations project related to this issue will be terminated without tiie issuance of any 
regulations. 

In December 2003, Pepco appealed the Hearing Examiner's decision to the MPSC as it relates to the 
treatment of EDIT and ADITC and corporate reorganization costs. The MPSC has not issued any ruUng on the 
appeal and Pepco does not believe that it will do so untU action is taken by the IRS as described above. However, 
depending on the ultimate outcome of this proceeding, Pepco could be required to share with its customers 
approximately 50 percent of the EDIT and ADITC balances described above in addition to tiie additional gain-
sharing payments relating to the disallowed severance payments. Such additional payments would be charged to 
expense in the quarter and year in which a final decision is rendered and could have a material adverse effect on 
resuhs of operations for tiiose periods. However, neither PHI nor Pepco believes that additional gain-sharing 
payments, if any, or the ADITC-related payments to the IRS, if required, would have a material adverse impact 
on its financial position or cash flows. 

New lersey 

In connection with the divestiture by ACE of its nuclear generating assets, the NJBPU in July 2000 
preliminarily determined that the amount of stranded costs associated with the divested assets that ACE could 
recover from ratepayers should be reduced by approximately $94.8 milUon, consisting of $54.1 milUon of 
accumulated defened federal income taxes (ADFIT) associated with accelerated depreciation on the divested 
nuclear assets, and $40.7 million of cunent tax loss from selling the assets at a price below the tax basis. 

The $54,1 miUion in defened taxes associated with the divested assets' accelerated depreciation, however, 
is subject to the normalization mles. Due to uncertainty under federal tax law regarding whether tiie sharing of 
federal income tax benefits associated with the divested assets, including ADFIT related to accelerated 
depreciation, with ACE's customers would violate the normalization rules, ACE submitted a request to the IRS 
for a Private Letter Ruling (PLR) to clarify the appUcable law. The NJBPU delayed its final determination ofthe 
amount of recoverable stranded costs until after the receipt ofthe PLR. 

On May 25, 2006, tiie IRS issued the PLR in which it stated tiiat retuming to ratepayers any of tiie 
unamortized ADFIT attributable to accelerated depreciation on the divested assets after the sale ofthe assets by 
means of a reduction of the amount of recoverable stranded costs would violate the normalization rules. 

On June 9, 2006, ACE submitted a letter to tiie NJBPU, requesting tiiat ttie NJBPU conduct proceedings to 
finalize the determination of the stranded costs associated with the sale of ACE's nuclear assets in accordance 
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witii ttie PLR. In tiie absence of an NJBPU action regarding ACE's request, on June 22, 2007, ACE filed a 
motion requesting that the NJBPU issue an order finalizing the determination of such stranded costs in 
accordance with the PLR. On October 24, 2007, the NJBPU approved a stipulation resolving the ADFIT issue 
and issued a clarifying order, which concludes that the $94.8 milUon in stranded cost reduction, including the 
$54.1 milUon in ADFIT, does not violate the IRS normalization mles. In explaining this result, the NJBPU stated 
that (i) its earlier orders determining ACE's recoverable stranded costs "net of tax" did not cause ADFIT 
associated with certain divested nuclear assets to reduce stranded costs otherwise recoverable from ACE's 
ratepayers, and (ii) because the Market Transition Charge-Tax component ofthe stranded cost recovery was 
intended by the NJBPU to gross-up "net of tax" stranded costs, thereby ensuring and establishing that the ADFIT 
balance was not flowed through to ratepayers, the normalization mles were not violated. 

Default Electricity Supply Proceedings 

Virginia 

In June 2007, tiie Virginia State Corporation Commission (VSCC) denied DPL's request for an increase in 
its rates for Default Service for the period July 1, 2007 to May 31, 2008. DPL appealed in botti state and federal 
courts. Those appeals have been dismissed in light of the closing of the sale of DPL's Virginia electric operations 
as described below under the heading "DPL Sale of Virginia Operations." 

ACE Sale of B.L, England Generating Facility 

On Febmary 8,2007, ACE completed the sale of the B.L. England generating facility to RC Cape May 
Holdings, LLC (RC Cape May), an affiliate of Rockland Capital Energy Investments, LLC, for which it received 
proceeds of approximately $9 million. At the time of the sale, RC Cape May and ACE agreed to submit to 
arbitration the issue of whether RC Cape May. under the terms of the purchase agreement, must pay to ACE an 
additional $3.1 million as part of the purchase price. On Febmary 26, 2008, the arbitrators issued a decision 
awarding $3.1 miUion to ACE, plus interest, attomeys' fees and costs, for a total award of approximately $4.2 
million. 

On July 18, 2007, ACE received a claim for indemnification from RC Cape May under the purchase 
agreement. RC Cape May contends that one of the assets it purchased, a contract for terminal services (TSA) 
between ACE and Citgo Asphalt Refining Co. (Citgo), has been declared by Citgo to have been terminated due to 
a failure by ACE to renew the contract in a timely manner. RC Cape May has commenced an arbitration 
proceeding against Citgo seeking a determination that the TSA remains in effect and has notified ACE of ttie 
proceeding. In addition, RC Cape May has asserted a claim for indemnification from ACE in the amount of 
$25 million if the TSA is held not to be enforceable against Citgo. While ACE beUeves that it has defenses to the 
indemnification under the terms ofthe purchase agreement, should the arbitrator mle that the TSA has 
terminated, the outcome of this matter is uncertain. ACE notified RC Cape May of its intent to participate in the 
pending arbitration. 

The sale of B.L. England will not affect the stranded costs associated with the plant that aheady have been 
securitized. ACE anticipates that approximately $9 million to $10 miUion of additional regulatory assets related 
to B.L. England may, subject to NJBPU approval, be eUgible for recovery as stranded costs. Approximately $47 
million in emission allowance credits associated with B. L. England were monetized for the benefit of ACE's 
ratepayers pursuant to the NJBPU order approving the sale. Net proceeds from the sale of the plant and 
monetization of the emission allowance credits, estimated to be $36.1 million as of December 31, 2007, will be 
credited to ACE's ratepayers in accordance with the requirements of EDECA and NJBPU orders. The 
appropriate mechanism for crediting the net proceeds from the sale ofthe plant and the monetized emission 
allowance credits to ratepayers is being determined in a proceeding that is cunentiy pending before the NJBPU. 
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DPL Sale of Virginia Operations 

On January 2, 2008, DPL completed (i) the sale of its retail electric distribution business on the Eastern 
Shore of Virginia to A&N Electric Cooperative (A&N) for a purchase price of approximately $45.2 imlUon, after 
closing adjustments, and (ii) the sale of its wholesale electric transmission business located on the Eastem Shore 
of Virginia to Old Dominion Electric Cooperative (ODEC) for a purchase price of approximately $5.4 milUwi, 
after closing adjustments. Each of A&N and ODEC assumed certain post-closing UabiUties and unknown 
pre-closing Uabiiities related to the respective assets they are purchasing (including, in the A&N transaction, 
most environmental Uabiiities), except that DPL remained liable for unknown pre-closing UabiUties if they 
become known within six months after the January 2, 2008 closing date. These sales are expected to result in an 
immaterial financial gain to DPL that wiU be recorded in the first quarter of 2008. 

Pepco Energy Services Deactivation of Power Plants 

Pepco Energy Services owns and operates two oil-fired power plants. The power plants are located in 
Washington, D.C. and have a generating capacity rating of approximately 790 MW. Pepco Energy Services seUs 
the output of these plants into the wholesale market administered by PJM. In Febmary 2007, Pepco Energy 
Services provided notice to PJM of its intention to deactivate these plants. In May 2007, Pepco Energy Services 
deactivated one combustion turbine at its Buzzard Point facility with a generating capacity of approximately 16 
MW. Pepco Energy Services cunentiy plans to deactivate the balance of both plants by May 2012. PJM has 
informed Pepco Energy Services that these faciUties are not expected to be needed for reUabiUty after that time, 
but that its evaluation is dependent on the completion of transmission upgrades. Pepco Energy Services' timing 
for deactivation of these units, in whole or in part, may be accelerated or delayed based on the operating 
condition of the units, economic conditions, and reliabiUty considerations. Prior to deactivation of the plants. 
Pepco Energy Services may incur deficiency charges imposed by PJM at a rate up to two times the capacity 
payment price that the plants receive. Deactivation is not expected to have a material impact on PHI's fmancial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

General Litigation 

During 1993, Pepco was served with Amended Complaints filed in the state Circuit Courts of Prince 
George's County, Baltimore City and Baltimore County, Maryland in separate ongoing, consoUdated 
proceedings known as "In re: Personal Injury Asbestos Case." Pepco and other corporate entities were brougjht 
into these cases on a theory of premises Uability. Under this tiieory. the plaintiffs argued that Pepco was negligent 
in not providing a safe work environment for employees or its contractors, who aUegedly were exposed to 
asbestos while working on Pepco's property. Initially, a total of approximately 448 individual plaintiffs added 
Pepco to their complaints. While the pleadings are not entirely clear, it appears that each plaintifl" sought 
$2 million in compensatory damages and $4 million in punitive damages from each defendant. 

Since the initial filings in 1993, additional individual suits have been filed against Pepco, and significant 
numbers of cases have been dismissed. As a result of two motions to dismiss, numerous hearings and meetmgs 
and one motion for summary judgment, Pepco has had approximately 400 of these cases successfully dismissed 
with prejudice, either voluntarily by the plaintiff or by the court. As of December 31, 2007, there are 
approximately 180 cases stiU pending against Pepco in the State Courts of Maryland, of which approxitnately 90 
cases were filed after December 19, 2000, and were tendered to Mirant Corporation for defense and 
indemnification pursuant to the terms oi the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement between Pepco and Mirant 
under which Pepco sold its generation assets to Mirant in 2000. 

While the aggregate amount of monetary damages sought in the remaining suits (excluding those tendered 
to Mirant) is approximately $360 million, PHI and Pepco believe the amounts claimed by cunent plaintiffs are 
greatly exaggerated. The amount of total liability, if any, and any related insmance recovery cannot be 
determined at this time; however, based on information and relevant circumstances known at this time, neither 
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PHI nor Pepco believes these suits will have a material adverse effect on its fiitancial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. However, if an unfavorable decision were rendered against Pepco, it could have a 
material adverse effect on Pepco's and PHI's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Cash Balance Plan litigation 

In 1999, Conectiv established a cash balance retirement plan to replace defined benefit retirement plans then 
maintained by ACE and DPL. Following the acquisition by Pepco of Conectiv, this plan became the Conectiv 
Cash Balance Sub-Plan witiiin the PHI Retirement Plan. In September 2005, three management employees of 
PHI Service Company filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware (tiie Delaware District 
Court) against tiie PHI Retirement Plan, PHI and Conectiv (the PHI Parties), alleging violations of ERISA, on 
behalf of a class of management employees who did not have enough age and service when the Cash Balance 
Sub-Plan was implemented in 1999 to assure that their accmed benefits would be calculated pursuant to the 
terms of the predecessor plans sponsored by ACE and DPL. A fourth plaintiff was added to the case to represent 
DPL-legacy employees who were not eligible for grandfathered benefits. 

The plaintiffs challenged the design of tiie Cash Balance Sub-Plan and sought a declaratory judgment tiiat 
the Cash Balance Sub-Plan was invalid and that the accmed benefits of each member ofthe class should be 
calculated pursuant to the terms ofthe predecessor plans. Specifically, the complaint alleged that the use of a 
variable rate to compute the plaintiffs' accmed benefit under the Cash Balance Sub-Plan resulted m reductions in 
the accmed benefits that violated ERISA. The complaint also alleged that the benefit accmal rates and the 
minimal accmal requirements of the Cash Balance Sub-Plan violated ERISA as did the notice that was given to 
plan participants upon implementation of the Cash Balance Sub-Plan. 

On September 19,2007, the Delaware District Court issued an order granting summary judgment in favor of 
ttie PHI Parties. On October 12, 2001, the plaintiffs filed an appeal ofthe decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals 
for the Third Circuit. 

If the plaintiffs were to prevail in tins litigation, the ABO and projected benefit obUgation (PBO) calculated 
in accordance with SFAS No. 87 each would increase by approximately $12 million, assuming no change in 
benefits for persons who have already retired or whose employment has been tenninated and using actuarial 
valuation data as of the time the suit was filed. The ABO represents the present value that participants have 
eamed as ofthe date of calculation. This means that only service aheady worked and compensation already 
eamed and paid is considered. The PBO is similar to the ABO, except that the PBO includes recognition of the 
effect that estimated future pay increases would have on the pension plan obligation. 

Environmental Litigation 

PHI, through its subsidiaries, is subject to regulation by various federal, regional, state, and local authorities 
with respect to the environmental effects of its operations, including air and water quality control, solid and 
hazardous waste disposal, and limitations on land use. In addition, federal and state statutes authorize 
govemmental agencies to compel responsible parties to clean up certain abandoned or unremediated hazardous 
waste sites. PHI's subsidiaries may incur costs to clean up curtently or formerly owned facilities or sites found to 
be contaminated, as well as other facilities or sites that may have been contaminated due to past disposal 
practices. Although penalties assessed for violations of environmental laws and regulations are not recoverable 
from customers of the operating utUities, environmental clean-up costs incuned by Pepco, DPL and ACE would 
be included by each company in its respective cost of service for ratemaking purposes, 

Cambridge, Maryland Site. In July 2(X)4, DPL entered into an administrative consent order (ACO) witii the 
Maryland Department of tiie Environment (MDE) to perform a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) 
to further identify the extent of soil, sediment and ground and surface water contamination related to former 
manufactured gas plant (MGP) operations at a Cambridge. Maryland site on DPL-owned property and to 
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investigate the extent of MGP contamination on adjacent property. The MDE has approved the RI and DPL 
submitted a final FS to MDE on Febmary 15, 2007. No further MDE action is required with respea to the final 
FS. The costs of cleanup (as determined by the RI/FS and subsequent negotiations with MDE) are anticipated to 
be approximately $3.8 million. The remedial action to be taken by DPL will include dredging activities witiiin 
Cambridge Creek, which are expected to commence in March 2008, and soil excavation on DPL's and adjacent 
property as early as August 2008. The final cleanup costs will include protective measures to control contaminant 
migration during the dredging activities and improvements to the existing shoreUne. 

Delilah Road Landfill Site. In November 1991, the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 
(NJDEP) identified ACE as a potentially responsible party (PRP) at the DeUlah Road Landfill site in Egg Harbor 
Township, New Jersey. In 1993, ACE, along with other PRPs. signed an ACO witii NJDEP to remediate tiie site. 
The soil cap remedy for the site has been implemented and in August 2006, NJDEP issued a No Further Action 
Letter (NFA) and Covenant Not to Sue for the site. Among otiier things, the NFA reqmres the PRPs to moititor 
the effectiveness of institutional (deed restriction) and engineering (cap) controls at the site every two years. In 
September 2007, NJDEP approved the PRP group's petition to conduct semi-annual, rather than quarterly, 
ground water monitoring for two years and defened until the end of the two-year period a decision on the PRP 
group's request for annual groundwater monitoring thereafter. In August 2007, the PRP group agreed to 
reimburse EPA's costs in tiie amount of $81,400 in fuU satisfaction of EPA's claims for aU past and future 
response costs relating to the site (of which ACE's share is one-third) and in October 2007, EPA and the PRP 
group entered into a toUing agreement to permit the parties sufficient time to execute a final settiement 
agreement. This settiement agreement will allow EPA to reopen the settiement in the event of new information or 
unknown conditions at the site. Based on information cunently available, ACE anticipates that its share of 
additional cost associated with this site for post-remedy operation and maintenance will be approximately 
$555,000 to $600,000. ACE believes that Us Uability for post-remedy operation and maintenance costs wiU not 
have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Frontier Chemical Site. On June 29, 2007, ACE received a letter from the New York Department of ^ 
Environmental Conservation (NYDEC) identifying ACE as a PRP at the Frontier Chemical Waste Processmg 
Company site in Niagara Falls, N.Y. based on hazardous waste manifests indicating that ACE sent in excess of 
1,500 gallons of manifested hazardous waste to the site. ACE has entered into an agreement with the other parties 
identified as PRPs to form the PRP group and has informed NYDEC that it has entered into good faith 
negotiations with the PRP group to address ACE's responsibiUty at the site. ACE beUeves that its responsibiUty 
at the site will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Carolina Transformer Site. In August 2006, EPA notified each of DPL and Pepco that they have been 
identified as entities that sent PCB-laden oil to be disposed at the Carolina Transformer site in FayettevUle, North 
CaroUna. The EPA notification stated that, on this basis, DPL and Pepco may be PRPs. In December 2007, DPL 
and Pepco agreed to enter mto a settiement agreement with EPA and the PRP group at the CaroUna Transformer 
site. Under the terms of the settiement, (i) Pepco and DPL each will pay $162,000 to EPA to resolve any UabiUty_ 
that it might have at the site, (ii) EPA covenants not to sue or bring administrative action against DPL and Pepco 
for response costs at the site, (iii) other PRP group members release all rights for cost recovery or conttibution 
claims they may have against DPL and Pepco, and (iv) DPL and Pepco release all rights for cost recovery or 
contribution claims that they may have against other parties settUng with EPA, The consent decree is expected to 
be filed with the U.S. District Court in North CaroUna in the second quarter of 2(X)8, 

Deepwater Generating Station. On December 27, 2005, NJDEP issued a Titie V Operating Permit for 
Conectiv Energy's Deepwater Generating Station. The permit includes new Umits on unit heat input. In order to 
comply with these new operational linuts, Conectiv Energy restricted the output of tiie Deepwater Generating 
Station's Unit 1 and Unit 6. In 2006 and the first half of 2007, ttiese restrictions resulted in operating losses of 
approximately $10,000 per operating day on Unit 6, primarily because of lost revenues due to reduced output, 
and to a lesser degree because of lost revenues related to capacity requirements of PJM. Since June 1, 2007, 
Deepwater Unit 6 can operate within the heat input Umits set forth in the Tide V Operating Permit without 
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restricting output, because of technical improvements that partially conected the inherent bias in the continuous 
emissions monitoring system that had caused recorded heat input to be higher than actual heat input. In order to 
comply with the heat input Umit at Deepwater Unit 1, Conectiv Energy continues to restrict Unit 1 output, 
resuUing in operating losses of approximately $500,000 in the second half of 2(X)7 and projected operating losses 
in 2008 of approximately $500,000, due to penalties and lost revenues related to PJM capacity requirements. 
Beyond 2008. while penalties due to PJM capacity requirements are not expected, further operating losses due to 
lost revenues related to PJM capacity requhements may continue to be incuned. The operating losses due to 
reduced output on Unit 1 have been, and are expected to continue to be, insignificant. Conectiv Energy is 
challenging these heat input restrictions and other provisions of the Titie V Operating Permit for Deepwater 
Generating Station in the New Jersey Office of Administrative Law (OAL). On October 2,2007, the OAL issued 
a decision granting summary decision in favor of Conectiv Energy, finding that hourly heat input shall not be 
used as a condition or Umit for Conectiv Energy's electric generating operations. On October 26,2007, the 
NJDEP Commissioner denied NJDEP's request for interlocutory review of the OAL order and determined that 
the Commissioner would review the October 2, 2007 order upon completion of the proceeding on Conectiv 
Energy's other challenges to the Deepwater Titie V permit. A hearing on the remaining challenged Title V permit 
provisions is scheduled for mid-April 2008. 

On April 3,2007. NJDEP issued an Administrative Order and Notice of Civil Adnunistrative Penalty 
Assessment (the First Order) alleging that at Conectiv Energy's Deepwater Generating Station, the maximum 
gross heat input to Unit 1 exceeded the maximum allowable heat input in calendar year 2005 and the maximum 
gross heat input to Unit 6 exceeded the maximum aUowable heat input in calendar years 2(K)5 and 2006. The 
order required the cessation of operation of Units 1 and 6 above the alleged permitted heat input levels, assessed 
a penalty of approximately $1.1 miUion and requested ttiat Conectiv Energy provide additional infonnation about 
heat input to Units 1 and 6. Conectiv Energy provided NJDEP Units 1 and 6 calendar year 2004 heat input data 
on May 9, 2007, and calendar years 1995 to 2003 heat input data on July 10, 2007. On May 23.2007. NJDEP 
issued a second Administrative Order and Notice of Civil Administrative Penalty Assessment (the Second Order) 
aUeging that the maximum gross heat input to Units 1 and 6 exceeded the maximum allowable heat mput in 
calendar year 2004. The Second Order required the cessation of operation of Units 1 and 6 above the alleged 
permitted heat input levels and assessed a penalty of $811.600. Conectiv Energy has requested a contested case 
hearing challenging the issuance of the Fhst Oder and the Second Order and moved for a stay of the orders 
pendmg resolution ofthe Titie V Operating Permit contested case described above. On November 29,2007, the 
OAL issued orders placing the First Order and ttie Second Order on the inactive list for six months. Until the 
OAL decision discussed above is fmal, it will not have an impact on these cunently inactive enforcement cases. 

IRS Examination oflike^Kind Exchange Transaction 

In 2(X)1, Conectiv and certain of its subsidiaries (the Conectiv Group) were eng^ed in the hnplementation of a 
strategy to divest non-strategic electric generating faciUties and replace these facilities with mid-merit electric 
generating capacity. As part of this strategy, the Conectiv Group exchanged its interests in two older coal-fn-ed 
plants for the more efficient gas-fired Hay Road II generating facility, which was owned by an unaffiliated third 
party. For tax purposes, Conectiv treated the transaction as a "like-kind exchange" under IRC Section 1031. As a 
result, approximately $88 milUon of taxable gain was deferred for federal income tax purposes. 

The transaction was examined by the IRS as part of the normal Conectiv tax audit. In May 2006, the IRS 
issued a revenue agent's report (RAR) for the audit of Conectiv's 2000, 2001 and 2002 income tax retums, in 
which the IRS disallowed tiie qualification ofthe exchange under IRC Section 1031. In July 2006, Conectiv filed 
a protest of this disaUowance to the IRS Office of Appeals. 

PHI beUeves that its tax position related to this transaction is proper based on applicable statutes, regulations 
and case law and is contesting the disallowance. However, there is no absolute assurance that Conectiv's position 
will prevail. If the IRS prevails, Conectiv would be subject to additional income taxes, interest and possible 
penalties. However, a portion of the denied benefit would be offset by additional tax depreciation. PHI has 
accmed approximately $4.9 miUion related to this matter. 
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As of December 31, 2007, if the IRS were to fully prevail, the potential cash impact on PHI would be 
cunent income tax and interest payments of approximately $31.2 million and the eamings impact would be 
approximately S9.8 million in after-tax interest. 

Federal Tax Treatment of Cross-Border Leases 

PCI maintains a portfolio of cross-border energy sale-leaseback transactions, which, as of December 31, 
2007, had a book value of approximately $1.4 bilUon, and from which PHI cunentiy derives approximately $60 
million per year in tax benefits in the form of interest and depreciation deductions. 

In 2005, the Treasury Department and IRS issued Notice 2005-13 informing taxpayers that the IRS intends 
to challenge on various grounds the purported tax benefits claimed by taxpayers entering into certain sale-
leaseback transactions with tax-indifferent parties (i.e., municipaUties, tax-exempt and govemmental entities), 
including those entered into on or prior to March 12, 2004 (the Notice). AU of PCI's cross-border energy leases 
are with tax indifferent parties and were entered into prior to 2004. Also in 2005, the IRS pubUshed a 
Coordinated Issue Paper conceming the resolution of audit issues related to such transactions. PCFs cross-border 
energy leases are similar to those sale-leaseback transactions described in the Notice and the Coordinated Issue 
Paper. 

PCI's leases have been under examination by the IRS as part ofthe normal PHI tax audit. In June 2006, the 
IRS issued its final RAR for its audit of PHI's 2001 and 2002 income tax retums. In the RAR, tiie IRS disaUowed 
the tax benefits claimed by PHI with respect to these leases for those years. The tax benefits claimed by PHI with 
respect to these leases from 2001 through December 31, 2007 were approximately $347 million. PHI has filed a 
protest against the IRS adjustments and the unresolved audit has been forwarded to the U.S. Office of Appeals. 
The ultimate outcome of this issue is uncertain; however, if the IRS prevails, PHI would be subject to additional 
taxes, along with interest and possibly penalties on the additional taxes, which could have a material adverse 
effect on PHI's financial condition, resuhs of operations, and cash flows. PHI believes that its tax position related 
to these transactions was appropriate based on applicable statutes, regulations and case law, and intends to 
contest the adjustments proposed by the IRS; however, there is no assurance that PHI's position wiU prevail. 

In 2006, the FASB issued FSP FAS 13-2, which amends SFAS No. 13 effective for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2006. This amendment requires a lease to be repriced and the book value adjusted when there 
is a change or probable change in ttie timing of tax benefits of the lease regardless of whether the change results 
in a defenal or permanent loss of tax benefits. Accordingly, a material change in the tiirung of cash flows under 
PHI's cross-border leases as the result of a settlement with the IRS would require an adjustment to the book 
value of the leases and a charge to eamings equal to the repricing impact of ttie disallowed deductions which 
could result in a material adverse effect on PHT s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. PHI 
believes its tax position was appropriate and at this time does not believe there is a probable change in the timing 
of its tax benefits that would require repricing tiie leases and a charge to eamings. 

On December 14, 2007 the U.S. Senate passed its version ofthe Farm, Nutrition, and Bioenergy Act of 2007 
(H.R. 2419) which contains a provision that would apply passive loss limitation mles to leases with foreign tax 
indifferent parties effective for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2006, even if the leases were entered 
into on or prior to March 12,2004. The U.S. House of Representatives version of this proposed legislation which 
it passed on July 27, 2007 does not contain any provision that would modify the cunent treatment of leases with 
tax indifferent parties. Enactment into law of a biU that is similar to that passed by the U.S. Senate in its cunent 
form could result in a material delay of the income tax benefits that PHI would receive in connection with its 
cross-bonier energy leases. Furthemiore, if legislation of this type were to be enacted, under FSP FAS 13-2, PHI 
would be required to adjust the book value of the leases and record a charge to eamings equal to the repricing 
impact of the defened deductions which could result in a material adverse effect on PHI's financial condition, 
results of operations and cash-flows. The U.S. House of Representatives and the U.S. Senate are expected to hold 
a conference in the near future to reconcile the differences in ttie two bills to determine the final legislation. 
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IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue 

During 2001, Pepco, DPL, and ACE changed then- methods of accounting witti respect to capitalizable 
constmction costs for income tax purposes. The change allowed the companies to accelerate the deduction of 
certain expenses that were previously capitalized and depreciated. Through December 31,2005, these accelerated 
deductions generated incremental tax cash flow benefits of approximately $205 milUon (consisting of $94 
million for Pepco, $62 million for DPL, and $49 million for ACE) for the companies, primarily attributable to 
their 2001 tax retums. 

In 2005, the Treasury Department issued proposed regulations that, if adopted in their cunent form, would 
requhe Pepco, DPL, and ACE to change their niethod of accounting with respect to capitalizable constmction 
costs for income tax purposes for tax periods beginning in 2005. Based on the proposed regulations, PHI in its 
2005 federal tax retum adopted an alternative method of accounting for capitalizable constmction costs that 
management believes wUl be acceptable to the IRS. 

At ttie same time as the proposed regulations were released, tiie IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2005-53, which 
is intended to limit the ability of certain taxpayers to utilize the method of accounting for income tax purposes 
they utilized on their tax retums for 2(X)4 and prior years with respect to capitaUzable constmction costs. In line 
with tills Revenue Ruling, the IRS RAR for tiie 2001 and 2002 tax retums disallowed substantially all of ttie 
incremental tax benefits that Pepco, DPL and ACE had claimed on those retums by requiring the companies to 
capitalize and depreciate certain expenses rather than treat such expenses as current deductions. PHI's protest of 
the IRS adjustments is among the unresolved audit matters relating to the 2001 and 2002 audits pending before 
the Appeals Office. 

In Febmary 2006, PHI paid approximately $121 million of taxes to cover the amount of additional taxes and 
interest that management estimated to be payable for the years 2001 through 2004 based on the method oftax 
accounting that PHI, pursuant to the proposed regulations, adopted on its 2005 tax retum. However, if the IRS is 
successful in requiring Pepco, DPL and ACE to capitaUze and depreciate constmction costs that result in a tax 
and interest assessment greater than management's estimate of $121 million, PHI wiU be required to pay 
additional taxes and interest only to tiie extent these adjustments exceed the $121 million payment made in 
Febmary 2006. It is reasonably possible that PHI's unrecognized tax benefits related to this issue wUl 
significantly decrease in the next 12 months as a result of a settiement with the IRS. 

Third Party Guarantees, Indemnifications, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Pepco Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries have various financial and performance guarantees and 
indemnification obUgations which are entered into in the normal course of business to facilitate commercial 
transactions with third parties as discussed below. 

As of December 31, 2007, Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries were parties to a variety of agreements 
pursuant to which tiiey were guarantors for standby letters ofcredit, performance residual value, and other 
commitments and obligations. The commitments and obUgations, in millions of dollars, were as follows: 

Energy marketing obUgations of Conectiv Energy (a) $180.9 
Energy prociu'ement obUgations of Pepco Energy Services (a) 141.7 
Guaranteed lease residual values (b) 
Otiier (c) 

Total $324.9 

PHI 

$180.9 
141.7 

— 
2.3 

DPL 

$— 
— 
2.6 

— 

ACE 

$ -
— 
2.7 

— 

Other 

$— 
— 

.4 
1.4 

Total 

$180.9 
141.7 

5.7 
3.7 

$2.6 $2.7 $1.8 $332.0 
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(a) Pepco Holdings has contractual commitments for ensining the performance and related payments of 
Conectiv Energy and Pepco Energy Services to counterparties under routine energy sales and procurement 
obligations, including retail customer load obUgations of Pepco Energy Services and requu-ements under 
BGS contracts entered into by Conectiv Energy with ACE. 

(b) Subsidiaries of Pepco Holdings have guaranteed residual values in excess of fair value of certain equipment 
and fleet vehicles held tinough lease agreements. As of December 31, 2007, obUgations under the 
guarantees were approximately $5.7 miUion. Assets leased under agreements subject to residual value 
guarantees are typically for periods ranging from 2 years to 10 years. Historically, payments under the 
guarantees have not been made by the guarantor as. under normal conditions, the contract mns to full term 
at which time the residual value is minimal. As such, Pepco Holdings beUeves the likelihood of payment 
being required under the guarantee is remote. 

(c) Other guarantees consist of: 

• Pepco Holdings has guaranteed a subsidiary building lease of $2.3 million. Pepco Holdings does not 
expect to fund the full amount of the exposiwe under tiie guarantee. 

• PCI has guaranteed faciUty rental obligations related to contracts entered into by Starpower. As of 
December 31,2007, the guarantees cover tiie remaining $1.4 million m rental obUgations. 

Pepco Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries have entered into various indemnification agreements related 
to purchase and sale agreements and other types of contractual agreements witii vendors and other third parties. 
These indemnification agreements typically cover envkonmental, tax, litigation and otiier matters, as well as 
breaches of representations, wananties and covenants set forth in these agreements. Typically, claims may be 
made by third parties under tiiese indemnification agreements over various periods of time depending on the 
nature of the claim. The maximum potential exposure under these indenmification agreements can range from a 
specified dollar amount to an unUmited amount depending on tiie namre of the claim and the particular 
transaction. The total maximum potential amount of future payments under these indemnification agreements is 
not estimable due to several factors, including uncertainty as to whether or when claims may be made under 
these indemnities. 

Dividends 

On January 24,2008, the Board of Directors declared a dividend on common stock of 27 cents per share 
payable March 31, 2008, to shareholders of record March 10, 2008. 

Contractual Obligations 

As of December 31,2007, Pepco Holdings' contractual obUgations under non-derivative fuel and purchase 
power contracts, excluding the BGS suppUer load commitments, were $3,176.7 milUon in 2008, $2,756.8 milUon 
in 2009 to 2010, $752.7 million in 2011 to 2012, and $3,119.9 mUUon m 2013 and tiiereafter. 

(13) USE OF DERIVATIVES IN ENERGY AND INTEREST RATE HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

PHI's Competitive Energy businesses use derivative instruments primarily to reduce their financial exposure 
to changes in the value of their assets and obligations due to commodity price fluctuations. The derivative 
instmments used by the Competitive Energy businesses include forward contracts, futures, swaps, and exchange-
traded and over-the-counter options. In addition, the Competitive Energy businesses also manage commodity risk 
with contracts that are not classified as derivatives. The two primary risk management objectives are (1) to 
manage tiie spread between the cost of fuel used to operate electric generation plants and the revenue received 
from the sale of the power produced by those plants, and (2) to manage the spread between retaU sales 
commitments and the cost of supply used to service those commitments to ensure stable and known minimum 
cash flows, and lock in favorable prices and margins when they become available. To a lesser extent, Conectiv 
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Energy also engages in energy marketing activities. Energy marketing activities consist primarily of wholesale 
natural gas and fuel oil marketing; the activities ofthe short-term power desk, which generates margin by 
capturing price differences between power pools, and locational and timing differences within a power pool; and 
prior to October 31,2006, provided operating services under an agreement with an unaffiliated generating plant. 
PHI collectively refers to these energy marketing activities, including its commodity risk management activities, 
as "other energy commodity" activities and identifies this activity separately from the discontinued proprietary 
trading activity that was discontinued in 2003. 

Conectiv Energy assesses risk on a total portfolio basis and by component (e.g. generation output, 
generation fuel, load supply, etc.). Portfolio risk combines the generation fleet, load obligations, miscellaneous 
commodity sales and hedges. Derivatives designated as cash flow and fair value hedges (Accounting Hedges) are 
matched against each component using the product or products that most closely represent the underlying hedged 
item. The total portfolio is risk managed based on its megawatt position by month. If the total portfolio becomes 
too long or too short for a period as determined in accordance with Conectiv Energy's policies, steps are taken to 
reduce or increase hedges. Portfolio-level hedging includes the use of Accounting Hedges, derivatives that are 
being marked-to-market through eamings, and other physical commodity purchases and sales. 

Pepco Energy Services purchases electric and natural gas futures, swaps, options and forward contracts to 
hedge price risk in connection with the purchase of physical natural gas and electricity for delivery to customers. 
Pepco Energy Services accounts for its futures and swap contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions. 
Its options contracts are marked-to-market through cunent eamings. Its forward contracts are accounted for using 
standard accmal accounting since these contracts meet the requirements for normal purchase and sale accounting 
under SFAS No. 133. 

Policies and practices designed to minimize credit risk exposure to wholesale energy counterparties include, 
among other things, formal credit poUcies, regular assessment of counterparty creditworthiness and the 
establishment of a credit limit for each counterparty, monitoring procedures that include stress testing, the use of 
standard agreements which allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single 
counterparty and collateral requirements under certain circumstances, and the establishment of reserves for credit 
losses. 

PHI and its subsidiaries also use derivative instmments from time to time to mitigate the effects of 
fluctuating interest rates on debt incuned in connection with the operation of theU businesses. In June 2002, PHI 
entered into several treasury lock transactions in anticipation of the issuance of several series of fixed rate debt 
commencing in July 2002. There remained a loss balance of $28.8 million in Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income (AOCI) at December 31,2007 related to this transaction. The portion expected to be reclassified to 
eamings during the next 12 months is $3.3 milUon. In addition, interest rate swaps have been executed in support 
of PCI's medium-term note program. 

PCI has entered into interest rate swap agreements for the purpose of managing its overall borrowing rate 
and managing its interest rate exposure associated with debt it has issued. PCI's outstanding fixed rate debt 
issued under its Medium-Term Note program was swapped into variable rate debt in a transaction entered into in 
December 2001, which matures in December 2008. AU of PCI's hedges on variable rate debt issued under its 
Medium-Term Note program matured during 2005. 

The table below provides detaU on effective cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133 included in PHTs 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007. Under SFAS No. 133, cash flow hedges are 
marked-to-market on the balance sheet with conesponding adjustments to AOCI. The data in tiie table indicates 
the magnitude of the effective cash flow hedges by hedge type (i.e., other energy commodity and interest rate 
hedges), maximum term, and portion expected to be reclassified to eamings during the next 12 months. 
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Cash Flow Hedges Included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 
As of December 31,2007 (MUlions of dollars) 

Contracts 

Other Energy Commodity 
Interest Rate 

Total 

Acaimnlated OCI 
(Loss) After-tax (a) 

$ (9.2) 
(28,8) 

$(38.0) 

Portion Expected 
to be Reclassified 

to Eamings during 
the Next 12 Months 

$7.1 
(3.3) 

$3.8 

MaxhnumTerm 

48 months 
296 montiis 

(a) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss as of December 31,2007. includes a $(7.5) million balance related 
to minimum pension Uability. This balance is not included in this table as there is not a cash flow hedge 
associated with it. 

The following table shows, m millions of dollars, the pre-tax gain (loss) recognized in eamings for cash 
flow hedge ineffectiveness for the years ended December 31,2007.2006, and 2(X)5, and where they were 
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings diuing the period, 

2007 2006 2005 

Operating Revenue $(2.3) $ .4 $ 3.0 
Fuel and Purchased Energy Expenses (.2) (.3) (2.7) 

Total $(2.5) $ ,1 $ .3 

In connection with their other energy commodity activities, the Competitive Energy businesses designate 
certain derivatives as fair value hedges. The net pre-tax gains/(losses) recognized during the twelve months 
ended December 31, 2007.2006 and 2005 included in the ConsoUdated Statements of Eamings for fair value 
hedges and the associated hedged items are shown in the following table (in milUons of dollars). 

2007 2006 

(Loss)/Gain on Derivative Instmments $(9.5) $ .2 
Gain/(Loss) on Hedged Items $ 9.7 $(.2) 

2005 

For the years ended 2007 and 2006, losses of $1.8 miUion and $.3 milUon, respectively, were reclassified 
from other comprehensive income (OCI) to eamings because the forecasted hedged transactions were deemed to 
be no longer probable. 

In connection with their other energy commodity activities, the Competitive Energy businesses hold certain 
derivatives that do not qualify as hedges. Under SFAS No. 133, these derivatives are marked-to-market through 
eamings with corresponding adjustments on the balance sheet. The pre-tax gains (losses) on these derivatives are 
included in "CompetUive Energy Operating Revenues" and are summarized in the following table, in miUions of 
doUars, for the years ended December 31,2007,2006, and 2005. 

Proprietary Trading (a) 
Other Energy Commodity (b) 

Total 

2007 

$— 
8.7 

$8.7 

2006 

$ -
64.7 

$64.7 

2005 

$ .1 
37.8 

$37.9 

(a) PHI discontinued its proprietary trading activity in 2003. 
(b) Includes $.5 miUion, $.3 milUon and zero in effective fair value hedge gains for the years ended 

December 31,2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
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DPL uses derivative instmments (forward contracts, futures, swaps, and exchange-traded and 
over-the-counter options) primarily to reduce gas commodity price volatiUty while limiting its firm customers' 
exposure to increases in the market price of gas. DPL also manages commodity risk with capacity contracts that 
do not meet the definition of derivatives. The primary goal of these activities is to reduce the exposure of its 
regulated retail gas customers to natural gas price spikes. AU premiums paid and other transaction costs incuned 
as part of DPL's natural gas hedging activity, in addition to aU gains and losses on the natural gas hedging 
activity, are fully recoverable through the gas cost rate clause included in DPL's gas tariff rates approved by the 
DPSC and are defened under SFAS No. 71 until recovered. At December 31,2007, DPL had a net deferred 
derivative payable of $13.1 miUion, offset by a $13.1 million regulatory asset. At December 31, 2006, DPL had a 
net defened derivative payable of $27.3 milUon, offset by a $28.5 mUlion regulatory asset. 

(14) EXTRAORDINARY TTEM 

On April 19,2005, ACE, the staff of the NJBPU, the New Jersey Ratepayer Advocate, and active intervener 
parties agreed on a settlement in ACE's electric distribution rate case. As a result of this settlement, ACE 
reversed $15.2 million in accmals related to certain deferted costs that are now deemed recoverable. The 
after-tax credit to income of $9.0 million is classified as an extraordinary gain in the 2005 financial statements 
since the original accmal was part of an extraordinary charge in conjunction with the accounting for competitive 
restmcturing in 1999. 
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(15) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

The quarteriy data presented below reflect aU adjustments necessary in the opinion of management for a fair 
presentation of the interim results. Quarterly data normally vary seasonally because of temperature variations, 
differences between summer and winter rates, and the scheduled downtime and maintenance of electric 
generating units. The totals of ttie four quarteriy basic and diluted eamings per common share may not equal the 
basic and diluted earnings per common share for the year due to changes in the number of common shares 
outstanding during the year. 

2007 

First 
Quarter 

Second 
Quarter 

Third 
Quarter 

Fourth 
Quarter Total 

(Millions, except per share: 
Total Operating Revenue $2,178.8 $2,0S4.3(a) $2,770.3(a) $2,333.0(a) $9,366.4 
Total Operating Expenses 2,026.2 1,928.3(b) 2,449.5(b)(c) 2,155.8(b) 8,559.8(c) 
Operating Income 152.6 156.0 320.8 177.2 806.6 
Otiier Expenses (69.5) (70.0) (72.9) (71.8) (284.2) 
Prefened Stock Dividend Requbements of 

Subsidiaries .1 .1 .1 — -3 
Income Before Income Tax Expense 83.0 85.9 247.8 105.4 522.1 
Income Tax Expense 31.4 28,7 80.2(d) 47.6 187.9(d) 
Netincome 51.6 57.2 167.6 57.8 334.2 
Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share of 

Common Stock $ .27 $ .30 $ .87 $ .29 $ 1.72 
Cash Dividends Per Common Share $ .26 $ .26 $ .26 $ .26 $ 1.04 

2006 
First Second Third Fourth 

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total 
(Millions, except per share amounts) 

Total Operating Revenue $1,951.9 $1,916.6 $2,589.9 $1,904.5 $8,362.9 
Total Operating Expenses 1.798.0 1,753.4 2,347.1 1,771.1 7.669.6(f) 
Operating Income 153.9 163.2 242.8 133.4 693.3 
Ottier Expenses (61.5)(e) (72.5) (76.2) (72,2) (282,4) 
Prefened Stock Dividend Requirements of 

Subsidiaries .4 .3 .3 .2 1.2 
Income Before Income Tax Expense 92.0 90.4 166.3 61.0 409.7 
Income Tax Expense 35.2 39.2 62.3 24.7 161.4 
Netincome 56.8 51.2 104.0 36.3 248.3 
Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share of 

Common Stock $ .29 $ .27 $ .54 $ .19 $ 1.30 
Cash Dividends Per Common Share $ .26 $ .26 $ .26 $ .26 $ 1.04 

(a) Includes adjustment related to timing of recognition of certain operating revenues which were overstated by 
$0.5 miUion and $1.9 milUon in the second and thnd quarters, respectively, and understated by $2.4 milUon 
in the fourth quarter. 

(b) Includes adjustment related to timing of recognition of certain operating expenses which were overstated by 
$4.8 mUlion in the fourth quarter and understated by $1.2 million and $3.6 million in tiie second and tftird 
quarters, respectively. 

(c) Includes $33.4 miUion benefit ($20.0 miUion after-tax) from settlement of Mirant bankmptcy claims. 
(d) Includes $19.5 million benefit ($17.7 nulUon net of fees) related to Maryland income tax refund. 
(e) Includes $ 12.3 million gain ($7.9 million after-tax) on tiie sale of its equity interest in a joint venture which 

owns a wood buming cogeneration facility. 
(0 Includes $18.9 million of impairment losses ($13.7 miUion after-tax) related to certain energy services 

business assets. 
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FIVE-YEAR PERFORMANCE GRAPH 2003-2007 

The following chart compares the five-year cumulative total retum to shareholders of Pepco Holdings, Inc. 
consistmg of the change in stock price and reinvestment of dividends with the five-year cumulative total return 
on tiie Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index (tiie "S&P 500") and tiie Dow Jones Utilities Index. 

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN 
AMONG PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC., THE S&P 500 INDEX AND THE 

DOW JONES UTILITIES INDEX 

$350 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Pepco Holdings, Inc. S&P 500 Index Dow Jones UtiUties 

2002 

Pepco Holdings. Inc $100.00 
S&P 500 hidex $100.00 
Dow Jones UtiUties $100.00 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

$106.40 
$128.63 
$129.08 

$122.03 
$142.58 
$167.87 

$133.80 
$149.57 
$209.77 

$162.40 $189.93 
$173.14 $182.63 
$244.67 $293.76 
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JackB. Dunn, IV2.1 
Chief Executive Officer, 
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FTI Consulting, Inc. 
Baltimore, Maryland 
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(Private investment company) 
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Retired President and Chief 
Executive Officer 
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Company 
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Chief Executive Officer 
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(Investment firm) 
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Attorney 
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General Counsel 
United Water Resources, Inc. 
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President and Chief 
Operating Officer 
Clark Enterprises, Inc. 
Bethesda, Maryland 
(Real estate and construction) 

Frank K. Ross^'^ 
Retired Managing Partner, 
Washington, D.C. office, 
KPMG LLP; Visiting 
Professor of Accounting, 
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Washington, D.C. 

Pauline A. Schndder^. 3, s 
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Orrick, Herrington & 
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McKinsey & Company, Inc. 
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Legal Officer 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. 

Dennis R. Wraase^ 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 
Pepco Holdings, Inc. 
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Operating Officer 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
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President and Chief 
Executive Officer 
Conectiv Energy Holding 
Company 
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Mr. Ross is Chairman. 
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Noniinating Committee of which Mr. McGlynn 
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Member of the Executive Committee of which 
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INVESTOR INFORMATION 

Fiscal Agents 

Common Stock and Atlantic City Electric 
Company Preferred Stock 

In writing: 
American Stock Transfer & Tmst Company 
6201 I5'h Avenue 
Brooklyn, NY 11219-9821 

By telephone: 
ToU free 1-866-254-6502 

Via e-mail: 
pepco @ amstock. com 

Inquiries conceming your Pepco Holdings, Inc. 
shareholdings (such as status of your account, 
dividend payments, change of address, lost 
certificates or transfer of ownership of shares) or to 
enroll in the dividend reinvestment plan or direct 
deposit of dividends, should be directed to American 
Stock Transfer & Trust Company as listed above. 

A copy of Pepco Holdings' Form 10»K for the year 
ended December 31,2007, is available without 
charge by contacting American Stock Transfer & 
Trust Company as Hsted above. 

Other Information 
For Historical Stock Prices (Potomac Electric Power 
Company, Conectiv, Delmarva Power & Light 
Company and Atlantic Energy), and other Pepco 
Holdings, Inc. company information, including our 
Corporate Govemance Guidelines, Corporate 
Business PoUcies (which in their totality constitute 
our code of business conduct and ethics) and Board 
Committee Charters, please visit our Web site at 
www.pepcoholdings.com 

To exchange Potomac Electric Power Company or 
Conectiv common stock certificates for Pepco 
Holdings, Inc. stock certificates, contact American 
Stock Transfer &. Trust Company. 

Pepco Holdings, Inc. Notes, Potomac Electric 
Power Company Bonds, and Atlantic City Electric 
Company Bonds 

In writing: 
The Bank of New York 
100 Barclay Street, 8W 
New Yoric, NY 10286 

By telephone: 

Toll Free: 1-800-548-5075 

Delmarva Power & Light Company Bonds 

In writing: 
The Bank of New York 
Global Corporate Tmst Services 
Bondholder Relations 
2001 Bryan Street 
Dallas, TX 75201 
By telephone: 
ToU fi:ee 1-800-275-2048 

Investor Relations Contact 
Donna J. Kinzel. Dkector. Investor Relations 
Telephone: 302-429-3004 
B-xaall: Donna.Kinzel@pepcoholdings.com 
New York Stock Exchange Ticker Symbol: POM 

Pepco Holdings. Inc. filed its annual CEO 
Certification with the New York Stock Exchange on 
June 6, 2007, and filed hs annual CEO and CFO 
Certifications required by Section 302 ofthe 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as exhibits to its Aimual 
Report on Form 10~K filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on Febmary 29,2008. 

Stock Market Information 

2007 
1st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter 

High Low 
$29.28 $24.89 
$30.71 $26,89 
$29.28 $24.20 
$30.10 $25.73 

(Close on December 31, 2007: $29.33) 
Number of Shareholders at December 31, 2007 

Dividend 
$.26 
$.26 
$.26 
$.26 

: 64,126 

2006 
1st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter 

High Low 
$24.28 $22.15 
$23.92 $21.79 
$25.50 $22.64 
$26.99 $24.25 

(Close on December 29,2006: $26.01) 

Dividend 
$.26 
$.26 
$.26 
$.26 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

C-5 

C-5 Exiiibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements,"/^rov^Je two years of 
forecasted financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement) for the applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, 
and the name, address, email address, and telephone number of the preparer. 

While the Applicant wishes to maintain its Ohio electricity suppher hcense, it does not 
beheve that the current Ohio market will present any viable electricity sales opportunities 
during 2008 and 2009. As a result, the Apphcant is projecting $0 income and $0 costs to 
support its Ohio operations over the next two years. 

Questions regarding this forecast may be directed to: 

Sandra Minch Guthom 
Manager, Manager- Energy Policy 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
1300 North 17̂ ^ Street, Suite 1600 
Arlington, VA 22209 
410-375-3506 
Sguthom@PepcoEnergy.com 

The chief assumptions included in this forecast are: 

• Competitive retail market conditions, mainly regulatory factors, will continue to 
remain unfavorable within the Applicant's targeted markets; and 

• Prevailing wholesale market will continue to prevent the Applicant from 
effectively competing against regulated, default service within its targeted 
markets. 

Exhibit C-5 
Page 1 of 1 
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Pepco Energy Services, hic. 

C-6 

C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating,"prov/Je a statement disclosing the applicant's 
credit rating as reported by two of the following organizations: DuffSc Phelps, 
Dun and Bradstreet Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, 
Standard & Poors, or a similar organization. In instances where an applicant 
does not have its own credit ratings, it may substitute the credit ratings of a 
parent or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a statement 
signed by a principal officer ofthe applicant's parent or affiliate organization 
that guarantees the obligations ofthe applicant. 

The Apphcant does not have its own credit rating. The ratings for the Applicant's parent 
company, Pepco Holdings, Inc. ("PHP') are as follows: 

Standards & Poors Senior Unsecured Debt: BBB-
Short Term Debt: A-2 

Moody's Investors Service Senior Unsecured Debt: Baa3 
Short Term Debt: P-3 

PHI is a public corporation trading under the ticker symbol POM. 

The AppHcant has numerous parental guarantees in place which facilitate transactions 
with various wholesale entities. The purpose of these guarantees is to provide credit 
support for the Applicant's commitment to pay for wholesale energy. 

Exhibit C-6 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

c-7 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report,"/>rov/Je a copy ofthe applicant's credit report 
from Experion. Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

Exhibit C-7 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

C-8 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information," prav/t;?^ a list and description of any 
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings 
made by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the 
obligations ofthe applicant or any officer ofthe applicant in the current year or 
within the two most recent years preceding the application. 

The Applicant certifies that neither it, a parent or affihate organization that guarantees the 
obligation ofthe applicant has conducted bankruptcy related reorganization or sought 
protection from creditors or made any other form of bankruptcy filings within the current 
year or within the two most recent years preceding this apphcation. The Applicant 
further certifies that no officer ofthe Applicant has sought protection from creditors or 
made any other form of bankruptcy fihngs within the current year or within the two most 
recent years preceding this application. 

Exhibit C-8 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

C-9 

C-9 Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information,"provide a statement describing any 
dissolution or merger or acquisition ofthe applicant within the five most recent 
years preceding the application. 

The Apphcant has not conducted any acquisitions within the five most recent years 
preceding this application. 

With regard to dissolution, the Pepco Building Services, a wholly owed subsidiary of 
PES, sold five businesses in 2006. They were: 

MET Electrical Services 
Substation Test 
Unitemp 
G&L Associates 
Engineered Services 

These companies are businesses that served primarily commercial and industrial 
customers by providing heating, ventilation, air conditioning, electrical testing and 
maintenance, and building automation services." 

Exhibit C-9 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

D-1 

D-1 Exhibit D-1 "Operations" provide a written description ofthe operational 
nature ofthe applicant's business. Please include whether the applicant's 
operations will include the generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of 
retail power for transmission and delivery, the provision of retail ancillary 
services as well as other services used to arrange for the purchase and delivery of 
electricity to retail customers. 

Applicant is a licensed competitive electricity supplier to customers comprising nearly 
4,300 MW of load. Applicant engages in all aspects ofthe process required to serve 
retail customers including: 

• Purchasing and selling of wholesale energy and electric capacity 
• Purchasing and selhng of other services needed to meet the requirements of retail 

customers 
• Providing price offers to prospective customers 
• Scheduling customer demand and electric supply with Regional Transmission 

Organizations and Electric Distribution Companies 
• Bilhng customers for electric usage 

Applicant purchases wholesale power via bilateral contracts to meet the electricity 
obligation of its retail customers. Applicant maintains a wholesale transaction desk 
charged with developing relationships with wholesale generation supphers and various 
generation brokers. Retail offers are typically made prior to, or simultaneously with, the 
purchase of wholesale supply. 

Applicant employs retail pricing staff to translate costs for wholesale energy, electric 
capacity and other components into a price offer for prospective retail customers. 

Applicant also maintains a scheduhng desk that works with the apphcable electric 
distribution companies and regional transmission organizations to facilitate the 
transmission and delivery of each retail customer's electricity supply. 

Applicant rehes upon the applicable regional transmission organization ("RTO") for the 
provision of ancillary services. However, the Applicant secures ancillary services on 
behalf of each customer via its relationship with the applicable RTO. The cost of 
ancillary services is typically included as a component ofthe Applicant's retail price. 

The applicant's operations wiU not include the generation of power for retail sales. 

Exhibit D-1 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

D-2 

D-2 Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise," given the operational nature ofthe 
applicant's business, provide evidence ofthe applicant's experience and technical 
expertise in performing such operations. 

Applicant currently provides retail electric supply to customers within the service 
territories of approximately 30 electric distribudon companies within 12 states and 
District of Columbia. By so doing, Applicant has become one ofthe largest competitive 
retail electricity suppliers in the country. Applicant is a member of, and an active 
participant in, the PJM Interconnection LLC, the New York Independent System 
Operator ("ISO"), the ISO-New England, and the Midwest ISO. Applicant has nearly 
twelve years of experience procuring wholesale electricity, structuring retail transactions, 
scheduhng power deliveries and serving the needs of end-use retail customers. 

Exhibit D-2 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

D-3 

D-3 Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnely'^provide the names, titles, e-mail 
addresses, telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in 
the operational aspects ofthe applicant's business. 

The following personnel will be most directly responsible for the Applicant's technical 
operations within the State of Ohio. All ofthe personnel hsted below maintain offices at 
the Applicant's headquarters, which is located at 1300 North 17̂ ^ Street, Suite 1600, 
Arlington, VA 22209. 

Mark S, Kumm 
President, Retail Electric Supply 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
703-253-1651 
MKumm@PepcoEnergy,com 

Mark S. Kumm is President ofthe Retail Electric Supply business unit for Pepco Energy 
Services, Inc. As President of Retail Electric Supply, his responsibilities include 
commodity sales to large commercial and industrial customers, wholesale procurement, 
and the development and implementation of new commodity-related products and 
services for the large commercial and industrial customer segment. 

Prior to joining Pepco Energy Services in mid-1999, Mr. Kumm worked for the then 
parent company of Pepco Energy Services, the Potomac Electric Power Company 
("Pepco"). He began his career at Pepco in 1984, holding a number of analytical and 
managerial positions, including Manager ofthe Market Planning and Policy Group. His 
responsibihties included management and monitoring of verification studies for 
conservation and load management programs, margmal and avoided cost studies, market 
and load research, evaluation and planning for DSM programs, and the development and 
marketing of products and services delivered by the utility. 

Mr. Kumm is trained as an economist, holding a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from 
the University of Missoiui and a Ph.D. in Economics from Duke University. 

Caryn Bacon 
Senior Vice President, Customer Operations 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
703-253-1646 
CBacon@PepcoEnergy.com 

Caryn Bacon manages the wholesale procurement, billing, customer analysis, forecasting 
and reconciliation for Pepco Energy Services' retail electricity customers. Her cmrent 
responsibilities include managing the electronic data interchange transactions used to 
communicate with electric distribution companies, providing bills to large commercial 

Exhibit D-3 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

govemmental, institutional and industrial electric customers, and responding to customer 
inquiries. 

Ms. Bacon has more than 20 years of utility experience. She joined Pepco Energy 
Services at the end of 1998 and was integral to the implementation of supplying retail 
electricity customers in Peimsylvania. Her responsibilities include arranging for 
membership with PJM, applying for all necessary transmission service agreements, 
negotiating wholesale energy and installed capacity supply contracts, forecasting and 
supplying energy to match retail load and coordinating with each EDC and all regulatory 
agencies in various retail matters. 

Prior to working at PES, she worked in the Bulk Power Management Division at PEPCO 
where she managed the company's mid and long-term wholesale trading and Marketing 
efforts, including wholesale supply of electricity and installed capacity to retailers in 
Pennsylvania. Ms. Bacon has a Bachelor of Science in Materials and Mechanical 
Engineering from Duke University and a Master of Science in Materials and Mechanical 
Engineering from George Washington University. She is a registered Professional 
Engineer in Virginia. Ms. Bacon is Pepco Energy Services' representative on PJM's 
Reliability Assurance Committee and Member's Committee. 

James Newton 
Vice President, Commercial Operations 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 
703-253-1626 
JNewton@PepcoEnergy.com 

James Newton manages the daily operations ofthe Pepco Energy Services' wholesale 
transactions desk. His responsibilities include the implementation of PES' wholesale 
supply hedging strategies and procurement for commercial, industrial and residential 
electricity loads. Mr. Newton has extensive experience in the electricity industry. Prior 
to joining Pepco Energy Services, Mr. Newton worked in the Bulk Power Management 
Division at PEPCO where he managed the company's short-term wholesale trading and 
marketing efforts and optimized generating unit dispatch. Prior to the formation ofthe 
Bulk Power Management Division, Mr. Newton helped to develop and maintain 
PEPCO's production cost models and worked with a team to develop the Biennial 
Integrated Resources Plan. 

Mr. Newton holds a Bachelors degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of 
Maryland at College Park and a MBA from George Washington University. 

Exhibit D-3 
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Pepco Energy Services, Inc. 

D-4 

D-4 Exhibit D-4 "FERC Power Marketer License Nnmber^'^ provide a statement 
disclosing the applicant's FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power 
Marketers only) 

The Applicant received authorization to engage in the marketing of energy and power 
from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission on July 16, 1998 in Docket No. ER98-
3096-000. 
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